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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Bk &

This financial year was a remarkable year of the Group, which has
further diversifying its business into financial services with the
successful completion of the acquisition of ChaoShang Financial
Holding Limited and its subsidiaries (“ChaoShang Financial).
The Company has also adopted the new name of Hong Kong
ChaoShang Group Limited in replacement of Noble Century
Investment Holdings Limited since 22 July 2019 to provide a fresh
corporate image and symbolizing a new vision and direction of
the Group's businesses development.

The Group has been engaged in finance leasing, factoring
and money lending businesses which have provided the
Group with a stable revenue stream and have become one
of the main business segments of the Group throughout
the years. The Company entered into a sales and
purchases agreement (the “Acquisition”) to acquire the
entire equity interest in ChaoShang Financial which was
completed on 31 December 2019. Upon completion of the
Acquisition, the Group expanded its operation into the provision
of securities dealing broking, placing, underwriting and asset
management services in Hong Kong. The Acquisition enables
the Group to further diversify its business and allows the Group
to have access to ChaoShang Financial’s professional expertise,
customer base and business connections, and thereby provides
viable business development opportunities to the Group. The
Group believes that the businesses of ChaoShang Financial would
further complement the Group’s existing businesses and with
synergy effects.

In conjunction with the above development direction, the
Group has ceased and discontinued the operation of its
vessel chartering business which had been operating under a
challenging environment during the years. The Group considers
that the disposal of the vessel chartering business will allow
the Group to focus on the development of the financial services
and the trading business which would further consolidate its
resources and paving the way for future development.

The outbreak of COVID-19 in January 2020 has caused disruptions
to many industries and posed a significant threat to the global
economy. As at the date of this report, the Group was not aware
of any material adverse impact on the financial statements as a
result of the COVID-19 outbreak. The Group is optimistic to the
recoverable of the economy in Hong Kong and the PRC following
the control of the COVID-19. The Group will pay close attention
to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its
impact on the financial position and operating results of the
Group.
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Bk &

Looking ahead, the Group will actively identify and explore other
investment and business opportunities to further broaden its
assets and revenue base into a comprehensive portfolio. The
Group will cautiously search for investment opportunities in order
to enhance and improve the business operation and profitability
of the Group.

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to our Board and
colleagues for their effort and dedication. | would also like to

express my deepest appreciation to all our business partners and
shareholders for their continuing confidence in our Group.

Zheng Juhua
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI i B 23 B

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting on 31 May 2019 and
approved by the Bermuda Registry of Companies on 22 July
2019, the name of the Company has been changed from “Noble
Century Investment Holdings Limited” to “Hong Kong ChaoShang
Group Limited” and the adoption of the Chinese name "& 7
EEE AR AR as the secondary name of the Company in
replacement of “Cimix =K B R A R]" has become effective.
The Certificate of Registration of Change of Corporate Name
of Non-Hong Kong Company confirming the registration of the
Company under the name of “Hong Kong ChaoShang Group
Limited &8 £ B AR A7 under Part X of the Companies
Ordinance was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong
Kong on 13 August 2019.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$238.5 million
with a gross profit of approximately HK$79.9 million from the
continuing operations during the year ended 31 March 2020 as
compared to approximately HK$105.1 million and HK$38.0 million
respectively for the last corresponding year. The loss for the year
was narrowed to approximately HK$20.8 million as compared to
approximately HK$36.0 million for the last corresponding year.
The decrease in loss for the year was mainly attributable to the
recognition of the followings:

()  an increase in gross profit and administration expenses
for the year of approximately HK$41.9 million and HK$10.5
million, respectively, of which HK$37.4 million and HK$9.7
million was attributed by the financial services business
acquired during the year,

(i) an increase in taxation charges and finance costs
of approximately HK$4.6 million and HK$1.5 million
respectively;

(i) a net decrease in impairment loss on trade receivables,
deposits, prepayments and other receivables of
approximately HK$31.0 million;

(iv)  a decrease in loss from the discontinued operation (before
gain on disposal of a subsidiary and release of foreign
currency translation reserve) of approximately HK$5.4
million, which was mainly due to an impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment in relation to the Group’s
cash generating unit of the vessel chartering business of
approximately HK$5.2 million was recorded for the year
ended 31 March 2019,
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(v)  there was a loss on changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments of approximately HK$38.4 million for the year
ended 31 March 2020 whilst a gain of approximately HK$5.9
million was recorded in last corresponding year;

(viy there was a loss on changes in fair value of investment
property of approximately HK$2.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2020 whilst a gain of approximately HK$297,000
was recorded in last corresponding year;

(vii) a realised loss on disposal of held-for-trading investments
of approximately HK$1.1 million was recorded for the year
whilst a gain of approximately HK$4.2 million was recorded
for the year ended 31 March 2019, and

(viii) a gain on disposal of a subsidiary (after release of
foreign currency translation reserve) of approximately
HK$2.5 million was recorded for the year whilst a loss of
approximately HK$5.5 million was recorded for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

In order to strengthen the financial resources of the Group
and for settlement of part of the consideration payable by the
Company in respect of the acquisition of ChaoShang Financial
Holding Limited and its subsidiaries (the “ChaoShang Financial®),
the Company successfully completed a placing of 440,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.02 each at a placing
price of HK$0.50 per placing share with net proceeds of
approximately HK$214.1 million on 27 December 2019.

As at 31 March 2020, the total assets and net assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,044.1 million (2019: HK$806.5
million) and HK$895.2 million (2019: HK$748.3 million) respectively.
The changes of the Group's financial position during the year was
mainly due to the completion of the acquisition of ChaoShang
Financial on 31 December 2019. As such, an intangible asset and
goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognised and
the results and assets of ChaoShang Financial has also been
consolidated to the Group's consolidated financial statement for
the year ended 31 March 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Trading Business

The Group is principally engaged in seafood and electronics
products trading business in the PRC. Despite the global economy
slowdown and the uncertainties of the trading barriers between
the PRC and the United States, the PRC's imports and exports
value increased by 3.4% and the performance overall was steady
during the year 2019.
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The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$161.3
million with a loss of approximately HK$2.9 million from
the trading business for the year ended 31 March 2020 as
compared to approximately HK$67.7 million and HK$33.4 million
respectively for the last corresponding year. The turnover was
mainly attributed from the seafood trading for both years. The
significant improvement of the trading business during the year
ended 31 March 2020 was mainly attributable to the decrease in
provision for impairment of trade receivables in the amount of
approximately HK$30.1 million.

The Group's electronic products trading is principally engaged
in trading of parts of electronic equipment. The Group
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$8.1 million from
trading of electronic products for the year ended 31 March
2020, as compared to approximately HK$234,000 for the last
corresponding year.

The outbreak of COVID-19 posed a significant threat to the global
economy. The Group will closely observe the recovery of the
economy and monitor the development of the COVID-19 and
the ever changing operating environment and its impact to the
Group's trading business.

Money Lending and Factoring Business

The Group’'s money lending and factoring business has
steadily developed during the year. There were loan portfolios
in Hong Kong and the PRC with outstanding principal amount
of approximately HK$67.6 million and factoring receivables of
approximately HK$27.0 million as at 31 March 2020. The Group
recognised an aggregate interest income of approximately
HK$14.1 million with a profit of approximately HK$9.7 million for
the year ended 31 March 2020 as compared with approximately
HK$10.2 million and HK$6.7 million respectively for the last
corresponding year. The Group continuously carries out regular
and periodic review of credit risk over the existing borrowers.
While the Group will proactively explore customers with good
quality to expand its business scale, it will continue to adopt a
prudent credit risk management strategy to ensure a healthy
development in its money lending and factoring business.
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Finance Leasing Business

The Group is engaged in the finance leasing business in the PRC.
It mainly offers machinery/equipment-based finance leases, the
term of which generally ranges from one year to five years and
the size of which generally ranges from RMB10 million to RMB50
million. The Group provides direct leasing and sale-leaseback
services to customers which include companies that are
principally engaged in cold storage, education, property leasing,
property development and manufacture of environmentally
friendly materials. The Group solicits its customers principally
through referrals from former and existing customers, Vvisits to
potential customers by the sales staff, referrals from the finance
leasing industry and the business connections of the sales
staff. Furthermore, the Group’s marketing team has extensive
experience and business relationship in banking and financing
industry, thereby enabling the Group's finance leasing business to
expand its customer base and the business.

The finance leasing business maintained a portfolio with
outstanding principal amount of approximately RMB159.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$174.1 million) as at 31 March
2020. The finance leasing portfolio has attributed a turnover of
approximately HK$25.7 million with a profit of approximately
HK$18.2 million to the Group during the year ended 31 March
2020 as compared to approximately HK$27.2 million and HK$17.4
million respectively for the last corresponding year.

The finance leasing business continue to provide the Group with
profitable income stream under the controllable risk. Looking
ahead, the Board believes that the finance leasing market in the
PRC will still have a great business potential. It is expected that
the Group's finance leasing business will record an accelerating
growth in the coming years.

Financial Services Business

On 7 January 2019, the Company entered into a sales and
purchases agreement (the “Acquisition”) to acquire the entire
equity interest in ChaoShang Financial, which has been granted
licences to carry on Type 1, 2, 4 and 9 regulated activities as
defined under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. ChaoShang
Financial is principally engaged in provision of securities
dealing broking, placing, underwriting, margin financing and
asset management services in Hong Kong. The Acquisition
was completed on 31 December 2019, and the business of
ChaoShang Financial has been consolidated to the Group from
January 2020. Details of the Acquisition are set out in Note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The financial services business has attributed a turnover of
approximately HK$37.4 million with a profit of approximately
HK$27.7 million to the Group during the year ended 31 March
2020.
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The average daily turnover of the Hong Kong stock market for
the first three months of 2020 was HK$120.9 billion, an increase
of 20 per cent when compared with HK$101.1 billion for the
corresponding period of last year. The Group has completed six
placing and underwriting projects and was contributed a turnover
of approximately HK$32.4 million of turnover to the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

The outlook for the Hong Kong economy is still uncertain and
subject to the development and containment of the COVID-19 and
local social events. The Board adopted a prudent approach in the
financial services business and will closely monitor the market
changes and timely adjust our strategies whenever necessary.

Vessel Chartering Business
The Group has ceased and discontinued its vessel chartering
business during the year through disposal of a subsidiary.

In the past few years, the vessel chartering business had
been operating under a challenging environment. Taking into
consideration of (i) the small scale of the operation of the Group’s
vessel chartering business and its loss-making in continuous
years; and (i) the increasing repair and maintenance costs of
the vessel, which may further reduce the income and profit
margin of the Group, the Board has resolved to cease its vessel
chartering business during the year. The Group entered into a
disposal agreement on 20 February 2020, pursuant to which, the
Group disposed of its entire equity interest in a subsidiary which
is principally engaged in vessel chartering, details of which are
set out in Note 36(iii) to the consolidated financial statements. The
Board consider that the cessation of vessel chartering business
will not have any material effect on the operation of the Group.

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$2.6 million
with a operating loss of approximately HK$814,000 from the
vessel charting business during the year ended 31 March 2020
as compared to approximately HK$3.2 million and HK$6.2 million
respectively for the last corresponding year.

The decrease in the loss for the year was attributable to the
impairment loss recognised to the cash-generating unit of the
vessel chartering business in the amount of approximately
HK$5.2 million during the year ended 31 March 2019 and the gain
on disposal of the disposal company of the vessel chartering
business and release of foreign currency translation reserve of
approximately HK$1.1 million and HK$1.3 million respectively
during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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Outbreak of COVID-19

The recent outbreak of COVID-19 has significant impact on the
global economy and it has imposed uncertainty on the Group’s
businesses in the coming financial year. The Group will pay
close attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak
and evaluated its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group. As at the date of this report, the Group
was not aware of any material adverse impact on the financial
statement as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.

Looking forward, the Group will actively identify and explore other
investment and business opportunities to broaden its assets and
revenue base. The Group will cautiously assess and evaluate each
of the investment opportunities to further strengthen the Group’s
long term development and performance.

Securities Investments

The Group invested surplus funds in securities listed in Hong
Kong during the year. The fair value of the Group's securities
investment amounted to approximately HK$17.1 million as at 31
March 2020. Due to the volatile stock market in Hong Kong, the
Group recorded an unrealised loss on changes in fair value of
held-for-trading investments of approximately HK$38.4 million
during the year as compared to a gain of approximately HK$5.9
million for the last corresponding year. The Group disposed
certain of the held-for-trading investments with a realised loss
of approximately HK$1.1 million for the year ended 31 March
2020, whilst a gain of approximately HK$4.2 million was recorded
for the last corresponding year. The Board will continue to
keep monitoring of the stock markets closely and grasping for
opportunities to realise gains from its investment portfolio.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$183.4 million (2019: HK$140.3 million) and
total borrowings of approximately HK$33.9 million (2019: HK$4.6
million). The Group’s gearing ratio, calculated by dividing total
borrowings by total equity, was 3.78% (2019: 0.61%). The liquidity
ratio, being the ratio of current assets over current liabilities was
8.31 as at 31 March 2020 (2019: 10.74).
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The Group completed the acquisition of ChaoShang Financial
during the year and the assets and liabilities of ChaoShang
Financial have been consolidated to the Group's consolidated
financial statement. Save for the above, there was no material
changes in the liquidity ratio for the year. The increase in the
gearing ratio during the year was mainly due to the issuance of a
bond and the recognition of lease liabilities following the adoption
of HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"), Renminbi (‘RMB"), Euro (‘EUR") and US dollar
("US$") and its revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and
borrowings are principally denominated in HK$, RMB, EUR and
USS.

The Group does not enter into any instruments on the foreign
exchange exposure. The Group will closely monitor exchange
rate movement and will take appropriate activities to reduce the
exchange risk.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2020.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FUND RAISING
ACTIVITIES

On 2 December 2019, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to place (the “Placing”)
440,000,000 shares of the Company of HK$0.02 each in an
aggregate nominal value of HK$8,800,000 at a placing price of
HK$0.50 each. The Placing was completed on 27 December 2019
and the shares were placed to not less than six independent
placees, with net proceeds of approximately HK$214.1 million
(equivalent to HK$0.49 per share), of which HK$204.0 million was
intended to be applied to settle part of the consideration payable
by the Company in respect of the acquisition of ChaoShang
Financial, details of which are set out in the paragraph headed
“Significant Acquisition and Disposal of Assets” below. The
remaining of approximately HK$10.1 million was intended to be
applied as general working capital of the Group. The proceeds
from the Placing has been fully applied as the intended usage as
at 31 March 2020.

Save as the disclosure above, there was no change in the capital
structure of the Company during the year.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS
As at 31 March 2020, none of the Group's asset was pledged to
secure any facilities and borrowings granted to the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF ASSETS

On 7 January 2019, the Company entered into a sales and
purchase agreement (the “CS Acquisition”) with independent
third parties, pursuant to which, the Company agreed to acquire
100% equity interest in ChaoShang Financial at a consideration
of HK$250 million. ChaoShang Financial holds licences to carry
on Type 1, 2, 4 and 9 regulated activities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and is principally engaged in provision of
securities dealing broking, placing, underwriting, margin financing
and asset management services in Hong Kong. The CS Acquisition
was approved by the Shareholders of the Company at a special
general meeting held on 31 May 2019 and was further approved
by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong on 13
August 2019. The CS Acquisition was completed on 31 December
2019, details of which are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 20 February 2020, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement (the “NC Shipping Disposal”) with an independent third
party, pursuant to which, the Group (i) disposed of its 100% equity
interest in SISB T M AR Q) (“NC Shipping”), an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which holds a vessel;
and (i) assigned the shareholder’s loan of approximately RMB3.9
million (equivalent to approximately HK$4.3 million) in full owing
from NC Shipping to the Group for a cash consideration of RMB1.
The NC Shipping Disposal was completed on 20 March 2020 with
a gain of approximately HK$2.5 million. Details of which are set
out in Note 36(iii) to the consolidated financial statements. Upon
completion of the NC Shipping Disposal, the Group ceased and
discontinued its operation in the vessel chartering business.

Save as disclosed above and the acquisition and disposal of held-
for-trading investments in securities as mentioned below, there
has been no significant acquisition and disposal of assets by the
Group during the year.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had held-for-trading investments
in securities in Hong Kong (the “Securities Investments”) with
a market value of approximately HK$17.1 million. The Group
recorded a realised loss of approximately HK$1.1 million (2019:
gain of approximately HK$4.2 million) in respect of the Securities
Investments during the year. The other details of the Securities
Investments as at 31 March 2020 are as follows:

FiEERRE

RIZBZEF=A=+—HB XEEHEEME
#R17100000B THRIEEBE 2 BEEHFKRE
(IBHFKRE]) -MAFERN AEERZEFE
HIREISEF R EHEL,100,0008 T (=F
— N5 - 55 494,200,000 7T ) - ZEFEFKE
AT _TE=R=+—RZEMFEHIIN
T

% of
net assets of
the Group
as at Unrealised
Fair value 31 March loss on
asat 2020 fair value
31 March EEER changes
2020 ZEZFE  forthe year
Number of % of Costof M-Z-%f ZA=t-AH AERE
Company name Stock code Principal activities shares held  shareholdings acquision =A=t+-8 ZEERE MEZE
ARER RORS TEEH FsRHYE BREAL WA ZRAE Bl FERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TEL
1 Royal Century Resources Holdings 8125 Provision of design and fitting-out services, design 84,612,000 16.19% 15121 4738 0.53% (4,305)
Limited and procurement of fumishings and related
CRERRRERAR products services, money lending and sourcing
and merchandising of fine and rare wines
RERETRELRE  RERKER
RBGEREEERRE.
B UREHEEE
2 China Best Group Holding Limited 310 Alr freight forwarding and brokers for airline and 30,000,000 0.59% 12,660 4,500 0.50% (1,320
HEEEERERAR shipping companies, trading of securities and
goods, freight forwarding agent, provision of
finance lease services and finance consultancy
services, money lending services, securities
brokerage services, futures brokerage services,
residential and commercial property agency
services, building architecture and interior
design services and property investment
TENRME R ARSE BFEERERE
¥ SERE RERAHERE SRHAR
K EBRG BHEERY BEELRE
EERBEDELLRG EFRERENR
SRERRENE
3 Evershine Group Holdings Limited 8022 Trading business, mobile application business, 23,628,000 1.09% 8,624 402 0.04% (27,243)
KREERRERAR properties development and investment
business, cemetery business and money
lending business
2555 FHERES
25 DERERREER
REZBREEES
4 Others 13192 7,460 0.83% (5,570)
Eft
49,597 17,100 (38,438)
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PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING BY THE GROUP

Competition

The Group competes in the finance leasing business market and
financial services business market with other competitors in the
PRC and Hong Kong respectively, which may have substantially
greater financial or other resources than the Group. The Group
may also face competition from new entrants to the industry
having business objectives similar to the Group and have greater
financial resources. If the Group fail to maintain its advantages in
cost control, customer base and quality of service, it may lose its
market share in the market.

Business Concentration

A significant portion of the Group's revenues is derived from the
operations in the PRC. Unfavourable events in the country could
disrupt our overall business, lower our revenues, and impact the
valuation of our assets.

Furthermore, the revenue derived from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 70% (2019: 69%) of the total revenue
for the year ended 31 March 2020. If one of the five largest
customers experiencing significant financial difficulty could lower
our revenues and the collectability of the trade receivables.

Financial Risk

Financial risk factors include credit risk, market risk and liquidity
risk. Details of the aforesaid financial risk factors and the
respective risk management measures are set out in Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have significant contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2020.

COMMITMENTS
Details of the commitments are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31 March 2020, the Group employed approximately 57
(2019: 60) employees. The Group continues to maintain and
upgrade the capabilities of its workforce by providing them
with adequate and regular training. The Group remunerates its
Directors and employees mainly based on industry practices
and individual’s performance and experience. On top of regular
remuneration, discretionary bonus and share options may be
granted to eligible staff by reference to the Group’s performance
as well as individual's performance.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to
meet its immediate and long-term business goals. During the
year under review, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to maintain high environmental
standards to ensure sustainable development of its business.
During the year ended 31 March 2020, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, the Group complied with the relevant laws,
rules and regulation that have a significant impact on the Group
in relation to its business. The Group has always encouraged
all employees to participate environmental activities to make
contribution to the community.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Board believes that good governance is essential to the
maintenance of the Group’s competitiveness and to its healthy
growth. The Company has adopted practices which meet the
requirements of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”")
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure its continuous compliance with the CG Code.
The Company has been in compliance with all code provisions set
out in the CG Code for the year ended 31 March 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of the
Group and its duties include the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, business strategies, internal control systems,
material transactions, appointment of directors and other
significant operational, financial and legal compliance matters.
The Board delegates the authority to manage the daily affairs of
the Group to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the senior management
on behalf of the Group.

Specifically in relation to corporate governance function, the
Board is responsible for the corporate governance function as a
whole, and establishes an internal control group to be responsible
for the specific operation. During the year ended 31 March 2020
and up to the date of this report, the Board had performed the
following duties:

1. Developing and reviewing relevant corporate governance
policy and practice of the Company;

2. Reviewing and inspecting continuous professional
development and training of Directors and senior
management;

3. Reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the
Company being in compliance with the statutory and other

regulatory provisions;

4. Developing, reviewing and checking code and provision of
conducts applicable to the Directors and employees; and

5. Reviewing that the Company being in compliance with the
CG Code and corporate governance reporting requirements.
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All Directors are provided with monthly updates on the business
and market changes and the Company’s performance, position
and prospectus to enable the Board as a whole and each Director
to discharge their duties. All Directors have full and timely access
to all relevant information in relation to the Group as well as the
advice from and services provided by the company secretary, if
and when required, with a view to ensure that the procedures
are in compliance and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

There are established procedures for Directors upon
reasonable request, to seek independent advice in appropriate
circumstances for them to discharge their duties and
responsibilities, at the Company’s expenses.

Directors’ Liabilities Insurance

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect
of potential legal actions against the Directors arising out of
corporate activities of the Group pursuant to Code Provision A.1.8
of the CG Code. Such directors” liability insurance will be reviewed
and renewed annually.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, no claim has been
made against the Directors.

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises 2
executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors
from different businesses and professional fields. The Directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a
balance of valuable and diversified businesses and professional
expertises, experiences and independent judgment to the
Board for its efficient and effective management of the Group’s
business.

The Board during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the
date of this report has comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Zheng Juhua — Chairlady
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen — Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Man Kwok Leung — Chairman of Nomination Committee
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter — Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth — Chairman of Audit Committee

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material relationship) between any members of the Board.
The composition of the Board reflects a diverse yet balanced set
of skills and experience which is essential for effective leadership
of the Company. Biographic details of Directors are disclosed in
the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
section of the Report of the Directors.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company. The Directors have disclosed to the Company the
number and nature of offices held in Hong Kong or overseas
listed public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments, with the identity of the public companies and
organisations and an indication of the time involved. They are
also reminded to notify the Company in a timely manner of any
change of such information.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQ") are held by different persons for purpose of maintaining
independence and a more balanced basis for judgments and
decisions. The key role of the Chairlady is to provide leadership
to the Board. In performing her duties, the Chairlady shall
ensure that the Board functions effectively in the discharge of its
responsibilities. The Chairlady also has the responsibility of taking
the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company and the Group.

The key role of the CEQ is to be responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Company and business of the
Group. The duties of the CEO mainly include:

. providing leadership and supervising the effective
management of the Company;

. monitoring and controlling the financial and operational
performance of various divisions; and

. implementing the strategy and policies adopted by the

Company, setting and implementing objectives and
development plans.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, of whom Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth has appropriate
professional qualifications and related experiences in financial
matters.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of their independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

During the year, each of the independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of 1 year which could be terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than 1 month'’s written notice.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the bye-laws of the Company
(the "Bye-laws”). The Company has established a nomination
committee to assist the Board for reviewing its composition,
monitoring the appointment and independence, where applicable,
of Directors, and identifying suitable and qualified individuals to
become board members where necessary.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not greater than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation but shall be eligible for re-election,
provided that every director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. The directors (including those
appointed for a special term) to retire in every year shall be those
who have been longest in office since their last election but as
between persons who became directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves)
be determined by lot. Any Director appointed by the Directors
either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation.

BYFHITES

RIE A AISE3.10(1) 1 K&3.10Q)16 - ARR]IE
RE=ZRBIFITER EFFTHELER
MBI HABEENEXERMARLR-

RiF EMARRAEIBERZRTE AR FE WE
BERUFRTEFTIEMFEBLIERERE -
ARBRL RELTRAAEIES FAEB
MIFRITEFHEBIL -

RER BBIFATEFS BARAR LR
Bad REF JlREF-—TRRs—HED
ALRVEREERMM AL -

BEESCZE BEBRER

EFEZ I EEREREFDERNARRZ
RAEARAI ([REIHR]) - ARBERUERR
B WhESeEHEAR ERERZZE
EERBLM (WER)  FRERERNEEE
RAEERALTRREFTEKE -

RIBATMA - EAER TR R =R
MMAZESEABEZRE T —RARFR
RAFKRE ERENEEREEET

REERRBEFAE L EREETZ=0—2
EX(JWEFABALNF=H=2FHK Al
REMENBE=7 &%) AREREE
NEEREREL MBRAEFAELE=F
RE-R-BFREZEF (BEABEEH
ZECER)ARB L RERREIYRERZ
EX BEMEZREEINA-REZE B
DHBREBREZANE RIZFEERE
HEEAERm BRERLESFHEZIRE
ERERERT ENABEFRENEMRES
EERIFMMARBEZTE2ES HIHEW
AEER-

ZECTEFHR

23

\,




4

HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

24

A E R IR

Induction and Continuous Professional
Development for Directors

Each newly appointed director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/
her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has proper
understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary.

The Directors are continuously updated on latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by them.

The Directors are committed to comply with Code Provision A.6.5
of CG Code on directors’ training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board will be informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities during the year under review.
In addition to their own participation in professional training,
relevant training and reading materials was provided to the
Directors by the Company in the year to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board
remains informed and relevant.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diversed Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives and sustainable development.
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The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to talents, skills, experience, independence and knowledge. The
Company will also take into consideration its own business model
and specific needs from time to time. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and
monitoring the implementation of the Diversity Policy to ensure
the effectiveness of the Diversity Policy.

Remuneration of Directors

Independent non-executive Directors are paid fees generally
in line with market practice and taking into consideration the
responsibilities and time spent by Independent non-executive
Directors on the Company's affairs. The remuneration of
Executive Directors is determined by the chairlady of the Board in
consultation with the Remuneration Committee after taking into
consideration market trends and responsibilities and performance
of the individual with a view to provide attractive reward to and
retain high performing individuals.

Responsibilities in Respect of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, including Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
applicable Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibilities to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are published in a timely manner.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires, they
are not aware of any material uncertainty relating to events of
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditor, Lau & Au Yeung C.PA.
Limited, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
86 10 99.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and Board activities are
efficiently and effectively conducted. These objectives are
achieved through adherence to proper Board processes and the
timely preparation and dissemination to Directors comprehensive
meeting agendas and papers. Minutes of all Board meetings and
Board Committees are prepared and maintained by the Company
Secretary to record in sufficient details the matters considered
and decisions reached by the Board or Committee, including
any concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any Director.
All draft and final minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board Committees are sent to Directors and Committee members
respectively for comments and records and are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and that it takes
these into consideration when making decisions for the Group.
From time to time, he/she organises seminars on specific topics
of significance and interest and disseminate reference materials
to the Directors for their information.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the
Group’s compliance with all obligations of the Listing Rules
and Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
including the preparation, publication and despatch of annual
reports and interim reports within the time limits laid down in the
Listing Rules, the timely dissemination to shareholders and the
market of information relating to the Group.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings in the
Group's securities, connected transactions and inside information
and ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in the
annual report of the Company.

Annual Report 2020
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The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. Whilst
the Company Secretary reports to the Chairman, all members of
the Board have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary. Ms. Chan Wai Fung (“Ms. Chan”) has been appointed
as the Company Secretary in February 2017. Ms. Chan joined the
Group since June 2011 and she has day-to-day knowledge of
the Group's affairs. In response to specific enquiries made, the
Company Secretary confirmed that she has complied with all the
required qualifications, experience and training requirements of
the Listing Rules.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Group. Notices
of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14
days before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally
given for other Board meetings.

For committee meetings, notices are served in accordance
with the required notice period stated in the relevant terms of
reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are normally sent to all Directors before
each Board meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Group and to enable
them to make informed decisions. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to senior management whenever necessary.

Apart from the regular board meetings, the Board met on other
occasions from time to time when a board-level decision on a
particular matter was required.

Guidelines are in place which stipulate that any material matter
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or Director will be dealt with at a duly convened Board meeting.
The Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions stipulating the
procedures according to which any material matters involving
conflict of interests are to be approved at Board meeting.
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Minutes of all Board meetings, recording sufficient details of
matters considered and decisions reached, are kept by the
secretary of the meetings, and are open for inspection by the
Directors.

During the year, a meeting have been held by the independent
non-executive directors and the Chairman without the executive
directors present (the “Independent Meeting”), 24 Board meetings
and 2 general meeting were also held and the individual
attendance of each Director is set out below:

PMAEESEeR SR BEOHEAERFEEAR
FIEREZFHE YHREIWERERAFRMH

AEENERFEBLIIFATEFRITT KR
BRTESRHENES ([BUEH]) 18T
TUREZGEHEL2ABRAE TEEZRE
RIHEBRNT

Meetings Attended/Meetings Held

BHEZEE CEITZEE

Independent
Directors General Meeting Board Meeting Meeting
- BEAE EEEER ByEH
Ms. Zheng Juhua (P 2/2 24/24 1/1
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BRAER A 2/2 24/24 N/A i@ F
Mr. Man Kwok Leung SEREE 2/2 24/24 11
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter FACKE 2/2 24/24 1/1
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth Sy 2/2 24/24 11
BOARD COMMITTEES EEXEE

The Board has established 3 committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) for overseeing particular aspects
of the Group's affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority of the members of each Board committees are
independent non-executive Directors. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
company’s expenses.
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Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises the following independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely:

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman)
Mr. Man Kwok Leung
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

The Audit Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chi Chi
Hung, Kenneth, who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner
of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
which lay down clearly its authority and duties. The main duties of
the Audit Committee include the followings:

(@  To review the consolidated financial statements and reports
and consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
Group's staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or auditor;

(b)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures;

() To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectively and the effectiveness of the audit; and

(d) To review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of management, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of external auditor.
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The Audit Committee performed the work during the year
includes the followings:

o reviewed the annual and interim reports of the Company
as to whether they are in compliance with the accounting
standards and relevant requirements in relation to financial
reporting under the Listing Rules and other laws,

o reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group; and

. reviewed the Group's accounting principles and practices,
financial reporting and statutory compliance matters.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, four meetings have been
held by the Audit Committee to approve the re-appointment
of the auditor, review the audit service plan for the year ended
31 March 2019, approve the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 and to review the
unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements
(including accounting policies and practices adopted) of the
Group for the six months ended 30 September 2019 and
recommended such consolidated financial statements to the
Board for approval.

In the meeting of the Audit Committee of June 2020, the Audit
Committee reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, the consolidated financial statements and
other reports for the year ended 31 March 2020 and discuss any
significant audit matters with the Company’s external auditor
and the senior management before recommending them to
the Board for consideration and approval. The Audit Committee
recommended the Board in relation to the re-appointment of Lau
& Au Yeung C.PA. Limited as the Company’s external auditor for
the ensuring year at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at the
meeting during the year ended 31 March 2020 is as follows:
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Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman) — ZEM5e 4 (£ /E, 4/4
Mr. Man Kwok Leung SRR LE 4/4
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RACKE 4/4
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely:

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Chairman)
Mr. Man Kwok Leung
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

The Remuneration Committee has specific written terms of
reference which lay down clearly its authority and duties.
The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
followings:

(@ To review, recommend and approve the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management;

(b)  To review, recommend and approve performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

(c) To determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management;

(d) To review, recommend and approve the compensation
payable to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment; and

(e) To establish transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

The Remuneration Committee performed the work during the
year includes the followings:

o reviewed the remuneration policy for the Directors and
senior management; and

o reviewed and approved, with delegated responsibility from
the Board, the remuneration package of each Director and
the senior management including bonus payment, pension
right and compensation payable.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, two meetings have
been held by the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee had discussed and reviewed the remuneration
packages for all Directors and senior management.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee
at the meeting during the year ended 31 March 2020 is as follows:

RBE_Z-_TF=A=+—HILFEAR %
MWEZBEeCBTMAER - FTHEEECHH
FigR A EERSRERAB ZHMTE-

RBE-_Z_TF=-_A=+—HLFEARN F
MEZBEEERBHESZNBERNT

Director Name Attendance
EENS HE =
Mr. YU Pak Yan, Peter (Chairman) RACKE (£/E) 2/2
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BRHREE 2/2
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEERE 2/2

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises the Chairman and the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely:

Mr. Man Kwok Leung (Chairman)
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

Ms. Zheng Juhua

The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of
reference which lay down clearly its authority and duties. The
main duties of the Nomination Committee include the followings:

(@ To review the criteria and procedures of selection
of Directors and senior management, and provide
suggestions;

(b) To conduct extensive search for qualified candidates of
Directors and senior management;

() To review the Board diversity policy and the progress on
achieving the objectives set for implementing the said

policy; and

(d) To assess the candidates for Directors and senior
management and provide the relevant recommendations.
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Nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the Nomination Committee include the followings:

o assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors,

o in considering the nomination of new Directors, the
Nomination Committee will take into account a range of
diversity perspectives, which would include but not be
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service of the individual as the selection criteria; and

o identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, a meeting has been
held by the Nomination Committee to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.
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The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee REE-_Z-_ZF=A=1+—HIFFERN 12
Director at the meeting during the year ended 31 March 2020 is &ZEZEB@&KELFEHNBRMOT:

as follows:

Director Name Attendance
BEENS HE =R
Mr. Man Kwok Leung (Chairman) BRRLEE (FE) 11
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth ZEMEAE 11
M. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RBECRE 171
Ms. Zheng Juhua B IE L 11
INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY AEHEHEE

The Board adopted the Inside Information Policy, which contains
the guidelines to the Directors, senior management and all
relevant employees (likely possessing the unpublished inside
information) of the Group to ensure that the inside information
of the Group is to be disseminated to public in equal and timely
manner in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its own code regarding securities transactions by
Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and employees
of the Group who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company. The Company has
received written confirmation from each Director that they have
complied with the codes throughout the year. Details of Directors’
interest are disclosed in the “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” section of the Report of the Directors.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis,
and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is also responsible
for establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems with regard to the
objectives of the Group. The established systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or 10ss.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, has conducted a review, via an appointed
professional firm to perform internal audit function, on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, covering financial, operational, compliance
and risk management aspects. The systems were considered
effective and adequate.

The Group adopts a complete process style of risk management
in a functional bottom up manner, including risk identification,
assessment, evaluation and treatment. The functional areas
across the Group provide input of risks with treatments, which
are appraised and maintained. The risk management system, as
well as the internal control system, are continuous, proactive and
systematic processes.

With the implementation of internal audit function, the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems is reviewed by conducting internal audit assignments.
Recommendations for major observations of control weaknesses
from the audits will be provided, so as to resolve material internal
control defects.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Company's external auditors are Lau & Au Yeung C.PA.
Limited. There has been no change in the Company’s external
auditors for the preceding three years.

The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature and
service charges of the non-audit services to be performed by
the Company'’s external auditor, Lau & Au Yeung C.PA. Limited,
and considered that such services have no adverse effect on the
independence of their audit works.

A summary of audit services provided by the external auditor for
the year and their corresponding remunerations is as follows:

BB B
$”A§J9I\E‘B$Z§5(Eﬂi7,%§ul&ﬂ S EHAAR
ﬁ ﬂ£E¢W$’AETZ$7\\ SAZERED L AT

ERZEGRANSARNE ZINEZHENRIES
SR EBAARABBITIFEEZRBZEE
FIRBHE BRAHERRTE 2B IEL &
BRAEEZE-

AR - SMB AR BN 2 BB HEE I
REAEMEOT

Nature of services Amount

R E -t

HK$'000

FET

Audit services for the year ended 31 March 2020 850
HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=-+—HIFEZEZRS

Non-audit services 90

IEEZIRT

AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPANY'S
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has not
amended its Bye-laws.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board will takes into account the financial
results, general business conditions and strategies and the
capital requirements of the Group. The Board will also consider
the possible effects on the Company’s creditworthiness and the
Company’s shareholders’ interests. The payment of dividend is
also subject to any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the
laws of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the Company.
The Company currently does not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio.

i3
_H.
!
]
fut
i
St
=
F
=
Il

EREEERBERBERETR SRR
EEeRERAKENY B EE  —REBN
MARRERERFR -EEGHEEEA LY
ARBEENTERARBRR 2 BE
MERNMZIBREER BEERRAR
R SR A RIFT AR © N2 B B A3 (TR
BRAEEHIRER-

ZECTEFHR

35

\,

N\



4

HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

36

A E R IR

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general
meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up share capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at the general meetings
of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require
a special general meeting (“SGM") to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene a
SGM must deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed
by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Suite 2202, 22nd Floor,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
for the attention of the Company Secretary.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails
to proceed to convene such SGM, the Eligible Shareholder(s)
himself/herself/themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

Right To Nominate Directors For Election At General
Meetings

Shareholder who wishes to propose a person other than a
Director of the Company for election as a Director must deposit
a written notice (the “Notice”) to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at Suite 2202, 22nd Floor, China
Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, or
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited (the “Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar”), at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary. The Notice must state clearly
the name of the Shareholder(s) and his/her/their shareholding,
the full name of the person proposed for election as a Director,
including the person’s biographical details as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned (not the person to be nominated). The Notice must
also be accompanied by a letter of consent signed by the person
nominated to be elected on his/her willingness to be elected as a
Director.
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The period for lodgment of the Notice will commence on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting held for
the election of Directors and end no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

The Notice will be verified by the Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in compliance with the rules of procedures, the Company
Secretary will ask the nomination committee of the Company
and the Board to consider to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting proposing such person to be elected
as a Director. The right and procedures to convene a general
meeting and to demand a poll on resolutions at general meetings
by Shareholders are set out in the Company’'s amended bye-
laws headed “General Meetings”, “Notice Of General Meetings”,
“Proceedings At General Meetings” and “Voting”.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting

The Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of those Shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the Shareholders concerned, can submit a written
requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholders concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the
Shareholders concerned).

The written requisition must be deposited to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Suite 2202, 22nd
Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary not less than six
weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week in the case of
any other requisition.

BB HIREN S ERITEEEEHIER
BRASBAZHRMBLETERABRREA
FRYAEO)RER-

BAKHBERMBPELIRRE  NHER
FARDVBEENTERFERER 2ARWES
ERARANREZEGREZTSERHRE
EMAREZATZ2EBEENRRAEGHNFE
B BRAMARRAEMRRERAE EEKR
FURBRETREFRORNERN RIEF - HRA
REZEEFT 2 ARARAIR TIRERAE] - Th
RAgBE] [BMRAEHRE] R[RR]EH
o

RERRAELREBRZER

BRINFBARBRRAG LHEARER IR
BRERTOR D2 HTAPR—BE
BRARERFERE  ERXNBEERANEG LEFE—
HRZES - ER BB AREREAE-

EREMAEIRER  BEMM — 17 T Z701,000
FRRNEHRBREMBAEEZRA YHE
BERERRES AAZHRABUZ XM
(B XM HAE2EAERRES) AKX -

FERENBARARGRITAIA DR NELE (10
BEABRBAZFER) ITPR—EEZH (1
BIAEMBER)EXEARNAREENEE
BRI (MU BB E(T A EE26RERK
[E22182202% ) + WHEAA R A M E UK -

ZECTEFHR

\,

37

N\



4

HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

38

A E R IR

The signatures and the requisition will be verified by the
Company’s branch share registrar. Upon verification that the
request is valid, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
(i) include the resolution in the agenda for the annual general
meeting; or (i) convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to
all the Shareholders, provided that the Shareholders concerned
have deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board recognizes the importance of continuing
communications with the Company’s shareholders and investors,
and maintains ongoing dialogues with them through various
channels. The primary communication channel between the
Company and its shareholders is through the publication of its
interim and annual reports.

The Company’s registrars serve the shareholders with respect to
all share registration matters.

The Company's annual general meeting provides a useful forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Board
members and management of the Company are available to
answer shareholders’ questions and explain the procedures
for demanding and conducting a poll, if necessary. Any relevant
information and documents on proposed resolutions are normally
sent to all shareholders at least 21 clear days before the annual
general meeting.

All shareholders” communications, including interim and annual
reports, announcements and press releases are available on the
Company’s website at www.chaoshang.hk. The latest business
developments and core strategies of the Company can also be
found on the website, keeping the communications with investors
open and transparent.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public who may contact the Company by
phone on (852) 2598 9868 during normal business hours, by fax at
(852) 2598 9878 or by e-mail at info@chaoshang.hk.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting Scope And Standard

Hong Kong ChaoShang Group Limited (formerly known as
“Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited”) (the “Company”
or “ChaoShang”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
is pleased to present its annual Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (“ESG Report”) to disclose information on
the Group's policies, guidelines, actions and performance on the
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) issues.

This ESG Report covers the reporting period from 1 April 2019 to
31 March 2020 (the “Reporting Year”) and it has been prepared in
accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) provided
in Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX"). The Guide encourages
a listing company to identify and disclose ESG information that is
material and relevant to both its business and its stakeholders.

During the Reporting Year, the Group carried on its business
through three business segments, consisting of trading, financial
services (including money lending and factoring, finance leasing,
securities brokerage and asset management), and vessel
chartering. The securities brokerage and asset management
business was newly acquired in Jan 2020 and we had disposed
the vessel chartering business in March 2020. The above business
activities represent all of our operations in Hong Kong and the
PRC and has contributed to all the Group’s turnover for the
Reporting Year.

In this ESG report, we have adopted the reporting principles as
proposed in the Guide for materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency to incorporate more relevant contents and to present
information in a way that can meet better expectation of our
stakeholders.
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Governance Structure and Approach to ESG
Strategy and Reporting

Our ESG strategy is developed for aligning the Group's philosophy
and objectives of creating long-term value for our stakeholders.
The board of directors (the “Board”) sets out ESG objectives
and direction for the Group and oversees the ESG development
and co-ordinates with the responsible financial controller for
delegating the ESG responsibilities to the ESG working group. The
ESG working group consists of the external ESG advisor, managers
of major departments in Hong Kong and the general manager in
the PRC and is led by the financial controller in Hong Kong.

The working group is responsible for advising the top
management and the Board on the ESG strategies and ESG
initiatives for achieving the objectives as set by the Board. It
needs to ensure the ESG principles and practices are embedded
in every departments of the Group and in the relevant aspects of
our business. It is also responsible for ensuring the ESG initiatives
are properly carried out and the effectiveness of which is
monitored for on-going sustainability development.
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Stakeholder Engagement

We are committed to the long-term sustainability of its business,
as well as providing support to environmental protection and the
communities in which it operates. We believe that stakeholders’
participation is important in the sustainable development and
value creation for our Group. The stakeholder engagement is
an important process to understand and identify the material
ESG issues in our operations. To start with, we identify those
key stakeholders who are concerned with our social and
environmental policies and strategies that would have impact
on them. We then connect and communicate with major
stakeholders of each category in order to understand more of
their concerns on our ESG issues. The stakeholder engagement is
a continuous process and we keep on identifying and connecting
those stakeholders who are concerned with our ESG issues
The following diagram illustrates the key stakeholders we have
engaged during the Reporting Year:
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We regularly listen and collect our key stakeholders” views and
interests to understand their expectations through different
channels:

J Physical meeting in person

o Government and regulators’ announcement and circulars
° Seminars, workshops and trainings

o Telephone, fax and email

o Opinions collected through business trading

o Community news and activities

Through the stakeholder engagement process, we identify
opportunities and challenges, and also develop business

development strategies to improve our corporate social
responsibilities.
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Our Sustainable Value Creation Process

Our ESG framework governs how our objectives are translated
into sustainability performance. In the stakeholder engagement
process, we identify key stakeholders and get understanding
on their expectations. Materiality assessment is carried out by
plotting a matrix of relevance and importance to get an insight
into the relative importance of specific ESG issues for our
stakeholders. Through the assessment result, we understand
and identify the material ESG issues and the respective risks
associated in our operations. Our decision process can prioritise
those relevant and important issues and focus on these issues in
long term planning.

Our ESG working group then formulates ESG initiatives and
arranges activities for achieving the ESG objectives. It makes
sure there are adequate manpower and financial resources
to meet the strategic plans and ensures the initiatives and
practices are properly executed. Policies are enhanced and
improved where they are inadequate to meet the ESG objectives.
The ESG performance and results are communicated and fed
back to Board regularly and the Board would evaluate if the
ESG objectives and strategic plans are needed to revise and
improve. ESG data are accumulated continuously and are
analysed annually using the key performance indicators (‘KPI") for
reporting to the stakeholders and for evaluation of sustainability
performance.

e Enforce initiatives
T

e Evaluate effectiveness

RRAlRK
e Policy enhancement
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¢ Medium and f’:;:ﬁﬁ;
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* Resources allocation
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Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please share your views with us via email at
info@chaoshang.hk.

PROTECT OUR ENVIRONMENT

Environmental Management

As an environmentally responsible company, we are aware
of our social responsibilities on environmental protection and
strive for minimising the adverse impact of our operations on
the environment. We integrate the environmental considerations
into our strategic business planning process in order to minimise
the impact of our operations on the environment. We have
established a corporate culture of environmental conservation
in our Group and our staff are using their enthusiasm and
expertise to contribute their efforts to reduce the environmental
impacts resulting from our business activities. To enhance the
environmental awareness of our staff, we also establish and
continuously update appropriate policies and procedures to
reduce carbon footprint, to use resources efficiently and to use
the natural resources properly.

Law Compliance

We are committed to complying with the applicable laws and
regulations for environmental protection and achieving continual
improvement on our environmental performance. The Group had
complied with the following environmental laws and regulations
for the trading and financial services businesses:

In Hong Kong:

° Waste Disposal Ordinance

o Air Pollution Ordinance

o Noise Control Ordinance

° Water Pollution Control Ordinance

In the PRC:

. Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China {(##E A R EFBIRBREE)
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For the vessel chartering business, under the management of our
shipping agent, our vessel had complied with the International
Management Code for the Safe Operations of Ships and for
Pollution Prevention (the “ISM Code”). The ISM code aims to
ensure the safety in maritime traffic, to prevent injuries and
deaths to persons, and to prevent damage to the maritime
environment. As our vessel was registered in the PRC, our vessel
had obtained the safety management certificate and document of
compliance issued by the Maritime Bureau of the PRC.

Our vessel was also in compliance with the Regulations of the
PRC for the Prevention of Pollution from Ships and the Marine
Environment Protection Law of the PRC for discharging oils, oily
mixtures, wastes and other toxic substances. In addition, our
vessel had obtained pollution prevention certificate in the PRC.
The pollutants discharged by the vessel were in compliance with
the Discharge Standard of China. The vessel had also obtained
verifications and certificates relating to water and oil pollution
issued by Maritime Bureau of the PRC.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with environmental laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the Group.

Emissions and Resources Management

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of
environmental protection awareness and to operating our
business in a safe and environment friendly manner. We
encourage our staff to make contributions to environmental
protection through efficient use of resources and resource
conservation. We have set out policies on reducing the use of
natural resources in the staff handbook.
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Energy Consumption

Fuel consumption by the vehicles and electricity consumption
in the offices are the main sources of our air emissions and
greenhouse gas (‘GHG") emissions in our operations. In the
Reporting Year, the use of vehicles for visiting customers or other
business purposes was reduced due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
As a result, the Group's vehicles consumed a total of 19,800
litres of fuel during the Reporting Year which was 22% less than
last year. Our vessel was chartered out for the whole year till we
disposed the vessel chartering business in March 2020. During
the charter, all fuel was responsible by the charterer. As such, our
vessel chartering business did not consume any fuel and did not
produce any GHG during the year.

Electricity consumption in our offices is another source of GHG
emissions of the Group. For this year, the electricity consumption
had inevitably increased by 34% despite we had implemented
a lot of power saving measures. We have started the securities
brokerage and asset management business in January 2020
and a large office was needed for the operations. In response to
the COVID-19 pandemic, the operating hours for our Hong Kong
offices were extended in the first quarter of 2020 for our staff to
increase the flexibility of the staffs making work arrangements,
S0 as to avoid the crowds during rush hour. In addition, we have
purchased some new air purifiers in the offices for eliminating
germs and viruses to ensure the health of our staff. We used
more electricity for air-conditioners in our PRC office during the
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Reporting Year as a result of the extreme hot weather during the — Z&XUEIZa0T :
long summer. The KPI for the energy consumption is as follows:
2020 2019
KPI - ENERGY CONSUMPTION ERARER -HEHER —E=% —FT—n
Direct energy consumption - Fuel BEEREHEZE - RB
Vehicles BHif
— Usage (litres) —fFAE (AF) 19,800 25,600
- Intensity (litres/average no. of employees) —®E
(2F/BEFHE) 338 430
Vessel A
— Usage (litres) —fFRE (AFH) - 34,300
- Intensity (litres/no. of voyage) =B (2F/EHKE) - 17,150
Indirect energy consumption - Electricity RiZREERE S
- Usage (kwh) —FRE (TRR) 103,640 77,000
- Intensity (kwh/average no. of employees) —HE
(TR RBEFHH) 1,772 1,294
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Air and GHG emissions

In this Reporting Year, all of the Group’s air emissions and GHG
emissions were generated from the trading and financial services
business. Due to the reduction in fuel consumption for our
vehicles, the air emissions and GHG emissions as caused by fuel
consumption had reduced significantly by more than 22% as
compared with last year. As a result of the increase in electricity
consumption because of higher electricity demand, the GHG
emissions from electricity consumption of the Group for the

BERRBEERBHER

RAREFERN  AEEZ 2EERF MO8
ERBHNIELEEINERREEE A

R T RAE@OMREER  BEFRAL

Eﬁkﬁiﬂ/ﬁﬁ%lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁmﬁﬂ/ EREHME
AR D 1B 3822% - FREMEHAE
=il K%lb’éﬁi&ﬁﬁ BEELMEERE
BEREIE N T41% -

current year increased by 41%.

Our vessel chartering business had no GHG emissions in this
year due to no fuel consumption as compared with the 111
tonnes CO2- Of last year. Together with the small amount of GHG
emissions generated from paper waste and business air travel by
our staff, the total GHG emissions of the Group for this Reporting
Year was 126.6 tonnes CO2e which was 47% significantly less than

AR IR0

HiR B RERE

IMEEEFRAFE L FBRE:
BERC BLEF M — &1t
REEA/1ME - ERKME THABEREBHR
TMEEANLVEREREHN NEBARS
EFE’N‘iﬂﬁ“%3?)551&@52%,126.6@;&:%%6&

last year.
2020 2019
KPI - Air Emissions FTERREE-BREK —E-F —Z=—A,
Air Emissions BER BN kg2 fr kg R T
- Nitrogen Oxides (“NOx") —R&E L (TRsE/im]) 12.67 16.51
— Sulphur Oxides ("SOx") —maty (ThsEtml) 0.29 0.38
— Particulate Matter (“PM") —BIZRF ([BFHF ) 0.93 1.22
2020 2019
KPI - GHG Emissions FEAENEE-REREER —ZE=-F -1
GHG Emissions BERBEHEN tonnes CO2. tonnes COze
WG tREE —afLiRES
Scope 1: direct emissions from fuel — vehicles FEN - RBREEEN
BEEHWR—EH 53.6 69.3
Scope 1: direct emissions from fuel — vessel #HE BRI E SR
EEBER MM - 111.1
Scope 2: indirect emissions from electricity #E2 - EHEEEHEN 66.5 47.2
Scope 3: other indirect emissions from paper HES : EENEHERITH
waste & business air travel H R 6.6 11.5
Total GHG Emissions mERBYE R EE 126.7 239.1
GHG Emissions Intensity BERBEREZE
Trading and financial services business B9 Re R ER
(tonnes COz</average no. of employees) (BE—EixE £
ﬁ,\ii@%l) 2.1 2.1
Vessel chartering business MR E R
(tonnes COze/no. of voyage) (B-—f{tixE=
Hjﬁn IRE) - 55.6
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Environmental Protection Measures

Although our direct impact to the environment is limited, we
strive to contribute to environmental protection. We have set out
clear policies to minimise the air emissions and GHG emissions.
Various measures are implemented to reduce the usage of
energy, increase energy efficiency and reduce the waste.

Energy Saving

Air emissions and GHG emissions are directly attributable
to the fuel consumption. We closely monitor the use of our
motor vehicles by keeping travel logs in order to minimise
fuel consumption. We also encourage our staff to take public
transportations for business travels when it is possible. Our motor
vehicles are required to take regular maintenance in order to
keep up fuel efficiency on fuel combustion and to reduce air
pollutant emissions.

Electricity consumption is indirectly related to carbon emissions.
We have taken various eco-friendly measures in our offices
to reduce carbon emissions. We turn off computers, printers,
lightings, air-conditioners and other electronic equipment when
they will not be used. Air conditioners are turned on only when
temperature is high in summer in our PRC offices and the air
conditioner filters are cleaned regularly to improve cooling
efficiency.

Save Paper and Reduce Air Travel

Consumption of paper in our offices and air travelling for business
are indirectly related to GHG emissions. We continuously remind
our staff to save paper in our office. We encourage double
sided printing for documents, and reusing waste paper for
printing draft documents. To further reduce the use of paper
for printing and photocopying, we instructed our staff to use
electronic communications and electronic filing of document
as far as possible. For reducing air travelling, we require our
staff to carefully plan their air travels so that more places of the
customers and suppliers can be visited in the same trip.
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Waste Management

In view of the nature of our businesses, we do not produce
any hazardous waste. Non-hazardous waste produced in the
offices are paper waste and office supplies waste. The total
non-hazardous waste produced from our offices during the
Reporting Year was about 2.5 tonnes and was decreased by
64% as compared with last year. It was due to a large amount
of construction and demolition waste was produced from the
refurbishment of our PRC office in the last corresponding year. We
endeavour to reduce the impacts of non-hazardous waste to the
environment. We have implemented policy for separating waste
in our office that plastic bottles, metal cans and waste paper
are separated for recycling. Also, the used toner cartridges for
printing machines are collected by suppliers for recycling.

Non-hazardous waste on the vessel was handled by our shipping
agent in accordance with the International Convention for the
Prevention of Pollutions from Ships. A garbage management
plan had been set up in accordance with the guidelines of
International Maritime Organization for the collection, storage,
processing and disposal of garbage.

BEYER
ERBEMNEBEE BN T T2EEAERAESE
REWD e M AEEANBEREY AERRIAR
MmEEY - RREPANEMBLAETEENES
1) 48 8 5 #92.5MF - B 25 4F 8 T %664% 0 1tk
TEHRREFRBENRMANFRPQAZHME
HEZRERBENFEREY - HMENIR &
EEVEHRBENTE - BMERAZTERETE
WMAERE BBE SBEMEADRETT
e FHh ERITHRRD S REEFIE
WERFA -

i AR A B B W P s AR FOIR AR IR B R e A
BRIDARKIERE - ARRHRKE - #F &
B REERYEREERESMEMNIESIFITE
EYE R

2020 2019

KPI - WASTE TEEREE-BY —E-Z —ZE-A

tonnes W tonnes A

Total non-hazardous waste produced BERVELLS 2.5 6.9
Non-hazardous waste intensity mERBEYEE

(tonnes/average no. of employees) (Mg I 8 F19%0) 0.04 0.12

Water Conservation

In Hong Kong, water is supplied by the property management
company and we have no control on the water supply. We are
responsible for the water supply and usage in our office in the
PRC. We do not have any poisonous or hazardous discharge
made into water drainage. The amount of water consumption by
the PRC office was slightly decreased as compared with last year,
partly due to less working days for the current year and partly to
the efforts taken by our staff. As a policy water conservation, we
have posted notices at prominent places in our offices to remind
our staff to save water.
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The Group does not have any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
the business purpose.
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2020 2019

KPI - WATER CONSUMPTION TEEREE-AKE —Z2=-F —ZE—N

m? m?3

3 75K K

Usage FK 108 120
Intensity (m?/average no. of employees) #E (M AKX/ ’REF

) 1.85 2.03

The Environment and Natural Resources

Although the Group's trading and financial services businesses
have little impact on the environment and natural resources, the
Group endeavours to minimise negative environmental impacts
of our operations and to promote sustainable development
for the Group. Due to our business nature, the Group does not
require any packaging material.

NURTURE OUR TALENTS

Recruiting and Retaining Talents

Fair Employment Policies

We value our talents and we believe they are critical to our
long-term development and success. Fair and comprehensive
human resources policies are important for recruiting the
desired candidates and maintaining the quality and stability of
our work force. We are committed to providing an equal working
environment for our staff. Being an equal-opportunity employer,
our staff will have equal opportunities and their employment,
remuneration and promotions will not be affected by their age,
gender, race, colour, sexual orientation, disability or marital status.

Our policies relating to the recruitment and promotion,
development and training, working hours, rest periods, other
benefits and welfare, compensation and dismissal, equal
opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination, etc., are set out in
the Employee Handbook and Human Resources Management
System Manual.
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During the year, the numbers of staff in the Group fluctuated as
we had acquired a group of companies with securities brokerage
and asset management business, and on the other hand, we had
disposed the vessel operating company. As at 31 March 2020, the
Group had 33 staff (2019: 17) in Hong Kong and 24 staff (2019: 43)
in the PRC.

Fair Rewards and Work-life Promotion

Our remuneration policy aims to attract and retain our talents.
We offer competitive salary in line with the market rate and
commensurate with individual qualification, working experience
and performance. Our talents are also rewarded by annual
salary increment and discretionary bonus based on the Group's
performance and individual performance. We conduct staff
performance appraisal annually and the system ensures our
talents are compensated and rewarded in a fair and objective
manner in accordance with their performance and experience.

We strive to create a harmonious working environment for
helping career development of our talents and enhancing their
work performance. We also regularly organise various social
activities for our talents to promote healthy lifestyle and to
enhance teamwork. During the Reporting Year, we held a birthday
party in each month for our talents who were born in the month.
We had also organised a barbeque picnic for our talents and their
families in Hong Kong to let them enjoy and recharge in a natural
and relax environment.

Christmas is the festival that our talents are eager to celebrate.
For our Hong Kong offices, we held a Christmas lunch party and
the staffs were granted half day off to celebrate Christmas with
their friends and families. To celebrate the Chinese New Year and
to express our gratitude to our talents for their contributions to
the Group during the year, we held a Chinese New Year festival
dinner with all of our talents to show our appreciation.
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Law Compliance

The Group has strictly complied with all laws and regulations in
Hong Kong and the PRC relating to the employment of our talents.
Such laws and regulations are summarised as below:

In Hong Kong:

o Employment Ordinance

o Minimum Wage Ordinance

. Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
o Sex Discrimination Ordinance

o Disability Discrimination Ordinance

. Family Status Discrimination Ordinance
o Race Discrimination Ordinance

In the PRC:

o Labour Law

o Labour Contract Law

. Maritime Labour Convention 2006, the Regulations of the
PRC on Seafarers

For our vessel chartering business, the shipping agent was
responsible for the recruitment and management of the officers
and the crew of the vessel in the PRC. The employment of
the officers and the crew was subject to the Maritime Labour
Convention 2006, the Regulations of the PRC on Seafarers,
the Labour Law and the Labour Contract Law of the PRC. For
safeguarding the interests and rights of our crew, policies relating
to the crew’'s employment terms, qualifications, certificates,
working hours, accommodation, food, recreation facilities,
health care, insurance and wages were set in accordance with
the Regulations of the PRC on Seafarers and other relevant
regulations in the PRC.
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During the Reporting Year, we were not aware of any non-
compliance with the above relevant laws and regulations that
had significant impact on the Group relating to employment and
labour standards.

Our Talents’ Health and Safety

It is our prime responsibility to assure the health and occupational
safety of our talents and we endeavour to provide a safe and
pleasant working environment for them. We act at all time
diligently to ensure the Group has complied with the following
health and safety regulations:

In Hong Kong:

o Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance

In the PRC:

J Labour Law

o Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases Law

Our offices have been equipped with all the required safety
equipment and facilities, in particular for fire safety, which has
passed the government safety inspections. We also require
all staff in our Hong Kong offices to participate in the fire drill
arranged by the office building management. In our offices,
we have implemented safety policies and measures to provide
a healthy environment in the workplace, such as prohibition
of smoking in the offices, regular office cleaning, providing air
purifiers at the workplace to improve indoor air quality, etc.
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Response to COVID-19

With the worldwide outbreak of the COVID-19 in 2020, we
realise we should implement appropriate measures to safeguard
the health and safety of our staff. We have set up COVID-19
Emergency Response Team (ER Team) in January 2020 and have
adopted precautionary measures at our workplaces to avoid the
risk of contracting and spreading of the COVID-19.

. All staff are required to check body temperature before
entering the workplaces.

. Staff with fever and respiratory symptoms have to report to
the ER Team and should visit doctor immediately and stay
home until fully recovered.

. All staff are required to wear medical face masks, especially
during a meeting.

° Upon returning from the high-risk countries or cities in the
past 14 days, staff are required to submit health declaration
to the ER Team. The ER Team may request the staff to stay
at home for self-isolation for up to 14 days if necessary.

. Increase the frequency of cleaning and disinfection in public
areas.

. Sterilized carpets, alcohol hand rub and other disinfectant
supplies are provided at the reception area.

. Some more air purifiers are installed for improving air
quality by removing air-born germs and viruses in our
workplaces.

Vessel Safety

The safety of our crew was the first priority in our vessel
operations. Safety management system in compliance with the
ISM Code was implemented to ensure safe functioning of the
vessel at the sea. All the policies and procedures relating to
safety regulations, safety measures, maintenance and operational
requirements for preventing any work accidents had been set out
in the Safety Management Manual.
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Our vessel had also complied with the safety standards set
out in the Regulations Governing Minimum Safe Manning Ships
of the PRC and the International Convention for the Safety of
Life at Sea. We had to ensure there were sufficient officers and
crew working at the vessel during voyages. Officers and the
crew on board had to be trained and certificated in accordance
with the International Convention on Standards of Training and
Certification and Watchkeeping for Seafarers (STCW Convention)
and other relevant regulations and rules.

During the Reporting Year, the Group had not experienced any
serious work injury or accident.

Development and Training

We believe that proper and sufficient training is essential for our
talents to carry out their duties at high standard and quality and
for their professional development. To cope with the development
of the Group, adequate training is provided to equip our talents
with the necessary knowledge and skills for performing their
works. We also subsidise our talents to attend job-related training
courses with the approval of the management.

For our financial services business, “position-taking training”
is provided to our new staff for assisting them to understand
the Group and for adapting their new positions. The training
includes topics on the Group's background, the group structure,
company and industrial regulations, the job positions and the
responsibilities, required working skills, and career development
plan, etc. On-the-job and specific trainings are also provided to
staff for enhancing their job competence and to benefit their
career advancement.

During the Reporting Year, our accounting and management
staff had attended the following continuous professional training
courses to update and enhance their technical knowledge and
professional skills:

i Corporate governance,

o Update on the requirements of Companies Ordinance and
Employment (Amendment) Ordinance; and

o Hong Kong accounting standards.
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On the other hand, our licensed staff of the securities brokerage
and asset management business had taken the Continuous
Professional Training required by the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC").

For our vessel chartering business, we provided our officers and
crew with the STCW training courses. During the Reporting Year,
our shipping agent continuously provided training courses to our
crew on the skills and knowhow of vessel operations, inspection
and maintenance of equipment, and on subjects relating to
lifesaving, fire safety, and using of fire-fighting equipment, etc. We
ensured that every officer and crew had adequate training to deal
with various situations in the vessel operations.

UPHOLDING OTHER SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

Labour Standards

We are fully aware that child labour and forced labour violate
fundamental human rights and the protocol of international
labour conventions, and we agree they pose a threat to
sustainable social and economic development. As such, we
strictly abide the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong, and the
Labour Law and Labour Contract Law in the PRC for this issue.

We strictly prohibit employment of child labour and will carry out
examination of the applicant’s personal identification document
on their age during the recruitment stage. We would strictly
follow the employment contracts and would not prejudice the
employment relationship in any way between the employees and
the Group, such as detaining a deposit, forcing to work against
their will or under any kind of threat. We ensure that the terms of
employment are voluntary and would not be changed arbitrarily
without communicating with the staff. Our staff are free to leave
the Group upon reasonable notice under the Group's relevant
human resources policy.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has not experienced any
case on child labour and forced labour.
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Fair Trade - Anti-Corruption

We believe that compliance with the principles of integrity and
fairness can create a clean and fair business environment and set
a solid foundation for sustainable development of our business.
Our directors and staff in Hong Kong must abide the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Hong Kong). Our staff working in the PRC must
also comply with local legislation on bribery, including the Anti-
Corruption Law of the People’s Republic of China (FZE A £ 41
Bl B EUE)

We have clearly stated the anti-corruption policy and code of
conduct in our Staff Handbook to ensure that all directors and
staff understand and strictly understand and comply with our
ethical and probity requirements. We also have policies and
procedures for our employees, business partners and other
related parties to report suspected or actual corruption, fraud,
dishonest practices and any similar matters in confidential
manner. All reported cases will be investigated thoroughly and
appropriate corrective, disciplinary or legal measures will be taken
based on the findings.

As a financial services provider, we strictly comply with all
applicable anti-money laundering laws and regulations as follows:

In Hong Kong:

o the Drug Trafficking (Recovery of Proceeds) Ordinance

o the Organized and Serious Crimes Ordinance

o the United Nations (Anti-Terrorism Measures) Ordinance

o the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance

o Guideline on Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed
Money Lenders

In the PRC:

o the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of
China (R #E AR FEFE R %EEE)
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We have established Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing ("AML/CTF") Policy and Procedures to take
appropriate measures to comprehensively combat money
laundering and terrorist financing activities through the Group. We
have implemented procedures and controls on risk assessment,
customer due diligence measures, on-going monitoring of
customers, suspicious transactions reporting, record keeping and
staff training.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any
incident of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that
would have significant impact on the Group.

COMMITMENT TO OUR CUSTOMERS

Manage Our Supply Chain

Supply chain management is vital to the sustainable operations
in our trading business. We closely monitor the supplier selection
process and ensure as far as possible that our suppliers share
the same value as ours on sustainability. Standard policy and
procedures for procurement of products are established to
ensure that safe and good quality products are purchased from
qualified suppliers. We perform quality assurance check for every
incoming product to ensure that the quality of our purchases
meets our specification and expectation. Where possible, we
would insist to inspect and examine the merchandises before
confirming the purchase.

Responsible Sourcing

We trade seafood and electronics products in the PRC. We have
laid down procedures and guidelines for procuring products
and for the selection of suppliers in a fair and equitable manner.
We select suppliers based on the product safety and quality,
their business reputation, price and delivery arrangement, etc.,
to ensure that all products sourced by us are safe and reliable.
Moreover, we have implemented sustainable practices in our
supply chain activities that we have to ensure our suppliers’
production or operations are complied with their local relevant
laws and regulations, in particular on the issues of environment,
child and forced labour, health and safety.
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commitment to customers

Our Trading business

We are committed to provide our customers with safe and
reliable products and we strive to reinforce the relationship
with our customers by continuously improving the quality of
our products and the customer experience. To enhance the
customer service, policy and procedures are in place to ensure
that all customer complaints or concerns are addressed to by our
relevant departments in a timely manner.

To ensure the quality of our trade products, we endeavour
to choose reputable business partners with reliable track
records and integrity. We have stringent requirements on our
suppliers and have implemented quality assurance procedures
to secure the quality and safety standard of our products.
Where it is possible, we would ensure our products meets our
sustainability requirements on the environmental and other social
responsibilities.

Our Financial services business

Our financial services business provides loan products to
individuals and corporates in Hong Kong and in the PRC. We
have to assure our customers that the provision of our finance
and services has been complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations. In Hong Kong, we are a licensed money lender and
as such, our loan finance business is governed by the Money
Lenders Ordinance (“MLO"). We strictly follow all forms and
procedures prescribed under the provisions of MLO. For our
securities brokerage business in Hong Kong, we need to adhere
to the Securities and Futures Ordinance and to comply with the
requirements set out by the HKEx and the SFC.

We are committed to our customers that their personal
information and privacy must be protected. As such, preserving of
the customer data privacy is important for our business. We take
great precaution to ensure the confidentiality of data collected
from our customers and generated from our transactions. We
have implemented various measures to prevent unauthorised
or accidental access, processing, or leakage of data. We have
strictly complied with the relevant provisions of the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance in Hong Kong.
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During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters of our products and services provided that have a
significant impact on us.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Oour Communities Need Cares

We strive to be a responsible corporate citizen by supporting
and contributing to the communities where we operate our
businesses. We nurture the corporate culture and practices of
social responsibilities in daily work life to enhance the awareness
of our employees to take care of our communities and our
environment.

Our initiatives in 2020

Face Masks Donation — In the first quarter of 2020 when the
situation of the COVID-19 pandemic was stringent and medical
face masks in Hong Kong was in severe shortage, we enrolled
in a Face Masks Donation Campaign and donated a few
hundred medical face masks to help disadvantaged group in the
communities who had difficulties to afford face masks or were
difficult to source face masks.

Blood Donation — We encourage our staff to contribute to our
communities by giving blood to save lives of the needy persons
in the society. Blood donation is an annual regular activity of our
office in Hong Kong. In this year, we had 10 volunteers in our
Hong Kong offices taken part in the blood donation.

Food Donation — For the Mid-Autumn Festival in this year, we
participated in a moon cake donation campaign where our staff
had participated by donating mooncakes to the elderly and the
underprivileged in order to make them feel the warmth in the
festival.

Waste recycling — We also encouraged our staff to take part in
the red packet and mooncake box recycling activities and our
staff were very enthusiastic in bringing the used red packets and
mooncake boxes to our offices for recycling. We continuously
cultivate environmental protection concepts to our staff to help
reducing waste at source.

We will continue to explore more ways to support and contribute
to our communities and encourage our staff to participate for
making our community a better place to live.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
AWl

The Directors present their report together with the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at a special general meeting on 31 May 2019
and approval by the Bermuda Registry of Companies on 22 July
2019, the name of the Company has been changed from “Noble
Century Investment Holdings Limited” to “Hong Kong ChaoShang
Group Limited” and the adoption of the Chinese name "& /& &
mEEBARAR" as the secondary name of the Company in
replacement of “ZImi& &= BR A F" has become effective.
The Certificate of Registration of Change of Corporate Name
of Non-Hong Kong Company confirming the registration of the
Company under the name of “Hong Kong ChaoShang Group
Limited &8/ £ & AR A 7" under Part X of the Companies
Ordinance was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong
Kong on 13 August 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements. Except that the Group
has extended its business into financial services and ceased
and discontinued the vessel chartering business, there were no
significant changes in nature of Group's principal activities during
the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group's business, can be found in the sections “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out
on pages 4 to 18 of this annual report. This discussion forms part
of this directors’ report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating segments is
set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2020

EReREBE-T-_TF=-A=+—HIHF
B2 BmEMFREMBRE -

ERATER
BER-_ZE—NEFRAA=+—HRITZRER
FIRASERARGIREBBIEIAEREER
EQAREMERN _ZE—NE+A-_+=-H%
2 B - AR E 2 ATBE B [Noble Century
Investment Holdings Limited | & 2 A& [Hong
Kong ChaoShang Group Limited ] » Bff#
HRIEANEEEERARI ARAREZ
HREARAK [CIRREERERAR W EE
K- BARRAAMEERERZZ—NLEN
A+=R#IIFBERAEIEALE M
BAE  BRARQFDIRIE R ARG XIE LA
[Hong Kong ChaoShang Group Limited & & %
EEBEBRAR] 2 BB -

FEXRBREBODRE

ARAMEBEGARERBTENBLRZ
EHBNRARBREN L2 - B AEEER
BT BBIE RIS R AT
B AEEE BRI AEE R BEEAR
1k -

EBRNAEDIN RSPT BB ZZEHELD
BRI THRAFREIZI8AZ [
FHREEIRIEEESRmENT]  EFERE
AEBEMEYNEZRRE I EERZO
A 7 LA B A B2 [ 26 75 AT BE A 1T B0 R OR B R 3
BoARMAAESTEREN B0

7EEHR
REBZEED BRI D 2 RADN B
BT ¥R AR PHTRE6

>



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
R

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set forth in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 100 to 102.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

INVESTMENT PROPERTY, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in investment property, property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set forth in Notes 16 and 15 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

No charitable donations has been made by the Group during the
year (2019: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set forth in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share options scheme below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group or existed during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 2 September 2013 and the Stock
Exchange granting approval of the listing of and permission to
deal in the shares to be issued under the share option scheme
(the "Share Option Scheme”) on 3 September 2013, the Company
adopted the Share Option Scheme in replacement of a share
option scheme adopted on 25 March 2003 which had been
expired on 24 March 2013. The Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from 2 September
2013, unless otherwise terminated. The followings is a summary
of the Share Option Scheme:

Purpose
The Share Option Scheme aims to provide the Company with
a flexible and effective means of incentivizing, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to the
Directors, employees and other participants of the Company and
the Group.
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Participants

The Directors may, in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, invite person(s) who
or which is/are eligible to participate as grantee(s) and receive
options under the Share Option Scheme, to take up share options
to subscribe for Shares.

Maximum number of shares available for
subscription

The total number of share options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued Shares of
the Company as at 2 September 2013. Upon approval by the
Shareholders, the Company may renew the Scheme Mandate
Limit, provided that each renewal shall not exceed 10% of the
issued Shares as at the date of approval by the Shareholders,
and a circular regarding the proposed renewal of the Scheme
Mandate Limit has been dispatched to the Shareholders in a
manner complying with, and containing the matters specified
in, the relevant provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting on 2 September
2014 and 26 August 2016, the 10% limit under the Share Option
Scheme was refreshed respectively. The aggregate maximum
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue from time to
time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options under the Share Option
Scheme) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company. Any excess over 1% shall be
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at general meeting
with such participant and his/her close associates abstaining
from voting and the Company shall issue a circular pursuant to
relevant provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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Time of acceptance and exercise of a share option
The grantee may accept the offer of the share option within
twenty-one days from the date of the offer letter issued by
the Company. The grantee shall pay HK$1 as consideration for
accepting the offer of the share option granted. The grantee may
subscribe for Shares during such period as may be determined by
the Board (the said period shall not in whatever case be later than
the last day of the 10-year period after the day on which the offer
relating to the option is duly approved by the Board in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme (subject to early termination)).

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Unless the Directors determine otherwise and state in the offer of
the grant of option to the grantee, the Share Option Scheme does
not provide for any minimum period for which share options must
be held before it can be exercised.

Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price of share option granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board and shall be at
least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

The life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for ten years
starting from 2 September 2013 (can be terminated before
expiration).

As at 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this report, no share
options has been granted under the Share Option Scheme since
its adoption.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 105 and in Note 41(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE RATZA 5K
COMPANY
The Company's reserve was as follows: KREl 2 BT
2020 2019
—EBEF —ZT-NHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contributed surplus BEHRG 34,178 34,178
Accumulated losses ZETEE (228,202) (144,312)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of the contributed surplus if:

(@ the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of the Company would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities, its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2020
are set out in Notes 15, 30 and 32 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 252 of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Zheng Juhua
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Man Kwok Leung

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company's Bye-laws and
to comply with the requirements of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan
Chi Yuen and Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than the transactions as disclosed in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
31 March 2020 or at any time during the year then ended.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, the
Directors had an interest in any business apart from the Group’s
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business that need to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Director
E=E

Name of company
NGRS

Nature of business
EBHE

EERBFERE 2ES

REBEFEAREEARERAS EFNER
SEEBERIMEBARF LT EENEF
ZAERER (BRAKREEBIN) FEERE
MR A FE8N0RA T WM R T

Nature of interests
EEME

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen
BRERLE

Royal Century Resources Holdings Limited
(“Royal Century”) and its subsidiaries
CEERERERAR (CEER]) R

HWE AR

Mr. Chi Chi Hung,
Kenneth
FEERE

DeTai New Energy Group Limited ("DeTai")
and its subsidiaries

ERAEREEERAA ([EBR]) R
= NS

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Union Asia Enterprise Holdings Limited

Kenneth ("Union Asia”) and its subsidiaries
FE R E ELEERERAR ([BER]) R

Hit @A A

As the board of Directors (the “Board”) is independent to the
boards of the above mentioned companies, the Group is capable
of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length,
from the business of those companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in
any business (apart from the Group's business) which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year had the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or
any contract of significance for the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The transactions as set out in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements were connected transactions which
were exempt from any disclosure and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As far as the transactions set out in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements are concerned, the remuneration of the
Directors as determined pursuant to the service contracts/letters
of appointment entered into between the Directors and the
Group were connected transactions which were exempt from
any disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors have confirmed that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company and
their associates in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register as required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

Directors’ interest in the Company:
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Note: 834,767,140 shares were held by Superb Smart Limited (“Superb
Smart”), a company wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Zheng Juhua,
the executive Director and Chairlady of the Company. Accordingly, Ms.
Zheng Juhua is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares under
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company had or was deemed
to have any interested or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and/or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the “Share Option Scheme” section on
page 69 in this annual report and Note 28(c) to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors,
or their spouses or children under the age of eighteen, had
any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such rights during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, so far as it is known by or otherwise
notified by any Director or the chief executive of the Company,
the particulars of the corporations or persons who had 5% or
more interests in the following long positions in the shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO or were entitled to exercise,
or control the exercise of, 10% or more of the voting power at
any general meeting of the Company (the “Voting Entitlements”)
(i.e. within the meaning of substantial shareholders of the Listing
Rules) were as follows:

Name of substantial

ERHREEBRAA]
(BRI R EERBRAF])

\,
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Approximate
percentage of

shareholder Number of shares shareholding Capacity
FTERRER R E RESAEILE F5
Ms. Zheng Juhua Long position 834,767,140 shares 20.26% Interest of the controlled
EIe L (Notes (i) corporations
4 &834,767 1408% RN
(F3EG))
Superb Smart Limited Long position 834,767,140 shares 20.26% Beneficial owner
(Notes (i) BB A
4§ 2834,767,1408% (B EEG))
Dragon Mind Long position 341,132,000 shares 8.28% Beneficial owner
Holdings Limited (Note (i) EEMEAA
BRERBRAF ¥ A341,132,0008% ( Fft3E(i) )
Managecorp Limited Long position 341,132,000 shares 8.28% Trustee
(Note (ii) ZEEA
41 2341,132,0000% (B 5% (i) )
Mr. Zhang Lirui Long position 341,132,000 shares 8.28% Founder of a
ofk F) 85 5 A (Note (ii) discretionary trust
4 &341,132,0000% (Bt (i) ) BIBEFEA LA
Sea Venture Investments Long position 283,168,000 shares 6.87% Beneficial owner
Limited (Note (iii)) BEmHEA A
47 2283,168,0008% A% 12 ( B = Giii) )
Short position 283,168,000 shares 6.87% Beneficial owner
(Note (iii)) BEnHEBA
% B 283,168,0000% i 17 ( B 5 Gi) )
China Construction Long position 283,168,000 shares 6.87% Interest of controlled
Bank Corporation (Note (iii)) corporations
PR IRTTAR D 4F 2283,168,0008% A% 17 (B 5% (i) ) RIEN AR
BRATA Short position 283,168,000 shares 6.87% Interest of controlled

(Note (i)
K B 283,168,0008% A 17 ( Bt 5% (i) )

corporations
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Name of substantial

Approximate
percentage of

shareholder Number of shares shareholding Capacity
FTERRHE R4 EE RESNESLE B35
CCB International Group Long position 283,168,000 shares 6.87% Interest of controlled
Holdings Limited (Note (iii) corporations
EITEIRR SR E 2 i 17 £ 283,168,0008% A 7 (B 3% Gii) ) ER NGy
BRATA Short position 283,168,000 shares 6.87% Interest of controlled
(Note (iii)) corporations

7 8283,168,0008% M 17 ( BT 5% (iii) )

CCB Financial Holdings  Long position 283,168,000 shares
Limited (Note (i)
BITERIZERBRAT  4F8283,168,0008% Ak 4 (B 5% (i) )

Short position 283,168,000 shares
(Note (iii))
B 283,168,0000% A% 17 ( B & Giil) )

CCB International Long position 283,168,000 shares
(Holdings) Limited (Note (iii)
EEIRBIRR (=A%) 4F 2 283,168,0000% A% 15 (B 5% (iii) )
BRAFA Short position 283,168,000 shares
(Note (iii))
K 2 283,168,0000% A% 15 (B 5 (iii) )
CCBI Investments Long position 283,168,000 shares
Limited (Note (iii)

47 2 283,168,0008% B 15 (B &% Gii) )

Short position 283,168,000 shares
(Note (iii))

% 8283,168,0008% fz 17 ( BT £ (i) )

Central Huijin Investment Long position 283,168,000 shares

Limited (Note (iii)
FRESRERR 45 2 283,168,0008% A% 1 ( B 5 (iii) )
EEAA] Short position 283,168,000 shares
(Note (iii))

Notes:

(i)

% 2283,168 0008 A £ ( B (i) )

834,767,140 shares were held by Superb Smart, a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Ms. Zheng Juhua, the executive Director and
Chairlady of the Company. Accordingly, Ms. Zheng Juhua is deemed to
be interested in the relevant shares under the SFO.

341,132,000 shares were held by Dragon Mind Holdings Limited which
is wholly-owned by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Zhang Lirui (“Mr.
Zhang") is the settlor and Managecorp Limited (the “Managecorp”) is
the trustee, and accordingly, Mr. Zhang and Managecorp are deemed to
be interested in the relevant shares under the SFO.
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(i) Sea Venture Limited, which is wholly owned by CCBI Investments
Limited, held put options comprising for 283,168,000 Shares. CCBI
Investments Limited is wholly owned by CCB International (Holdings)
Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by CCB Financial Holdings
Limited. CCB Financial Holdings Limited is wholly owned by CCB
International Group Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly owned
by China Construction Bank Corporation. China Construction Bank
Corporation is owned as to 57.11% by Central Huijin Investment Limited.
Accordingly, CCBI Investments Limited, CCB International (Holdings)
Limited, CCB Financial Holdings Limited, CCB International Group
Holdings Limited, China Construction Bank Corporation and Central
Huijin Investment Limited are deemed to be interested in the relevant
shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
corporations or person who, as at 31 March 2020, had the Voting
Entitlements or any interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Ms. Zheng Juhua, aged 48, is an executive Director and the
Chairlady of the Board of Directors of the Company. Ms. Zheng
has been a member of the Board since April 2011. Ms. Zheng
conducts a property rental and investment business in Shenzhen,
the People’s Republic of China. She has over ten years of
experience in securities investment in Hong Kong. She is the
sole beneficial owner of Superb Smart Limited, a substantial
and controlling shareholder of the Company which holds
approximately 20.26% of the issued share capital. She has not
held any directorships in the last three years in any other public
company the securities of which are listed on the securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas.

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, aged 53, is an executive director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor
degree with honours in Business Administration and a master
of science degree with distinction in Corporate Governance
and Directorship. He is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He is a practicing certified
public accountant and has extensive experience in financial
management, corporate development, corporate finance and
corporate governance.
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Mr. Chan has been a member of the Board since June 2011. He
is currently an executive director and chairman of Royal Century
Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 8125). He is also an
independent non-executive director of Leyou Technologies
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1089) and Asia Energy Logistics
Group Limited (stock code: 351). He was an executive director
of Great Wall Belt & Road Holdings Limited (stock code: 524)
from June 2015 to October 2019 and an independent non-
executive director of Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited (now
known as Power Financial Group Limited) (stock code: 397) from
January 2015 to October 2017, U-RIGHT International Holdings
Limited (now known as Fullsun International Holdings Group Co.,
Limited) (stock code: 627) from November 2010 to December
2017, Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (stock code: 1466) from
December 2016 to September 2018, China Baoli Technologies
Holdings Limited (stock code: 164) from April 2006 to September
2019, Media Asia Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8075)
from September 2009 to March 2020 and New Times Energy
Corporation Limited (stock code: 166) from May 2012 to March
2020.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Man Kwok Leung, aged 73, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Man has been a Board member
since April 2011. He is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong. Mr. Man has extensive experience in the legal practice
and was appointed by Xinhua News Agency as a district advisor
between 1995 and 1997. He is currently a director of Apleichau
Kai Fong Primary School, the deputy chairman of Apleichau Kai
Fong Welfare Association, the secretary of Apleichau Promotion
of Tourism Association and the honorary legal advisor of
Junior Police Officers’ Association. Mr. Man is not related to
any directors, senior management or substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Man is currently an independent non-executive director of
DeTai New Energy Group Limited (stock code: 559).
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Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter, aged 69, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yu has been a member of Board
since April 2011. He has over 28 years of experience in real
estate and financial services industries. Mr. Yu has a Bachelor
Degree in Management from Youngstown State University in
Ohio, the United States and a Master of Science Degree in
Financial Services from American College in Pennsylvania, the
United States. Mr. Yu is a member of the Certified Commercial
Investment Member Institute and was the first Chinese-American
elected to the board of the San Francisco Association of Realtors.
Mr. Yu worked in Pacific Union Real Estate Company in the United
States between 1980 and 1995 and held senior positions in
MetLife and New York Life Insurance Company in managing Asian
customers in North America. Mr. Yu is not related to any directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders the
company.

Mr. Yu was an executive director of Far East Holdings International
Limited (stock code: 36) from November 2014 to October 2017
and an independent non-executive director of Kingston Financial
Group Limited (stock code: 1031) from September 2008 to
September 2016 and China Sandi Holdings Limited (stock code:
910) from December 2010 to September 2019.

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, aged 51, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr. Chi has been a Board member since April
2011. He has over 20 years of experience in accounting and
financial control area. He holds a Bachelor of Accountancy
Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom, an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chi is not related to
any directors, senior management or substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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Mr. Chi is currently an executive director of Union Asia Enterprise
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8173) and an independent non-
executive director of Perfect Shape Medical Limited (formerly
known as Perfect Shape Beauty Technology Limited) (stock code:
1830). He was an executive director of Ceneric (Holdings) Limited
(now known as TFG International Group Limited) (stock code:
542) from October 2010 to June 2017, DeTai New Energy Group
Limited (stock code: 559) from January 2010 to March 2020 and
an independent non-executive director of Greentech Technology
International Limited (stock code: 195) from October 2012 to April
2020 .

Senior Management

Ms. Chan Wai Fung, aged 38, is a company secretary and
financial controller of the Company. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor
degree of Accountancy from University of South Australia. She
is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. She has extensive experiences in auditing,
accounting, financing and company secretarial matter. She joined
the Group since June 2011.

Ms. Li Yue, aged 32, is a finance manager of the Company. Ms. Li
has a Master degree of Financial Management from the University
of Alberta and bachelor degree in Business Management
(Accounting) from lilin University of Finance and Economics and
she has the certificate of accounting profession issued by Finance
Commission of Shenzhen Municipality. She has over 5 years of
experience in banking industry. She joined the Group since July
2015.

Mr. Zhou Dezhao, aged 42, is a general manager of the Group's
finance leasing department. He has a Master degree of Business
Administration from University of Northern Virginia and a bachelor
degree in Finance from Sun Yat-Sen University. He has over 15
years of experience in banking industry. He had worked in several
banks as a general manager in business department or business
development department before joining the Group. He joined the
Group since October 2015.

Mr. Au Kwong Hoi, aged 47, is a responsible officer and
a managing director of the Company’s subsidiary namely
ChaoShang Securities Limited (“CS”) and is primarily responsible
for supervising the financial services business. Mr. Au is one of
the founders of CS. He has had over 27 years of experience in the
securities.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 March 2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, approximately 70% (2019: 69%) and 27% (2019:
39%) of the Group’s turnover was attributable to the five largest
customers and the largest customer respectively.

During the year, approximately 92% (2019: 95%) and 53% (2019:
80%) of the Group's purchases were attributable to the five
largest suppliers and the largest supplier respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers above at any time during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the laws of
Bermuda or the Company's Bye-laws, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to Bye-law 168(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, every
director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto, and no Director or other officer shall be liable for any
loss, damages or misfortune which may happen to or be incurred
by the Company in the execution of the duties of his/her office
or in relation thereto, provided that the Bye-laws shall only have
effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the Bermuda
Companies Act. The Company have maintained Directors and
officers liability insurance during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s shares during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications, experience and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

PENSION SCHEME ARRANGEMENTS

The Company and its subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are
required to participate in a contribution retirement scheme of
the Group set up in accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). Under the scheme, employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per month and they may choose to make additional
contributions. The employer’s monthly contribution is at the rate
of 5% of each employee’s monthly salary up to the maximum
limit of HK$1,500 per month.

Subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to participate in
contribution retirement schemes organised by the relevant local
government authorities since incorporation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 19 to 38 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has complied with the sufficiency of public float
requirement under the Listing Rules at any time during the year
and as at the date of this report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, comprising three independent non-
executive directors, has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations
of the Group.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Lau
& Au Yeung C.PA. Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Zheng Juhua
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

¥4 A S lh

[ LAU | 2B @t imsmspamasE
SR GANERI 1 AU & AU YEUNG C.P.A. LIMITED

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT
HOLDINGS LIMITED)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hong Kong ChaoShang Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 100 to 250,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are (i) impairment
assessment of trade receivables, finance lease receivables,
loan and interest receivables, factoring receivables and
deposits, prepayments and other receivables, (i) accounting
for the acquisition of ChaoShang Financial, and (i) impairment
assessment of goodwill and intangible assets.

Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN EST O AEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables,
finance lease receivables, loan and interest
receivables, factoring receivables and deposits,
prepayments and other receivables

R - ERREHRERE BERERRIE - EW
RERENZS BAARREMERRIE 2R ERLG

Refer to notes 21, 20, 25, 22 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements
BLMGRAT B HMERM 21 220 25 - 22823

Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability of
trade receivables, finance lease receivables, loan and
interest receivables, factoring receivables and deposits,

prepayments and other receivables included:
BMBEBRERWER  BUEEMESERIE BRE R
B EUURIE SRIAEFZ & « T8 15 30 % B fE IR AT 4 =]
MHEFIEF B
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Key Audit Matter
BREEHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESTAEE

ERHREEBRAA]
(BRI R EERBRAF])

As at 31 March 2020, the net carrying amounts of the
Group's trade receivables, finance lease receivables,
loan and interest receivables, factoring receivables
and deposits, prepayments and other receivables were
HK$294.2 million, HK$175.9 million, HK$73.0 million,
HK$26.8 million and HK$24.9 million respectively, in
which allowance for impairment losses of HK$60.4
million, HK$0.9 million, HK$1.3 million, HK$0.3 million
and HK$3.0 million were recorded.
RZFEZZEF=—A=1+—H  ESENELER.
e R E S RIE - R E R RS - FEYRIEFRIE A
e TR R E A FE W SR IEFE 5 Rl A294,200,000
7 7T+ 175,900,0007% 7T * 73,000,0007% 7T * 26,800,000
75 7T 224,900,000 7T, - R &R B EH A FE 5 R 8215
60,400,000 7T, ~ 900,000/% 7T * 1,300,000/ 7T + 300,000
7 70 13,000,000/ 7T ©

Management assessed the impairment loss on
trade receivables, finance lease receivables, loan
and interest receivables, factoring receivables and
deposits, prepayments and other receivables based
on assumptions about expected credit loss rates. The
Group used judgments in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment loss
calculation, taking into account cash collection history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates.
EREENEREEBRXENRRER L EUERRK B
BMEMERIE  BRERRMNE  EUYIRIERIBMIZ
e FENREREMEBURIERRELETTG &5
EEMEREMEFREAENBAER ZET A
FURIER - MBI TIHE S R BTRE 5T -

credit loss (“ECL") impairment assessment.

- BRERHEERAGFEFERENHEEN B

i o

- Understood the ECL model used by the Group.

- BEREEUEHEEBEAHERUNER-

aging and types of debtors.

—  RMEEIRER AR MFTETRRER REBA

MEMEERAENEERSGENME -

impairment loss allowance.

- REEBANKRREREORER BT E N ERE-

approval, monitoring and debts recovery process.

- REEEERYBECRE EERBRIERER

T 5 0 B T [ 72 o

reporting period.

- HEEEEYUREHERERALEFIRAETNNME

BB A B AT U @1V B0 R4 -

ZECTEFHR

Understood key controls in relation to expected

Discussed with management to understand and
evaluate the basis and reasonableness of the
rationale for expected credit loss rate of different

Examined the ageing profile of the debtors
and checked the accuracy of the calculation of

Obtained and understood from management of
established policies and procedures on credit risk

Evaluated management’'s assessment of the
recoverability of those individual debtors with little
or no settlement subsequent to the end of the
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Key Audit Matter
BRESNER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNESNMEE

We focused on this area as the balance of trade
receivables, finance lease receivables, loan and
interest receivables, factoring receivables and
deposits, prepayments and other receivables were
material to the consolidated financial statements
and the assessment on the impairment loss on
these receivables involved significant judgments and
estimates by management.

BMEFRZEE DERERER ERRERE
FIE - BRER AL  BRREFRIENRS  FBRAR
REAMBW RS EHGEMBRRENBEHZEFRK
HIERENTESIREEENE RS-
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Evaluated the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, loan and interest receivables, factoring
receivables and deposits, prepayments and other
receivables in accordance with the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards in notes
21, 20, 25, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

BERITETEARTHRKEN  BRRERE
FIE BREFREAE BRARBREBEMNZE T
R R EoAth JE WO R IB FE 47 & BT B = B =121 - 20 »
25 2R3\ WEELFE-
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Key Audit Matter
BREEHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESTAEE

Accounting for the acquisition of ChaoShang Financial

WREEERm SRR

Refer to note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements
BLHGFRE W EHREM S

On 31 December 2019, the Group acquired the entire
issued share capital of ChaoShang Financial Holding
Limited (the “ChaoShang Financial Acquisition”)
for consideration of HK$250.0 million, of which (i)
HK$212.5 million was satisfied by cash, and; (i) the
remaining balance in the amount of HK$37.5 million
(the "Retained Consideration Payable”) shall be
retained by the Company as security and shall be
released and payable by the Company subject to the
fulfilment of the relevant profit guarantee (the “Profit
Guarantee”).

RZEBE-—NF+ZA=+—H  ESBWHIED
BIZERBRAFTMNEIE BHTRA ([ 2 W
FIH]) - R{E &250,000,000% 7t - H A (i) 212,500,000
BT EBEBRIR S BN KR EE37,500,0007%8 7T ([ FE
HRBRE]D #H BERFRREBERT WELEBHE
FERZ ([FIBREEEKER BERARTUE
PR ST At e

Our audit procedures in relation to the accounting
treatment for the acquisition of ChaoShang Financial
included:
BZMEBEKEINeRETRENETEF8E:

- Inspected the sale and purchase agreement and
evaluated management’s accounting treatment for
the ChaoShang Financial Acquisition with reference
to the terms set out in the sale and purchase
agreement and the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

- BEBEWRE Y2REEBZETAIGERESR
TETEANBRENHEREY AN e kiEEE
B AR IE -

ZECTEFHR
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Key Audit Matter
BRESNER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNESNMEE

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired in the ChaoShang Financial Acquisition at
the date of completion, including intangible assets
representing the SFC licences and trading rights
with the Stock Exchange acquired, other financial
asset representing the fair value of profit guarantee
and the retained consideration payable with the
carrying amounts of HK$21.5 million, HK$0.9 million
and HK$32.9 million respectively, were assessed by
the directors based on a valuation prepared by an
independent professional valuer. The assessment
of fair values required the exercise of significant
judgements and estimation, particularly in relation to
the forecast of future performance of the business
acquired.
HEerREIEEERMKER BRI EE R BEKE
TERERNAAE BREREAKENFEFESRER R
REXMEER S BN BVEE REMNBIRE
NABEZEMERMEEAREBMREREREES 3
721,500,000/ 7T+ 900,000/ 7T 132,900,000/ 7T *
EERBBE LB XL EM ARG EETIE A
AREFEETERAG KT CERBEHEDWE
EBHRRKRIRTEA

Goodwill arising from the ChaoShang Financial
Acquisition with the carrying amount of HK$75.7
million represented the excess of the consideration
paid over the Group's share of the fair value of the
identifiable net assets of the acquired entities.

B & bR IR A A Y P BRI {E /75,700,000
ToRE EEEEGMKEERTEINFEERN
BHRBENRENEHE

Annual Report 2020

Obtained and inspected the valuation assessments
prepared by the independent professional valuer
engaged by the Group on which management's
assessment of the fair values of the assets and
liabilities acquired was based.

BRIEES SESEZENEEXABEMRBRAD
HET G ERBENZOMGE HEMREBEE
LEBGBEHARE.

Assessed the independent professional valuer's
qualification, experience and expertise on the assets
being valued and considered their objectivity and
independence.

LBV EXAEMREELENER KRRKE
ERHHE ERAZBM B M
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Key Audit Matter
BREEHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESTAEE

We identified the accounting for the ChaoShang
Financial Acquisition as a key audit matter because
the transaction was significant to the consolidated
financial statements and because assessing the
fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired can
be inherently subjective and requires significant
judgements and estimation which increase the risk of
error or potential management bias.

BB HE e ESEN ST REHRA ABARER
FIE WIHERZR S HEEMEREBER UK
AR KB EERAENANEFERENEE
- FBEERHAGRGT EEBRREEERERERR
B [ Fg 42 A1 o

Understood the valuation methodologies adopted
by the independent professional valuer with
reference to industry standards or practice and the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards,
assessed the accuracy of the underlying calculations
in the valuations and evaluated the assumptions
and critical judgements which impacted their
valuation by comparing these assumptions and
critical judgements with market data or the Group's
business plan supporting the ChaoShang Financial
Acquisition

RITEEENEFI KRBT EARTE THREL
E%ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁﬁi M&ﬁmﬁ¢? &)
WM ARG KRB E R R N B85 R
m%%ﬁ& EREXHHReRKBEENER
TEIEETH L  EZEFRE AR -

Evaluated the profit forecast and information
provided by management to the independent
professional valuer and evaluated the underlying key
assumptions and judgements.
TEEREERMTEVEXHEMNAEFTEARE
K- WATB 25 R R R R A -

Assessed the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the ChaoShang
Financial Acquisition with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
SERTGERNBRE HEGE W EHmE+LE
e m B SRR -

ZECTEFHR
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Key Audit Matter
BRESNER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNESNMEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets

BRRETEE ZRER S

Refer to notes 18 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements
BN E PSRRI 1817

The carrying values of the Group’s goodwill and
intangible assets as at 31 March 2020 were amounted
to HK$76.7 million and HK$21.5 million respectively
and were contained in two cash-generating
units (“CGUs") identified by management, the
Comercializadora Ven 2010 CGU and the ChaoShang
Financial CGU respectively.
RZEZTF=RA=+—H ' B5EBENEFE
EMEREE D B &76,700,0007% 7T 521,500,000/ 7T *
TEErMEEEESNNReELEL ([ReE
£ 87 ]) 5 Bl AComercializadora Ven 20106938 & &
SRR eRNBeEEEMR-
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Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of goodwill and intangible assets included:
BMEERERENEERBENTHNEAETEE:

- Evaluated the Group's identification of CGUs and

the value of goodwill and intangible assets allocated
to the CGUs and assessed the methodology
applied by management in the preparation of the
discounted cashflow forecast with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.

— FE ESERSELBNNENEIRERSE
EBMMNEERERNEENEBERTGEEEELS
ZMITEF R ERN REEIRER € R E T8I AT
JERHTTE
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Key Audit Matter
BREEHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESTAEE

Management performed an annual impairment
assessment of its goodwill and the associated
intangible assets. Management compared the
carrying values of the CGUs to which the goodwill
and intangible assets have been allocated against
a discounted cashflow forecast to determine
the amount of impairment loss which should be
recognised, if any.

BEREEBHEERLEENETLEEETEEREN G-
EEERReEFEUNNERBETLEENREER
AR @R ETRAEITIE R LIEEE TR RE
EESE(WA) -

The preparation of a discounted cashflow forecast
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, particularly in estimating the long term
revenue growth rate and the discount rate applied.
REBRB RSB RIELEREREHE - L
HENGFT RIS RE RERMMIRERFIEL
BARHE -

We identified the impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets as a key audit matter
because the impairment assessments prepared
by management were complex and contained
judgemental assumptions, particularly the long term
revenue growth rate and discount rate applied,
which could be subject to management bias in their
selection.

BB EEmERELEENRENGHRESERS
AEIE THREREEREAMENGERREEH
BT R LEHEBBRAWG SRR RATEMIER
EHRBJAENEEBELHERRFZERMAPMMR -

Evaluated the discounted cashflow forecast
prepared by management by comparing specific
data and significant assumptions in the preparation
of discounted cashflow forecast. Our evaluation has
taken into account our understanding of the Group's
future business plans.

FRKERMBReREEACANAREEHES
AEZRETER FEEEERENMBRSRE
TR - ERHEEF - HMERE BEEEARRER

£

Compared the discount rate adopted in the
discounted cashflow forecast with that of
comparable companies and external market data.
AR E @ RmETR AP RAMIIREEA LR A A
RIMEEELL R RN T S BRI TR o

Obtained from management the sensitivity analysis
of long term revenue growth rate and the discount
rate adopted in the discounted cashflow forecast
and assessed the impact of changes in these key
assumptions to the conclusions reached in the
impairment assessment and whether there were
any indicators of management bias.

SRR RETEARARANRBARGEIERE
LANR R EREGRES N ERTHZEEARH
BB R ERRENEERNTERESFE
EREEBRAMNTR-

ZECTEFHR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Annual Report 2020
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

BB BT FEMBRREAENE
£

BPMER EHGRAMBRREBES T
£ | 70 HORF 3k 58 AR T B 2 A B A R AR PR EX
BARERE THABRERRMEROZBENR
FeRfER BT (ERER)ZBARE
19814 (R ADE) FOMBMERMOER -
It 2 SN E B EEAD B & - AT TSR A R
TNARREMEMALTE ESAEERNE
Fo

AERBEESKFNRE BIERER
R(BBEERD ETNES EX—EX
5 o (R 0L T 2 By AR BE 35 3R - SR RRIR AL A] DA R R
FFEERER 5l - MR A IETEH T M E BN E AR
AL B A MR ERE KB EFS
BYMBIMRAAELHZERTE - Rl BRI R
PR AT AR (EEE K -

ERE (BAEER) EITEANBES
BPERTERHE R TEXEROE
JZ o B PITR:

o B RFHEARRKFFRERMEREE
B mARFEERBRBRMN L - 5RF
RITET T IAREIE LR - A KRIE
SREMBENENRE ERRMER
AR o N ERFE AT RE S M SR AR ~ A3
ERER BRI - 02 BR A EEG
ZE AR ReEERERFMEHNEX
e PRt R R B A R RE B IR SRR T
BHYEAHRRAA R

o TEREBHARMMPRBIEH AR EE

MBEERF BEMNYLFYE SRENA
MEHIHNERMEERER -

o HEEEMRAGTHENREERE
SRHMEEMBERRENA R

ZECTEFHR
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Annual Report 2020
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tsang Cheuk Bun

Practising Certificate number. P07122
Hong Kong, 29 June 2020

BB BT FEMBRREAENE
£ (&)
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EEHAHGEEMBRRINEARREE B
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‘ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
P s R IR RS

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z=F=FF=H=+—HI FZE

2020 2019
—ECEH —ET-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FExT FHET
Restated
#EE 7
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HEREER
Revenue W 5 238,518 105,088
Cost of sales $HE A AR 8 (158,628) (67,138)
Gross profit EF 79,890 37,950
Other income H U A 7 4,279 3,920
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMH B R REE 36 - (5,458)
(Loss)/Gain on changes in fair value  H{EEBERE R NEEDH)
of held-for-trading investments (E518) W (38,438) 5,935
Realised (loss)/gain on disposal of EERLERIEEERE
held-for-trading investments (E518) Was (1,068) 4,229
Unrealised (loss)/gain on changesin ~ RERREWERALEEED
fair value of investment property (E8), s 16 (2,128) 297
Unrealised loss on changes in REREMEMEEAAE
fair value of other financial assets FE)EE 19 (588) -
Impairment loss on trade receivables  FEUER R E E 1B 21 (1,953) (32,648)
Impairment loss on deposits, e FA OB R E B UL
prepayments and other receivables  FXIZRE E5 1B 23 (581) (840)
Impairment loss on finance lease FEM RYE T & FORRVE E 1B
receivables 20 (414) (21)
(Impairment loss)/Reversal of W E SR FERE (k518)
impairment loss on loan and B El
interest receivables 25 (929) 493
Impairment loss on factoring FEUR B SRR EEE
receivables 22 (278) -
Administrative expenses TEREM 8 (46,251) (35,769)
Operating loss from continuing REBECEER  EBEE
operations (8,459) (21,912)
Finance costs A& KA 9 (1,451) -
Loss before taxation from continuing R EFEKE XK 2
operations bR B AT & 18 (9,910) (21,912)
Taxation charge MIA S 10 (12,535) (7,909)
Loss for the year from continuing RARBELEEB 2
operations KEFEEIE (22,445) (29,821)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z=F=FF=H=+—HI FZE

2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=g FExT FHET
Restated
wE5
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEREER:
Loss for the year KEEEE 12 (797) (6,207)
Gain on disposal of equity interest & BRI EEE TSR
in discontinued operation before (BHE S BERKEI L
release of foreign currency HBRFTBFRLE)
translation reserve, net of
income tax 12,36 1,149 -
Release of foreign currency translation mH & B4R A& & EFEFEIR
reserve on discontinued operation R E
upon disposal 12,36 1,330 -
Profit/(Loss) for the year from REDRIEEEER 2
discontinued operation REERF, (E8) 1,682 (6,207)
Loss for the year REEEE (20,763) (36,028)
Other comprehensive l0ss: Hib2mEEE:
Items that will not be TEeEN P EEEmAIEE -
reclassified to profit or 10ss:
— Gain on revaluation of property, —HEREYERERY
plant and equipment upon ¥ wmiEREM S
transfer to investment property - 9,659
- Deferred tax liability on recognition ~ —#EREYERERAEG
of revaluation of property, plant M REREVEE
and equipment upon transfer to RIEERIEAE
investment property = (2,414)
Items that may be reclassified FEE N BEE R D A EE R a1
subsequently to profit or 10ss: EHH -
— Exchange differences arising on — BB INETGE AR
translation of foreign operations PE 3 =58 (45,093) (48,056)
Other comprehensive loss for the year 74 H b % &5 18 (45,093) (40,811)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AFEE 2 HEEE (65,856) (76,839)

—z—zgey 101

N\



HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED

(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
B 4 e B Ut 2 i WA 4 %

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z=F=FF=H=+—HI FZE

4

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=g FET FHET
Restated
K E 7|
Loss for the year attributable to: ITALTEIERFEEEE:
Owners of the Company PA/NSIESE= DN (19,469) (32,167)
Non-controlling interests RIS (1,294) (3,861)
Loss for the year KFEEEE (20,763) (36,028)
Total comprehensive loss for the year A TN A TIEEAEE#ELE
attributable to: fE518 -
Owners of the Company ZAN/NECIES FS DN (65,366) (73,324)
Non-controlling interests AR = (490) (3,515)
Total comprehensive loss for the year A4FE 42 M EE (65,856) (76,839)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ZAAQFEZEREAFEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS FE{h B E 18
OF THE COMPANY
Basic and diluted EXAREE
— For loss for the year —BAFEBEMS 13 (0.51) cents Efll  (0.87) cents &l
— For loss from —-REFELEEB 2
continuing operations EEmE 13 (0.55) cents Eflk  (0.71) cents E L

The notes on pages 108 to 250 form an integral part of these — ZH4RA M BHMER B SN FE108E250E 2~ it
consolidated financial statements. FTe
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(BRI R EERBRAF]) ‘
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B IR DL A%

Asat31March2020 R-ZE-FF=H=+—H
2020 2019
—E-EHE —E-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ihg=2 FEx FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets 3 umEﬁJﬁE
Property, plant and equipment Y REBREV 15 47,903 55,322
Investment property mEYE 16 42,946 48,321
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 23,438 -
Goodwill EES 18 76,695 1,000
Intangible assets mEEE 17 21,500 -
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 230 -
Other financial assets HEh S aEE 19 356 -
Finance lease receivables FEl m BB EKIE 20 65,011 109,482
278,079 214,125
Current assets REEE
Inventories [E=Y - 23
Trade receivables FEUBR K 21 294,174 154,649
Factoring receivables JE U AR IE FR0E 22 26,762 8,178
Deposits, prepayments and e B3 IE&
other receivables H At & R 23 24,945 18,327
Held-for-trading investments RIEEBEKRE 24 17,100 70,599
Finance lease receivables el m BB ERIE 20 110,867 112,795
Loan and interest receivables R EFREFE 25 72,951 87,485
Tax recoverable FEWER R 10 -
Cash held on behalf of clients BEPEFER 26 35,787 -
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHET 27 183,430 140,293
766,026 592,349
Total assets BEHE 1,044,105 806,474
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves EAXRFEE
Share capital [N 28 82,412 73,612
Reserves [ 824,490 685,873
Total equity attributable to ZAN/NEIESY S DN-CE
owners of the Company 906,902 759,485
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR (11,677) (11,187)
Total equity FEEBEEE 895,225 748,298
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED

(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

i B DL R

Asat31March2020 R-ZE-FF=H=+—H
2020 2019
—E-EHF —NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5 FExT FTAT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bond payable B E S 30 7,800 -
Retained consideration payable EHREBRE 31 33,301 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 10,333 -
Contract liabilities AHaE 37 516
Deferred tax liabilities ERIBEAE 34 5,283 2,507
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 56754 3023
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables FERTAR K 29 35,223 2
Bond interest payable FERHESFIE 78 -
Contract liabilities EHEE 893 1,180
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 13,450 -
Accruals, other payables and JEETER EfEMNRIER
deposit received Bl e 27,237 35,772
Amount due to a director B —REEFHIE 32 2,286 4,556
Amount due to non-controlling i ANE 34 Hﬂ%ﬁﬁfﬂ
interests 33 233 250
Tax payables FET R IE 12,726 13,393
7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 92,126 55153
Totalliabilities _ ma® 148880 58176
Total equity and liabilities ExRAERAE 1,044,105 806,474
Net current assets REBEEFE 673,900 537,196
Total assets less current liabilities EEZERTBHERE 951,979 751,321
The notes on pages 108 to 250 form an integral part of these  |HE&4GABBEREBSEHNE10822508 2 M
consolidated financial statements. o
The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 250 were &R E10082508 7 GAMBRED N T —
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2020 and were Z& XA -+ N HEZEESHETIEESE -

signed on its behalf.

Zheng Juhua

BT
Director
EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ok 1 At 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 2 —=%F=FF=H=+—HI FZE

Attributable to
Attributable to owners of the Company non-controlling interests
KAAREAEE FEREREL
Property Share of net
Share Share  Contributed  Exchange Surplus  revaluation Accumulated assets of
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total subsidiaries Total
NEEMRE EEHEAR
RE  ROEE  BHER  EXBE  BHOR B RHEE it BEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TAL i TAL Tin FhL FEL
At 1 April 2018 (as previously reported) R=E-\EmA-H
(BEER) 73612 795408 34178 28213 2,556 - (78,747) 855,220 13955 869,175
Change in accounting policy BHBRED - - - (1,011) - - 21,416) (22,427) () (22432)
A1 Aprl 2018 (restated) RF-\#MA-A (E5) 73612 795,408 178 2.0 255 - (016 8RB 13950 846,743
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year FEEFE - - - - - - (32,167) (32,167) (3,861) (36,028)
Other comprehensive income Efg2EHA
Bxchange difference on translation of BEBNEBIBRRL
financial statements of ERZEE
foreign operations - - - (48,402) - - - (48.402) 346 48,056)
Adjustment upon transfer of previously ZEHBERNEA
seff-occupied property to investment RENE 2 HEAE
property, net of tax effect - - - - - 7,45 - 7,45 - 7,045
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-EHBAR - - - 3 (19 - - 16 2162 (21,606)
Transfer to statutory reserve BLETHE - - - - 2113 - 2113 - - -
At 31 March 2019 REE-NEZA=1-R B2 T95408 Wm0 4654 205 (MY TR () T2
A1 April 2019 RZZE-nEFNA-R 73612 795408 34178 21,169) 4,654 7245 (134,443) 759,485 (11,187) 748298
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year rEEBR - - - - - - (19,469) (19,469) (1,294) 20,763)
Other comprehensive income Hp2ERA
Bxchange difference on translation of BERINERUBRRL
financial statements of EXZE
foreign operations - - - 45,897) - - - 45,897) 804 (45,093
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
Placing of new shares RERRN 8,800 211,200 - - - - - 220,000 - 220,000
Transaction cost atributable to BNROEERZRE
issue of new shares - (5863 - - - - - (5,363) - (5863)
Disposal of & subsidiary HE-EHBAF - - - (1,330 - - - (1,330) - (1,330
Deregistration of a subsidiary AE-EHEAR - - - 2 - - - 2 - (24)
Trensfer to statutory reserve BNETHE - - - - 1,708 - (1,708) - - -
At 31 March 2020 R-E-EF=fA=1-H 82412 1,000,745 34178 (68,420) 6,362 7,245 (155,620) 906,902 (11,677) 895225

The notes on pages 108 to 250 form an integral part of these It Z4RAMEREA S SEH N FE108E 2508 2 M
consolidated financial statements. it e




HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
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‘ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
' 4 BAREREE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z=F=FF=H=+—HI FZE

106

2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B3 FTHAR FHAT
Cash flows from RETHHEESRE
operating activities
Cash generated from/(used in) KEERR,/ (FTA)
operations Re 38(a) 77,033 (83,207)
Profits tax paid, net EXfIPEH - F8 (17,282) (7,216)
Net cash generated from/(used in) E&FFHMRE (FFA)
operating activities REFE 59,751 (90,423)
Cash flows from investing RETBHHERE
activities
Purchase of held-for-trading BERBIEEERE
investments (38,740) (21,064)
Purchase of property, plant and BAME  RERSEM
equipment 15 (1,305) (362)
Redemption of available-for-sale BEAHEERE
investment - 30,000
Proceeds from disposal of property, EEY  REREN
plant and equipment FriS50E - 10
Proceeds from disposal of held-for- HERIEEERE
trading investments Fr8 508 52,733 20,580
Proceeds from disposal of PELBEETIIRE
investment in structured deposit FT{S 38 - 18,750
Release of restricted bank deposit BEZBRHRITER - 5,622
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WM B AR
subsidiaries BeMmTFE 35 (199.420) -
Net cash inflow from disposal of HERBATZ
subsidiaries WEMAFRE 36 - 47,632
Bank interest received EYERITHE 878 697
Net cash (used in)/generated from R&5EE (FrH), Frig
investing activities REeFE (185,854) 101,865
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(BRI R EERBRAF]) ‘
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SRR BB

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z=F=FF=H=+—HI FZE
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FER FHT
cash flows from financing BMEIHESRE
activities
Decrease in amount due to a ERN—RBERFIA
director L (2,270) (833)
Repayment of principal portion of BEHEEAGZ
lease liabilities PN (5,706) -
Repayment of interest portion of BEHREAGY
lease liabilities i'J BB 15 (689) -
Proceeds from issurance of bond TEHAEHIR 7,800 -
Proceeds from placing of new E’% R0 BT 1S R
shares 220,000 -
Share issue costs BATRRAD A AR (5,863) -
Interest paid BERFE (239) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZEEHRES, (FTA)
financing activities HeFE 213033 @ (&R
Net increase in RekFALEEEHR
cash and cash equivalents EINFEEE 86,930 10,609
Cash and cash equivalents at FzRekBe
beginning of the year ”*EIE 5] 140,293 172,778
Effect of foreign exchange [ERBE) 8 T
rate changes, net (43,793) (43,094)
cash and cash equivalents at FRZBEERES
end of the year £EIEHE 27 183,430 140,293

The notes on pages 108 to 250 are an integral part of these  IZF4FAFBHRRBEENRE108E2508 2 it
consolidated financial statements. i
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Hong Kong ChaoShang Group Limited (formerly known
as “Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited”) (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company’s registered office is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton Il, Bermuda. The principal place of
business in Hong Kong is situated at Suite 2202, 22nd Floor,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at a special general meeting on 31 May
2019 and approved by the Bermuda Registry of Companies
on 22 July 2019, the name of the Company has been
changed from “Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited”
to “Hong Kong ChaoShang Group Limited” and the adoption
of the Chinese name "&X#MEEBEFR A F]" as the
secondary name of the Company in replacement of “{—Im#%
B A BR A A" has become effective.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in vessel chartering, trading, money
lending, factoring and finance leasing. During the year, the
Group expanded its business into financial services through
the completion of an acquisition of a company and its
subsidiaries which hold licences to carry on Type 1, 2, 4 and
9 regulated activities as defined under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ"). The Group also ceased and
discontinued the vessel chartering business during the year.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2020.

Annual Report 2020
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment property, held-for-trading investments
and other financial assets that have been measured
at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuea)

(a)

110  annual Report 2020

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group:

The following amendments to standards are
mandatory for the Group and have been
adopted by the Group for the financial year
beginning on 1 April 2019:

HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
(Amendments) Negative Compensation
HKFRS 16 Leases
HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
(Amendments) Settlement
HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
(Amendments) and Joint Ventures
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments
Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKFRS 3,
2015-2017 Cycle HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

Other than as explained below regarding the
impact of HKFRS 16 Leases and HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, the
adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs
has had no significant financial effect on these
consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBESEH)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RAEEE(E)
(@) New and amended standards adopted by (@) AEBEEMZITREE

the Group: (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, except
for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors continue
to classify leases as either operating leases
or finance leases using similar principles as in
HKAS 17. HKFRS 16 did not have any significant
impact on leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect recognised at the
date of initial application, 1 April 2019.
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuea)

(a)

Annual Report 2020

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group: (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a
lease if the contract conveys a right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset and the
right to direct the use of the identified asset.
The Group elected to use the transition practical
expedient allowing the standard to be applied
only to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 at the date of initial application. Contracts
that were not identified as leases under HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16 has been applied only to contracts entered
into or changed on or after 1 April 2019.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuea)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group: (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

As a lessee, the Group previously classified
leases as either finance leases or operating
leases based on the assessment of whether the
lease transferred substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group.
Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a single
approach to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except
for two elective exemptions for leases of low-
value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis)
and leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of
underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental
expenses under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term commencing from
1 April 2019, the Group recognises depreciation
(and impairment, if any) of the right-of-use
assets and interest accrued on the outstanding
lease liabilities (as finance costs).

2

ERHREEBRAA]
(BRI R EERBRAF])

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Annual Report 2020

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group: (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining
lease payments and discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019
and included in lease liabilities. The right-of-
use assets were recognised at amounts equal
to the related lease liabilities by applying
HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition and adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised as at
1 April 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any
impairment based on HKAS 36 on that date. The
Group elected to present the right-of-use assets
included in “property, plant and equipment” in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the leasehold buildings (that were held
to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation) previously included in investment
property and measured at fair value, the Group
has continued to include them as investment
property at 1 April 2019. They continue to be
measured at fair value applying HKAS 40.

The Group has used the following elective
practical expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at
1 April 2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions
to leases with a lease term that ends
within 12 months from the date of initial
application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(a)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBESEH)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RAEEE(E)
New and amended standards adopted by (@) AEBEEMZITREE
the Group: (Continued) FT2ERI: (&)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BB R TR & R 1655
E(#)
Impacts on transition (Continued) HRENTE (&)
The impacts arising from the adoption of HKFRS RZZE—NFHEA—ABE
16 as at 1 April 2019 are as follows: FA &7 01 7% i 5 4E Bl 851657
MEERNFZESINNT
Increase/
(decrease)
#in, CRa)
HK$'000
FHET
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets RS ELN 9,386
Decrease in prepayment AR RIER D (313)
Increase in total assets EEARREE N 9,073
Liabilities =R
Increase in lease liabilities MES G
- Current — & 3,361
— Non-current —JEmE 5,712
Increase in total liabilities BERREE 9,073
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuea)
(@) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group: (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Impacts on transition (Continued)

The lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 reconciled
to the operating lease commitments as at 31
March 2019 are as follows:

2 FESTBEME#)

21 RBEE(E)
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E(#&)
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RZZE—NFMA—ABmA
EREERN_ZT—-hFE=H
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HK$'000
FHET
Operating lease commitments R-ZE-hE=A=+—BW
as at 31 March 2019 R ERE 10,074
Less: Commitments relating to B B R B E R g T
short-term leases and RZE-ZEF=—A=+—HK
those leases with a remaining 2 AT E R E AR
lease term ending on or
before 31 March 2020 (29)
10,045
Weighted average incremental RZZE—NFEA—A®
borrowing rate as at 1 April 2019 DN T 13RI 1A P X 5.13%
Discounted operating lease RZZE—NFEA—A®
commitments as at 1 April 2019 BLIR A& TH B AR 9,386
Less: Prepayment B TE FUER (313)
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 HR=-ZE—-hENA—-HNHEERE 9,073
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuea)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group: (Continued)

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically
addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,
and (iv) how an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances. The application of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 has had no material effect on
the amounts reported and/or disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuea)

(b)

Annual Report 2020

New and amended standards not yet
adopted

The following new and amended standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 April
2019 and have not been early adopted.

HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business!
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark
and HKFRS 7 Reform’
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between

(Amendments) an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture*
HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
(Amendments) concession?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material’

(Amendments)

Conceptual
Framework for
Financial Reporting
2018

Revised Conceptual
Framework for Financial
Reporting'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuea)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that
are expected to be applicable to the Group is
described below:

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations (Amendments)
Definition of a BusIness

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a
business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist
without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the
business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs
and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or
services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020.
Since the amendments apply prospectively to
transactions or other events that occur on or
after the date of first application, the Group will
not be affected by these amendments on the
date of transition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuea)

(b)
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New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) (Amendments)
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) address an inconsistency between the
requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’'s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed
by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuea)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) COVID-19-Related
Rent Concession

Amendments to HKFRS 16 “COVID-19-related
rent concessions” allow lessee to elect not to
assess whether a rent concession occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic is a lease modification. Such practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met:

o The change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than the
consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

o Any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2021; and

o There is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuea)

(b)

Annual Report 2020

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of
Material

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition
states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financia
statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020.
The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financia
Statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuea)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the "New Framework”) and the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

o reintroduces the terms stewardship and
prudence,

o introduces a new asset definition that
focuses on rights and a new liability
definition that is likely to be broader than
the definition it replaces, but does not
change the distinction between a liability
and an equity instrument;

o discusses historical cost and current
value measures, and provides
additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset
or liability,

o states that the primary measure of
financial performance is profit or loss, and
that only in exceptional circumstances
other comprehensive income will be used
and only for income or expenses that
arise from a change in the current value of
an asset or liability; and

o discusses uncertainty, derecognition,
unit of account, the reporting entity and
combined financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuea)

(b)
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New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the "New Framework”) and the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards (Continued)
Consequential amendments have been made
so that references in certain HKFRSs have
been updated to the New Framework, whilst
some HKFRSs are still referred to the previous
versions of the framework. These amendments
are effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on or after 1 April 2020, with earlier
application permitted. Other than specific
standards which still refer to the previous
versions of the framework, the Group will rely
on the New Framework on its effective date in
determining the accounting policies especially
for transactions, events or conditions that are
not otherwise dealt with under the accounting
standards.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.2 Subsidiaries

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
(a) Consolidation (Continuead)

Annual Report 2020

()

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity's
net assets in the event of liquidation
are measured at either fair value
or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

@)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date,
any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value
of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9
in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is
less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Consolidation (Continuead)

(a)

Annual Report 2020

()

(i)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEREBE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

22 MERT (&)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

(b) Separate financial statements (b) BIMBHRRER

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for B A Rl 2 I E L i A kR
at cost less impairment. Costs include direct BEAR KEABEREERE
attributable costs of investment. The results FEMRR AN - (Y B AR 4
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the AR RS W R RSB A
Company on the basis of dividend received and fR o
receivable.
Impairment testing of the investments in i iR BB H M B A R E R AR
subsidiaries is required upon receiving SHREM AR LATE - oW
dividends from these investments if the B EmEAPREREE
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive BMEGEEVBRERATIRE
income of the subsidiary in the period the HREEFE(BERE)Z
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount BREE - AR BZIREW
of the investment in the separate financial B BE - R B AR 2%
statements exceeds the carrying amount in BEATRERH -
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting 23 7EER

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance

Ay

LENRERERTIELERKEA
REFEZABRE B2 ARSE-
KRR ZHATESHERREE
LEREBA A AFHBESIERE
BENBRERMIHELENEZR

of the operating segments, has been identified as ] e
the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.
2.4 Foreign currency translation 24 HNEBRE
(@) Functional and presentation currency (@ IhERZEINER

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’'s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars
("HK$") which is the Company's functional
and the Group’s presentation currency. Other
functional currencies are Renminbi (‘RMB"),
Euro (“EUR") and US dollar (“US$").

The Directors consider that presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in HK$ will
facilitate analysis on financial information of the
Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.4 Fore
(b)
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ign currency translation (Continued)
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income within “finance cost”.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or 10ss and other comprehensive income
within “other gains/(losses) — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified
as fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing exchange rate at the date of
that statement of financial position,

- income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

- all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part
of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.4 Fore
(d)

Annual Report 2020

ign currency translation (Continued)
Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving 1oss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in the
equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposal (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not
result in the group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBESEH)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical

2.5 % RERFM

WE - RE MERMIRE L KA R

cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the item’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs to their residual values over the estimated
useful lives, as follows:
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Property over the unexpired L/JE S b GE RO IR

period of the lease BRRIYT &
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years RERKE 3-5%F
Motor vehicles 4-5 years a2l 4-5%F
vessel 20 years GERi 204F
Leasehold improvement 3-5 years HEEE 3-5%F
When a vessel is acquired, the costs of major WHE A AR B - A T IRET TR IS HE (S

components which are usually replaced or renewed
at the next dry-docking are identified and depreciated
over the period to the next estimated dry-docking
date. Costs incurred on subsequent dry-docking of a
vessel are capitalised and depreciated over the period
to the next estimated dry-docking date.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. The carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amounts if
the carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of that item (including the relevant prepaid
lease payments) at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to accumulated
profits.

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is measured at its fair values. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property
is included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposals.
Any gains or losses arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the
period in which the item is derecognised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEREBE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.7 Goodwill 2.7 BEE

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU or the group of CGUs to
which goodwill has been allocated is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.8

29

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the
fair value at the date of acquisition and recognised
separately from goodwill. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each reporting period end.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Other assets subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.10 Financial assets

(a)

(b)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (OCI) or through
profit or loss); and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held-for-trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Annual Report 2020

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in
other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

(c)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised
in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses)
in the period in which it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Annual Report 2020

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in
OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to
be recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in
the statement of comprehensive income as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs") for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(d)

Impairment (Continuead)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For
those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may
also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

2

ERHREEBRAA]
(BRI R EERBRAF])

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok B U5 A Wi

TESTHHREBRE (2)

210ERMEE (&)

(d)

HAE (&)

—RIA

TEHAE B R 1R 9 18 B B
fER - LE TR UREE
Rk g ARELNNEER
B s AREEERRREM]
TR RI2{E B A AT B 3 A
ENEM (12EABREER
B)SIBMEEREB LA
THANREERREBRE
Bz EEERRNE &
ERZRARB T FRBERE
EREEERRHEREE
BE R (RREEEERS
MEH) B

REHREEH AEEFHEE
RTANEERRELBEM
HHERIASRERZ G0 - ETTRY
B AEELARBREEHE
MTAEAMEDRR R
NrEAEHeRTAESE
MR RRELR LEEE
BHEBEICE HI KRR A
SHEEMERENER &
S MBI AR -

fia & 491 K8 90K - BRI A
SEREREERRBELD-
AW -EETERT KRB
KN E R B R AR EER
EREAKERENEFNEE
RATANERT AR
WBEBAREESHTRE K
SETAESEREERR
EX - RARERRKES
FRETRE REERBKE
35 °

ZECTEFHR

141

\,

N\



HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
_ ANV STOR R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHESE )
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 REE (&)
(d) Impairment (Continuea) (d) ®WE#E)
General approach (Continued) —MR T E (&)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subject RBHEKASAENERNEE
to impairment under the general approach and R—MAETERE BBRT
they are classified within the following stages NEt BB T ENE S
for measurement of ECLs except for trade JE W SR8 % JE W B AE B R
receivables and finance lease receivables which BN ZERMEEWSER
apply the simplified approach as detailed below: LATNTREME BB BT 2 & ER ¢
Stage 1 -  Financial instruments for which FMBE — BYPER
credit risk has not increased IREEE
significantly since initial [ fex I % B8
recognition and for which the ZEmMEE
loss allowance is measured at R R Ik
an amount equal to 12-month HER121E
ECLs AEHEE
EEH R
AFERNS M
IA
Stage2 -  Financial instruments for FRE — BUIPER
which credit risk has increased IREEE
significantly since initial [B b B R E
recognition (but that are 0 (e
not credit-impaired financial FEEERE
assets) and for which the loss TREE)
allowance is measured at an BEEER
amount equal to lifetime ECLs HIZAER
T HITEHAfE
EEBEeE
FTEMS
IA
Stage3 -  Financial assets that are credit- FoBE — RMEAH
impaired at the reporting date =E /A
(but that are not purchased or (M I 3 B
originated credit-impaired) and B ol IRER
for which the loss allowance is ZERE)
measured at an amount equal BHESBEE
to lifetime ECLs (R
T HITEHAfE
EEBEeE
FTEMS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.10 Financial assets (Continuea)

(d)

Impairment (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and finance lease
receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit 0SS experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators
that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery includes generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, no impairment loss was identified on
the cash and cash equivalents.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.11 Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
payables, contract liabilities, accruals, other payables
and deposits received, bond payable, retained
consideration payable, amount due to a director and
amount due to non-controlling interests. Financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and,
where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs
unless the Group designated a financial liability at
FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised to the profit or loss over the life of
the financial liabilities, except for derivatives and
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which are
carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses
recognized in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes
in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit
or loss are included within finance costs.

A financial liability is derecognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amount is recognized in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHERE (£)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments 212 M I A

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Margin financing service refers to the lending of funds
by the Group to customers for purchase of securities
for which the customers provide the Group with
collateral.

The Group recognizes margin financing services
to customers as margin accounts trade receivable,
and recognizes the commission as interest income
accordingly.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair values and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
_ ANV STOR R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHRHEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.14 Inventories 21478

146

Inventories comprise (i) bunkers on board of vessels
and lubricating oil; and (ii) marine products, all
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using first-in, first-out
(FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses. Bunkers will be
used for the operation of the vessel, therefore the
bunkers are not written down to net realisable value
when the market price falls below cost if the overall
shipping activity is expected to be profitable.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and at financial
institution.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are
classified as “restricted bank deposits”. Restricted
bank deposits are excluded from cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.17 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Trade and other payables (Continued)

Trade payable to brokerage customers are all
deposited in the bank accounts designated by the
Group. The Group recognizes the funds as liabilities
for settlement to the customers. The Group executes
trade orders through stock exchanges on behalf
of the customers. If the total amount of purchased
securities exceeds that of sold securities, accounts
payable to brokerage customers decrease by the
difference in addition to the withholding stamp duty
and commission. If the total amount of sold securities
exceeds that of purchased securities, accounts
payable to brokerage customers increase by the
difference after deducting the withholding stamp duty
and commission.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that part or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
_ ANV STOR R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHRHEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.20 Provisions 2.20 &5

148

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period date in
the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHERE (£)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 221N RIEEFT SR (&)

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements.

However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the temporary

BT ERAAELIERAREE
MABEZHEREERSWHRE
ZRHEEME CERER-

AT WEELETSRTIKE R
H (RBAFHRIN VIS ERZE
EXAE MEBZXHWEZE
EREYVE T EY 3 RN
LR BIEPASIHIB AR BE B
REBMXBERBMH 2K (O
7)) B - YRR EIRAARELFR
GHEEEXEERTEMSEHER
BREA -

ELEFMGHAGMRMBARREE
ERMERVEREZREMERS B
BEAEEAAZEGHIEREZED
BORE MEREZREANER
KRR T2 EE ARSI KT
B — AR RE R = R REHE R 1
ER2EME - ERF] L HEREN
SEARES KRR BRI B

difference for associates. Only when there is an MER(EERIBEEE@EBE A
agreement in place that gives the Group the ability A) 2 R0 B ) 22 A B AR T D B 1
to control the reversal of the temporary difference in ZR)KT T HREE -

the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
_ ANV STOR R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHRHEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.21 Ccurrent and deferred income tax (Continued) 221 BV REIEFT SR (&)

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment property that are measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
property are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHERE (£)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.22 Revenue recoghition 222 i EHER

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHRHEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued) 222 Wt (&)

152

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS
15.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods are recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the buyer, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the buyer’'s acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specified location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the buyer, and either
the buyer has accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when
the goods are delivered to the customers as this
represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHERE (£)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.22 TR (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Rendering of services

Revenue from a time charter is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the charter.
Revenue from a voyage charter is recognised over
time, which is determined on a time proportion
method of the voyage.

Revenue from finance leasing consultancy fee and
handling fee are recognised at a point of time when
the services are rendered.

Revenue from the securities brokerage services is
recognised at a point of time when the customer has
obtained control of the service, generally when the
trades are executed.

Revenue from placing and underwriting services
is recognised at a point of time when the relevant
placing and underwriting are completed.

Revenue from asset management services is
recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time.

Revenue from other sources

Finance lease, factoring and loan interest income is
recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continuea)
Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer from which the Group
has received a consideration (or an amount of
consideration that is due) from the customer. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

2.23 Employee benefits
(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not recognised
until the time of leave.

(b) Retirement scheme obligations

In accordance with the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group
participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant municipal and provincial governments
in the PRC under which the Group and the PRC
based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated at a
percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired
PRC based employees payable under the
plans described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement and
other post retirement benefits of its employees.
The assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in independently
administered funds managed by the PRC
government.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Employee benefits (Continuead)

(b)

(c)

Retirement scheme obligations (Continued)
The Group also participates in a pension
scheme under the rules and regulations of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
("MPF Scheme”), which is a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme
are based on minimum statutory contribution
requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregate income subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month. The assets of this pension
scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.

The Group’'s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed
as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination
when the entity has a detailed formal plan
to terminate the employment of current
employees without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundantly the termination
benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period are discounted
to present value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.23 Emp
(d)

Annual Report 2020

loyee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options
granted. In determining the fair value of the
options granted:

o including any market performance
conditions are taken into considerations
(for example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining as
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETHHESE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Employee benefits (Continued) 223 EER/H (&)
(d) Share-based payments (Continued) (d) UBRBBEEZNAR(E)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each reporting period,
the Company revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market performance and
services conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares and the proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.

The options granted by the Company over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
are treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity account.

A cancellation during the vesting period (other
than a grant cancelled by forfeiture when
the vesting conditions are not satisfied) is
accounted for as an acceleration of vesting, and
therefore recognize immediately the amount
that otherwise would have been recognised
for services received over the remainder of the
vesting period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
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The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

(@ Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is
the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated

2.24 Leases 224HE
Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019 RIE-NFENA—HRERNE
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the assets as follows:

Leased properties Over the lease terms HEME HHEFH
Motor vehicle 3 years AE 35
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.24 Leases (Continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019
(Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including insubstance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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2.24 Leases (Continued) 224FE (#&)
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Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019

(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets
The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of office properties (that is those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment that are considered
to be of low value. Lease payments on short-
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term leases and leases of low-value assets are RAERZ -
recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor FEBHEAA

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee are accounted for as finance
leases.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHERE (£)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.24 Leases (Continued) 224FE (&)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2019

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included
in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an
amount representing the minimum lease payment
receivables and initial direct costs is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
finance lease receivable. Any unguaranteed residual
value is also recognised at the inception of the lease.
The difference between the sum of the minimum
lease payment receivables, initial direct costs, the
unguaranteed residual value and their present value
is recognised as unearned finance income. Unearned
finance income is recognised over the period of the
lease using the effective interest rate method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHRHEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.24 Leases (Continued) 224FE (#&)

162

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2019 (Continuea)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net
of any incentives received from the lessor are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss other
comprehensive income on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.26 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

Annual Report 2020
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BMEEREREBEEEZEREE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 ¥REKREZE

The Group’s major financial instruments include
other non-current assets, other financial asset, held-
for-trading investments, finance lease receivables,
loan and interest receivables, trade and other
receivables, factoring receivables, trade deposits
paid, cash held on behalf of clients, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, contract liabilities, bond
and interest payable, retained consideration payable,
accruals, other payables, trade deposit received,
lease liabilities, amount due to the non-controlling
interests and amount due to a director. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments, include liquidity risk, credit risk, interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk and price risk, and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The Group has adopted the risk management
policies and guidelines. The board of directors meets
periodically to analyse and formulate measures to
manage the Group's exposure to different risks arising
from the use of financial instruments. Generally, the
Group employs conservative strategies regarding its
risk management. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(@) Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed for
each operating entity of the Group and are
aggregated by the Group finance department.
The Group finance department monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements
to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining sufficient
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing
facilities at all times so that the Group does not
breach borrowing limits or covenants (where
applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities.
Such forecasting takes into consideration
the Group’s debt financing plans, covenant
compliance, compliance with internal balance
sheet ratio targets and, if applicable external
regulatory or legal requirements.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 MEEREEEERBXE(#)

3.1 MBEBERE (&)

(a) Liquidity risk (Continued) (@) RBESEME (E)
The table analyses the Group's financial TERIBERBRSHAREEGD
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings FE R 2 FABREAREE
based on the remaining period at the end of Z &Rt B EE D REE 2 E
the reporting period to the contractual maturity WAl - RAFMBEESBAEL
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the RERBEME -
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Between
Less than 1and Over
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
DRIE 12855 55 E @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL THL FET AL
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-TF
=A=1-H
Trade payables ERTAR K 35223 - - 35,223
Bond payable R E S N 7,800 - 7,800
Bond interest payable EREHFIS 78 - - 78
Retained consideration ERRERE
payable - 33,301 - 33,301
Contract liabilities AHER 893 37 - 930
Lease liabilities HEBR 13,450 10,333 - 23,783
Accruals, other payables [EATER - KR
and deposit received FEREYIEE 27,237 - - 27,237
Amount due to a director B —2EEHE 2,286 - - 2,286
Amount due to JER R AR IR 25 TR
non-controlling interests 233 - - 233
79,400 51,471 - 130,871
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NEF
ZR=1+-H
Trade payables JERTAR K 2 - - 2
Contract liabilities ANEE 1,180 516 - 1,696
Accruals, other payables [EETER  EfER
and deposit received FEREYIEZESE 35,772 - - 35,772
Amount due to a director [EN—2EEFE 4,556 - - 4,556
Amount due to JER R RIS TR
non-controlling interests 250 - - 250
41,760 516 - 42,276
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its trade receivables, factoring receivables,
finance lease receivables, loan and interest
receivables, deposits and other receivables
which represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk.

To manage this risk, cash deposits are mainly
placed with reputable banks which are high-
credit-quality financial institutions. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sale of
goods and provision of services are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history
and appropriate financial strength. It also
has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
regularly the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables, loan and interest
receivables, factoring receivables, finance lease
receivables, deposits and other receivables to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group
has no significant concentrations of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Annual Report 2020

Credit risk (Continuea)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of financial asset and
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial asset as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

. internal credit rating;
o external credit rating;

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results and finance position
of the borrower; and

o significant changes in the expected
performance, payment status and
behaviour of the borrower.

The trade receivables, factoring receivables,
finance lease receivables, loan and interest
receivables, deposits and other receivables are
subject to the ECL model.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

While cash held on behalf of clients and cash
and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment of HKFRS 9, no impairment loss was
identified.

Trade receivables and finance lease receivables

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring ECL which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables and finance lease receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the ECL, trade
receivables and finance lease receivables have
been individually assessed based on respective
credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables.

For trade receivables and finance lease
receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information
based on the provision matrix is disclosed
in Notes 21 and 20 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Annual Report 2020

Credit risk (Continuea)

Other receivables

Impairment on factoring receivables, loan
and interest receivables, deposits and other
receivables are measured as either 12-month
ECL or lifetime ECL, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on
the asset as at the end of the reporting period
with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition by considering available, reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information.

Maximum exposure and staging classification
The table below shows the credit quality and
the maximum exposure to credit risk based
on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly
based on the customers’ creditworthiness
information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and the staging
classification as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March
2020. The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts and the exposure to credit risk for
financial assets.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BHXEXERREEBEBEREEK &)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continue)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BMKREBEER (&)
(b) credit risk (Continuea) (b)y EERB (&)
Maximum exposure and staging classification &= AR Bk O R g E 5 4
(Continued) (#&)
31 March 2020
—E-EFZB=+-H
Stage Ill
Stage | Stage Il (Lifetime
(12-month  (Lifetime ECL-  Simplified
ECL) ECL) impaired)  approach Total
BEe=
BE= (B
BE— (B wESR
(12BRR REHR EHEE
BHEE BEHEE Bk-
B%) Bx) CRE)  EthE &t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FEL FEL FHEL TEL S
Note (i) Note (i) Note (i)
B EEG) B3 () B3 G)
Trade receivables & PR 3R - - - 354,590 354,590
Factoring receivables FEURIBFNIE 27,032 - - - 27,032
Finance lease receivables EURERENE - - - 176,778 176,778
Loan and interest receivables  FEMRE KR 2 B i)
Note (jii) 31,950 42,286 - - 74,236
Deposits and other receivables &4 & E b fE I A
Note (ii) FEEE D) 20,402 327 5,207 - 25,936
Cash held on behalf of clients ~ BPEFFR 35,787 - - - 35,787
Cash and bank balances ReRFNTER 183,430 - - - 183,430
298,601 42,613 5,207 531,368 877,789
Less: Allowances for AR EE R
impairment losses (482) (1,118) (2,980) (61,316) (65,896)
Net carrying amount REFE 298,119 41,495 2227 470,052 811,893
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HM¥RMEEEERBE(#)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERRBREE (&)

Credit risk (Continued) (b) &R (&)

Maximum exposure and staging classification m A B B O R & B 5

(Continued) (%)

31 March 2019
“E-AE=f=+-A
Stage Ill
Stage | Stage Il (Lifetime
(12-month  (Lifetime ECL-  Simplified

ECL) ECL) impaired) approach Total

&=

BRE= (B8

e — (2 FESRK

(12BAm  FEHKN BEHEE

BHEE HBEHEEE Bki-
BX) BX) 2RE) sk a5t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET THT TR TR TET

Note (i) Note (i) Note (i)

B 5 ) BT 5 i) BT 5 )

Trade receivables JEMREE R - - - 216,639 216,639

Factoring receivables FEWIRIE TR 8,178 - - - 8,178

Finance lease receivables ERERETE - - - 222,811 222,811

Loan and interest receivables  FEIE F L FIE 81,861 6,009 489 - 88,359

Deposits and other receivables 1% K E b fE Uk 5B

Note (i) () 12,622 - 25,274 - 37,89

Cash and bank balances Be RBTET 140,293 - - - 140,293

242954 6,009 25,763 439,450 714,176

Less: Allowances for B REEBERE
impairment losses (270) (144) (22,925) (62,524) (85,863)

Net carrying amount REFE 242,684 5,865 2,838 376,926 628,313

Notes: B o

(i) Among which, the financial assets falling in stage 1 (i) Heh 2 AE—HEBRHE A
are mainly credit rated as Pass, all of the financial BEXZNRRET B
assets falling in stage 2 and stage 3 are credit A RS =R ERAY
rated as Special Mention and Non-performing, SRMEED RIFFR AR
respectively. TR

(i)  Deposits and other receivables amounted to iy MREBE-_Z_ZTF=H
approximately HK$327,000 (2019: HK$297,000) has =St+—BIEFERN &S
been moved from Stage | to Stage Il (2019: Stage | REMEKRRIBELSELLOR
to Stage Ill) during the year ended 31 March 2020. 327,000 7T (= F — N4 :
The respective allowance for impairment losses 297,000/ 7T ) B B P& B — 8
of approximately HK$8,000 (2019: HK$2,000) also ERE-_(ZE-NF: A
moved from stage | to stage Il during the year PR —2FRR=) -HiAH
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Stage | to . BB R R R S R4 /38,000

BT (ZF — 15 2,000/
L) BERZZT_ZTF=FA
—t+—HIFERHEE—
EBERE - (ZT—hF
HEER—EEE=) -

(il Loan and interest receivables amounted to iy RHEZE A
approximately HK$36,088,000 (2019: Nil) has been =+ - i3
moved from stage | to stage Il during the year & % A
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil). The respective 36,088,0 Ju
allowance for impairment losses of approximately Fm)E s g &
HK$86,000 also moved from stage | to stage Il with — (== 18
an additional impairment loss of approximately 2 R (B 7 4 BREANA
HK$869,000 provided during the year ended 31 86,0008 L  ER =T =-F
March 2020. F-A=+—HIEFERNHA

FEER—EZMER — - A AN
AL 1B 15 18 1 5 £9869,00078
o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group's operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group was not exposed to
significant interest rate risk as at 31 March 2020
and 2019 as there was no variable interest
bearing assets or liabilities at the end of the
reporting period.

Foreign currency risk

The Directors are of the opinion that almost all
of the transactions of the Group and recognised
financial assets and liabilities are denominated
in HK$, Renminbi (‘RMB"), United States dollar
("US$") and Euro (“EUR"). Given the HK$ is
pegged to the US$, the management does not
expect that there will be any significant currency
risk associated with such US$ denominated
balances and therefore no sensitivity analysis
is presented thereon. Otherwise, the Group
had no material exposure to currency risk as
majority of the Group's asset were denominated
in its functional currency of either HK$ or
RMB. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management will monitor the foreign exchange
exposure should the need arises.

() Exposure to foreign exchange risk
The following table details the Group's
net exposure at the end of the
reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets/ (liabilities)
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denominated in a currency other than the [RL B A R 5 B R 2 B B

functional currency of the entity to which 5%‘%5 °
they related.

2020 2019

—E-BF —N%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

RMB AR 21 22

uss$ ETT 869 871

EUR BT (354) (364)

536 529

ZE_FFFR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HM¥RMEEEERBE(#)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BMKREBERE &)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) scmbs (&)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BUREZHT

The following table indicates the TRERNEBREER
approximate change in the Group loss EERRERREATE
before taxation (and accumulated losses) RNERR 2 SN[ =518
in response to reasonably possible AR B VR 2 BRAX
changes in the foreign exchange rates to AIEE (R RFTEE)
which the Group has significant exposure B Es-

at the end of the reporting period.

2020 2019

—E-EE —E-NF
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss before (decrease) loss before
in foreign taxation and in foreign  taxation and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated
rates losses rates losses
S i RRBE AT AN HBRALAT
BN BEKRRS EXRLNS  BERZRR
(R2) BENSE (RL) BEAEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
RMB AR 10% (2) 10% )
(10%) 2 (10%) 2
EUR BT 10% 35 10% 36
(10%) (35) (10%) (36)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in
foreign exchange rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period, and that
all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes
in foreign exchange rates over the period
until the next annual reporting date. Results
of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the effects
on the Group loss/profit after tax measured
in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HK$ at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period
for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2019.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its held-for-trading investments in listed
equity securities. Decisions to buy or sell listed
equity securities are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual securities
compared to index of relevant stock markets
and other industry indicators.

sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the end of the reporting period. If
the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (2019: 10%) higher/lower, the
Group’s pre-tax loss for the year ended 31
March 2020 would decrease/increase by
HK$1,710,000 (2019: pre-tax loss decrease/
increase by HK$7,060,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments.
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()
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Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group's financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March
by level of the inputs to valuation technigue
used to measure fair value. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The Group uses independent valuers to perform
valuations of financial instruments which are
categorised into level 3. Valuation reports with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement
are prepared by the independent valuer at the
end of each reporting period, and are reviewed
and approved by the management of the Group.
Discussion of the valuation process and results
with the management of the Group is held
once a year to coincide with the end of each
reporting period.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(f)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group's assets
that are also measured at their fair values at 31
March 2020 and 2019.

ERHREEBRAA]
(BRI R EERBRAF])

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok B U5 A Wi

3 MEEBREEAEREE @)
3.1 MBEBERE (&)

M BAEME(E)
TH2IR_F-TER=
T-AF=A=+—ATI
RABEHEZAREEE

2020 2019
“ECEf ZZ-nE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-4 224 E=4 = R FZ4 E=H =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERL TR TR THL THEL THL FEL
Investment property & #% - - 42,946 42,946 - - 48,321 4831
Other financial asset Et4REAE
- Profit guarantee ~ —J&FIRE - - 356 356 - - - -
Held-fortrading  H{EEEH
investments: ®E:
- Listed equity —ETRA
securities B5 17,100 - - 17,100 70,599 - - 70,599
Total it 17,100 - 43,302 60,402 70,599 - 48321 118,920

There were no transfers between any levels
during the year.

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. Instruments
included in level 1 comprise equity securities
listed in Hong Kong Stock Exchange classified as
held-for-trading investments.

The fair values of current financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate
to their carrying amount.

RAFER FR BT EE
% o

F—REe BT A

RNEBMEEENTRMTA
M RAETIER RS R
MSHREFE - HAEERES
REFEHIMER 5 - &5H
BoRe TESE ERR
BREERE BRFHRER
PR R Mo E HR AR A IR B
THMIHER 5 - &M% AEER
RER- AEEBENERE
EMERNTHRE/RT
BAB-WETAINAE—
FFIABE RN TABRER
BARFLERENTBH
AT EMERARE S

ERcREENAB KA
BEARERE-

ZECTEFHR

175

\,

N\



HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok B U5 A Wi

4

176

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Annual Report 2020

3 MEEREEEERBXE(#)

3.1 MBEBERE (&)

Fair value estimation (Continued) ) DREMGE (&)
Financial instruments in level 2 FE-R BT A
The fair value of financial instruments that are WIREFRMSEENS R
not traded in an active market is determined TEMNRAREFERBMERIM
by using valuation techniques. These valuation BT o EEERNEENA
techniques maximise the use of observable SN BRMSEE It
market data where it is available and rely as EEREHEREBEHEY
little as possible on entity specific estimates. ke - Wit ELEAEMH
If all significant inputs required to fair value an FIEEZERAREE  BlfZ
instrument are observable, the instrument is TEFFAFE M-
included in level 2.
Financial instruments in level 3 E=Rzz@mTA
If one or more of the significant inputs is i —{Esk A EEZ 28 IE
not based on observable market data, the AERABRMSEE  RIZT
instrument is included in level 3. Bt AE=H-
Save for the Note 16 to the consolidated Bize BB mEMT16EE
financial statements for disclosures of the %%Zﬁﬂﬁﬁ\\'m#&iﬁﬂﬁkﬁ
investment property, the valuation techniques theEMEERE=-"RAALE
and key inputs used of other financial asset of 5T = BT A B0 (B B I g
level 3 fair value measurement at the end of the 28N
reporting period are as follows:
Significant
Other financial Valuation unobservable
asset technique inputs Rate
EAFRAHE
Hith e mEE HEFE e [
2020
—E-ZF
Profit guarantee Monte Carlo simulation Discount rate 9.93%-9.97%
& AR B SERETE BRI X
Volatility 46.31%
R
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(f)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)

The fair value measurement is descendingly
correlated to the discount rate used, i.e. an
increase in discounted rate used in isolation
would result in a decrease in the fair value
measurement, and vice versa.

The fair value measurement is ascendingly
correlated to the volatility used, i.e. an increase
in volatility used in isolation would result in an
increase in the fair value measurement, and
vice versa.

No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the
impact of changes in discount rate and volatility
as the exposure is insignificant to the Group.

The following table presents the changes in
level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 March

3
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BgEREE(E)
( DREM(E)

FE-REeMTA(E)
NAEFEEMERNE
RRIBERBER - B85
BRI KR F A B EH A RE
AETE R2TFR-

NS ERHE B P E AR 1R
BIRIERZ - BB B A
IR EF B A REFE
EH RZ IR

A A B R RCR Y BB K
RORIER S S TEE - A
158 15 4 BB BRI 547 -

TRIFHE-T-BH=
B=+—BULEEZE=H

2020. T E&E)o
Other
financial Investment
asset property
Hit
CHEE REME
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHEL
At 1 April 2019 RZZE-NEMA—H - 48,321
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wk B A (FIEE35)
(Note 35) 944 -
Fair value changes recognised REZBERHAAEE
in profit or loss (588) (2,128)
Currency translation difference P 3 & - (3,247)
At 31 March 2020 RZEZZF=A=+—H 356 42,946
—z-—zreyg 177
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED

(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 1 BB e M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

MBRREREBEERBER (#)

3.2 EXEMER

3.2 cCapital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
and borrowings. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders or sell assets to
reduce debt. The Group monitors capital on the
basis of gearing ratio. The total debt to equity ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including bond
payable, lease liabilities and amount due to a director)
less cash and bank balances. The total debt to equity
ratio at 31 March 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

AEBERALL A BRRHEAE
EARBEGE 2N T ARE
RS o

AEBZERRERIEE S M
BE-REFAAEELARE K&
B EREINTRRZRESHE
KM EEENBDER - REEIA
BELRERERN AEARLE
@it R B BEFRERAESE -
BEFENAEE (BRBEMNE
7 HEREMEN—REZHAE)
WS RRITEFFE-R_F =
TER-_ZE-NF=A=+—HZ
BEAREERLRNT:

2020 2019

—E-EF —EFNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Bond payable BT ES 7,800 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 23,783 -
Amount due to a director N —REEHIA 2,286 4,556
Less: Cash and bank balances IR RIRTTETT (183,430) (140,293)
Net cash & F5E (149,561) (135,737)
Total equity s 895,225 748,298
Net debt to equity ratio BEFEEERILE N/A FiE F N/A 3@
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Useful lives and impairment assessments

of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determine the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation
and amortisation charges for property, plant and
equipment by reference to the estimated periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets. Management
will revise the depreciation and amortisation charges
where useful lives are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives and actual residual values
may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic
reviews could result in a change in depreciable lives
and residual values and therefore depreciation and
amortisation expense in the future periods.

The Group reviews tangible assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the related carrying amounts may not be
recovered. Assessing the impairment loss requires a
determination of fair value which is based on the best
estimates and information available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 EZESHHERHAE &)
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(b) Useful lives of intangible assets (b)y BEFXEEZAERFH

The intangible assets comprises of trading right and
licences.

Trading right is the right allows the Group to trade
securities in the Stock Exchanges.

Licences comprise the licences of Type 1, 2, 4 and
9 regulated activities licences under Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

The Group's trading rights and licences are classified
as indefinite-lived intangible assets in accordance
with HKAS 38 “Intangible Assets”. This conclusion
is supported by the fact that there were no specific
terms for the rights and the directors of the Company
expected that the business underlying the rights can
be operated perpetually.

Under HKAS 38, the Group re-evaluates the useful
lives of the trading right and licences at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the view of
indefinite useful life for the assets. As at 31 March
2020, the carrying amount of the trading right and
licences of the Group are approximately HK$500,000
and HK$21,000,000 (2019: Nil) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 EBEEZESHEHERHE (&)
AND JUDGEMENTS (continuea)
(c) Provision for impairment of financial (c) &MEE (BYIRN  BUIRE

assets (trade receivables, factoring
receivables, finance lease receivables,
loan and interest receivables, deposits
and other receivables)

The Group’s management determines the provision
for impairment of the financial assets (including trade
receivables, factoring receivables, finance lease
receivables, loan and interest receivables, deposits
and other receivables) based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected credit loss rates. The
Group used judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past collection
history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of these financial assets and impairment
charge in the periods in which such estimate has
been changed. The details of the key assumptions and
inputs used in the impairment assessment are set out
in Note 3.1(b) to the consolidated financial statements
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continuea)
(d) Fair value of financial instruments

(e)

(f)

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using valuation
technigues including the discounted cash flow model.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. The judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible
asset with indefinite useful lives in
relation to Financial Services Segment

The Group determines whether goodwill and
intangible asset with indefinite useful lives are
impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill and intangible asset are
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. Further details
of impairment testing of goodwill and intangible asset
are given in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Fair value of investment property

The fair value of investment property is determined
by using valuation technique. Details of the judgement
and assumptions have been disclosed in Note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2020
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(®

(h)

Income taxes and deferred taxation
Significant judgments and estimates are required
in determining the provision for income tax. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current income tax and deferred tax
provision in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

Deferred taxation on investment property
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets arising from investment
property that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group's investment property and concluded that
the Group's investment property in the PRC is not
held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining
the Group's deferred taxation on investment property
in the PRC, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment property measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is not rebutted and deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised.
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(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)
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5 REVENUE FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS
Revenue represents (i) net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns and trade discount; (i) interest
income from money lending, factoring, finance leasing
and margin financing; (iii) consultancy fee and handling fee

income from finance leasing; (iv) brokerage commission
income from securities dealing; (v) underwriting and placing

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREEXH 2 Ws

H&ﬁéﬂﬂ(i)?&ﬁ%fﬁ%%m/\%@ (MIBRRER
B4 (MEE - RE mEHEERR
uﬁ/i\ﬁﬂéf*ugj'&)\ |||F’HE,§%HKE El=) n@g
RFEBWA: (MEEZFLELAEK
A WS RBEHERSWA: RVIEEE
BERA-

commission income; and (vi) asset management fee

income.

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as

AREBMARFRERSZZ AT :

follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —NF
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Restated
KB
Sales of goods s 161,299 67,664
Interest income from money lending, EE-RIE REHEEN
factoring, finance leasing RES rﬁﬁ FEHA
and margin financing 40,285 33,604
Consultancy fee and handling fee BMEREZHRNERFEBE RN
income from finance leasing* 3,499 3,820
Asset management fee income BEEEEBIWA 43 -
Brokerage commission income TR AR I 1,026 -
Underwriting and placing commission @ﬁ%&@ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂ&]\
income 32,366 -
238,518 105,088
Revenue from contracts with ERMBREEREISFEET
customers within HKFRS 15: EEEHWE:
Recognised over time KRR —IF[E] R A 7
Asset management fee income  HEEEE&EMA 43 -
Recognised at a point of time KRR — b5 (B B 7R
Sales of goods 2 o 8H & 161,299 67,664
Consultancy fee and handling fee MENELRNBERFEBRA
income from finance leasing* 3,499 3,820
Brokerage commission income KRS N 1,026 -
Underwriting and placing commission &84 & B2 & @& WA
income 32,366 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 198190 /1484
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, essy /1484
Revenue from other sources: HsRFEWA :
Interest income from money lending, IREBEFEEFE 2 EE -
factoring, finance leasing and RE - -BEMERRE
margin financing calculated using A RS HA
effective interest method 40,285 33,604
238,518 105,088
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5 REVENUE FROM CONTINUING 5 BEKEEBoWE B

OPERATIONS (continuea)

* Contract liabilities primarily relate to the Group’s unfulfilled
performance obligations to transfer goods or services to
customers for which consideration has been received at the
reporting date. The contract liability is recognised in revenue in
the period when performance obligations are fulfilled.

During the year, the Group recognised revenue of approximately
HK$1,328,000 (2019: approximately HK$1,349,000) from
consultancy fee income that was included in contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year.

* ENEETBEARKENSRSE A DWRE
PRI E AR TR G EM R REEE T
EPZBHNAERH -AHNARETKE
HETHERARBLA -

AEER AEEBAFNEOEETH
1,328,000/8 7T (== — /14 © 91,349,000
ATL) B B URATER AR -

As at 31 March 2020, the aggregated amount of the transaction NZE-EF=ZA=+—H HPEEX
price allocated to the remaining performance obligation under EERBANTRHGBENEANRSE
the Group's existing contracts is approximately HK$930,000 % 48 88 £9930,000 7T (ZZE —LF: 4

(2019: approximately HK$1,696,000). This amount represents
revenue expected to be recognised in the future from the
consultancy contracts entered into with the Group’s customers.
The Group will recognise the expected revenue in future when
or as the work is completed which is expected to occur over the
next one to two years (2019: one to three years).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the Board of the Company. The Board reviews the
Group's internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of the
operations. Each of the Group’s reportable segments
represents a strategic business unit that is subject to
risks and returns that are different from other reportable
operating segment.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group expanded
its business into financial services and discontinued the
business of vessel chartering. Certain comparative segment
information related to the vessel chartering is classified
as "loss for the year from a discontinued operation” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The impact of the
changes in the Group's reportable operating segments for
the year ended 31 March 2019 is considered retrospectively
and the Group's operating segment information is restated.
Furthermore, certain comparative segment information
has been represented to conform with changes in
measurement of segment profit or loss during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

1,696,000 7T) - BB T K B EARE
ERFINMERNEGL  WIHEARERE
REURA - REBBHER KL —ZME
(ZZE—NEF: —E=F) AEZNE K
TERERZBHSEARA -

DEEHR

ARREERFEREBEEREA B
BASEZ NHERE KWTERAR
HRAR - ERBRLSRER D EE

ays
pak -l

AEENELEBERBLRERILER
HEELBYER ARENBAZHE
ENERRASRBUERBELML BHR
B2 MEEDBAAZ KRR & O

o

A
#H

REBE_Z-_ZF=A=+—HILFE
N AREEREXFEZSBRBLEL
ISR - AlMMEE 2B TR
HEDBENEFARERADER K
FEARBCRIELEXBZEER] K
SEHE_T-NF=A=1t—HLF
ERZEREREDBEEH 2 FERE
BERE MAKBZEENDHEENCDE
Bl Lo REDBEHBEH D EH 25
NHEBE_Z-_ZTF=A=+—HI
FEDRBRHOABZ -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
The Group's reportable and operating segments are as
follows:

o Trading segment engaged in trading of goods in the
PRC,

o Money lending and factoring segment engaged in
provision of loan financing in Hong Kong, loan and
factoring financing in the PRC;

o Finance leasing segment engaged in provision of
finance leasing and sale-leaseback in the PRC; and

. Financial services segment engaged in provision
of securities dealing broking, placing, underwriting,
margin financing and asset management services in
Hong Kong.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies. Segment profit/
loss represents the profit/loss earned by each segment
without allocation of incomes or expenses which are not
recurring in nature and unrelated to the Group’s operating
performance, including central administration costs,
directors’ emoluments, gain/(loss) on changes in fair value
of held-for-trading investments, gain/(loss) on changes
in fair value of investment property, impairment loss on
deposits, prepayments and other receivables (non-trading
nature), realised gain/(loss) on disposal of held-for-trading
investments, gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries, finance
costs, exchange gain/(loss), rental income and interest
income from cash and bank balances.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments, all assets are
allocated to operating segments other than investment
property, held-for-trading investments, other financial
assets, cash and bank balances and other corporate assets.
All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than retained consideration payable, bond and interest
payable, amount due to a director, tax payables, deferred
tax liabilities and other corporate liabilities.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
The Board assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on their underlying operating profit/(10ss),
which is measured by profit/(loss) before taxation.

(@) Segment revenue and results

6 SEER#E)

R,/ (BER)ETE-

(@) ZEUREBERFE

ERHREEBRAA]
(B I AR AR A R])

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok B U5 A Wi

ERSRBEESHIHEBEERT,
(B8 ) FP A E R IR - Jo e ABR B AT 2 4

Year ended 31 March 2020
HE-E-RE-A-T-ALEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BAL
FEGEER fesy
Money
lending and Finance Financial Vessel
Trading factoring easing services Sub-total chartering Total
#ER
g5 RE HERE SHER gt filE Eh
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Segment revenue and results AEUEREE T TER T TER T TR Thr
Segment revenue 2ENE 161,298 14,124 25,724 31312 238,518 2,649 241,167
Segment results PEEE (2,925) 9,714 18,212 27,641 52,642 (814) 51,828
Corporate expenses TERR (24,899) - (24,899)
Operating profitiloss) mEET/ (B8 27,743 (814) 26,929
Corporate income PERA 3,892 17 3909
(Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENBLANE - 1,149 1,149
Release of cumulative exchange differences on - EEBEBHEHK 2
translation of foreign operation ZiHEREE - 1,330 1,330
Realised loss on disposal of held-fortrading ~ EERHEREEERE
investments BB (1,08) - (1,068)
L0ss on changes in BFEEEREDLEEY
fair valle of helc-fortrading investments Big (38,438) - (38,438)
Unrealised loss on changes
in fair value of other financial assets (588) - (588)
Finance costs BARK (1.451) - (1.451)
(Loss)/Profit efore taxation B (BE) /&7 (9.910) 1,682 (8,228)
Taxation charge REXH (12,535) - (12,535)
(Loss)/Profitfor the year KEE (BB) /57 (20,445) 1,682 (20,763)

ZECTEFHR
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea)

(@) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

6 DEEHRE)

(@) 2BWIERFE(H)

Year ended 31 March 2019
BE-T-NF=A=T-HILFE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

B&IE

BEEEER Tesk

Money

lending and Finance Vessel
Trading factoring leasing Sub-total  chartering Total
g5 [BERRE  REEE Nt hiMEE o
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Segment revenue and results PEREREE Fidn Fix TR TiEn FiEx Fix
Segment revenue FEYE 67,664 10,198 27,226 105,088 3152 108,240
Segment results PEEE (33,434) 6,673 17412 (9,349) (6,234) (15,583)
Corporate expenses PEFY 21,79 - 21,792
Operating loss REER (31,141) (6234) (37,379)
Corporate income BEHA 4523 27 4,550

Gain on changes in fair value of held-fortrading #{FEERA AL EEHRE
investments 5935 - 5935
Realised gain on disposal of held-forrading ~ BEBHEHEEFTRENRE

investments 4229 - 4,229
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries LENBAREE (5,458) - (5,458)
Loss before taxation BREAER 21912) (6,207) (28,119)
Taxation charge REx (7,909) - (7.909)
Loss for the year EEFE (29.821) (6.207) (36,028)
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TRER (@)
(b) 2BEERKAE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6
(b) Segment assets and liabilities

As at 31 March 2020
R-Z2-ZF£=A=t-A

Money
lending and Finance Financial
Trading  factoring leasing services Total
g5 f(HERRE MmEHE SRRE @it
Segment assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and liabilities PEEERER THT THT THT TR TET
Non-current assets EnBEE
Property, plant and equipment MmE  REREN 1,011 623 34,543 10,705 46,882
Right-of-use assets BREEE - - - 17,572 17,572
Goodwill mE = - 1,000 75,695 76,695
Other non-current assets HigEReaE - - - 230 230
Intangible assets BYEE - - - 21,500 21,500
Finance lease receivables EURERENE - - 65,011 - 65,011
1,011 623 100,554 125,702 227,890
Current assets MEEE 184,050 102,220 111,884 162,362 560,516
Segment assets PEEE 185,061 102,843 212,438 288,064 788,406
Unallocated: AAE:
Cash and bank balances ReRETER 183,430
Others it 72,269
Total assets per statement of BB REESRE
financial position 1,044,105
Segment liabilities PEAE 3,466 1,059 18,837 54,580 77,942
Unallocated: RO
Amount due to a director B —RESHE 2,286
Others Hft 68,652
Total liabilities per statementof ~ BMIBMRKEBEE
financial position 148,880
Other segment information ~ Ht9EEH
Capital expenditure EARAY 626 382 22 229 1,259
Unallocated capital expenditure  AD BB RHX 46
1,305
Depreciation nE
- Right-of-use assets —EREAE = = = 2,415 2,415
- Property, plant and equipment  —¥1%  #E K% 208 132 1,717 735 2,792
Unallocated depreciation AOEIE 4,099
9,306
—z=—zggy 189
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

6 DEEHRE)
(b) PEEERERE(H)

As at 31 March 2019
RZZE-NFZA=1-H
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B
BRLEEE HERK
Money
lending Finance Vessel
Trading  and factoring leasing  Sub-total  chartering Total
%5 RERRE WEAHE Pt RHEE @t
Segment assets HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and liabilities PEEERER ThEL Fign TiEn ThT TiEn Tign
Nor-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 0% REREN 15 1012 39432 40,459 14,042 54,501
Goodwill [l - - 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Finance lease receivables fEkmERERE - - 109482 109482 - 109482
15 1,012 149914 150,941 14,042 164,983
Current assets MEEE 157,140 97,913 113,342 368,395 2 368,418
Segment assets TEEE 157,155 98,925 263,25 519,336 14,065 533,401
Unallocated: KA
Cash and bank balances ReRETLER 140,293
Others i 132,780
Total assets per statement of BBAREERE
financial position 806,474
Segment liabilities SEEE 3298 518 17,985 21,801 14,405 36,206
Unallocated: KAR:
Amount due to a director ER—2EEHE 4,55
Others i 1740
Total liabilities per statement of financial BB RKR 2 BAE
position 58,176
Other segment information HitpEER
Capital expenditure ERRR 14 9 3 345 - 345
Unallocated capital expenditure FAREARS 17
362
Depreciation ik 2 254 3,540 37% 955 4751
Unallocated depreciation FOERFE 1572
6323
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuec) 6 SEER#E)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continuead) (by P EEEREE (&)
Geographical information thEER

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and
the PRC for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

Information about the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations and external customers is
presented based on the location at which the goods
or services are delivered or provided.

The Group's total revenue from sales of goods and

HE—_Z-_ZFK_ZT—-NF=A
T —HALFE AEEZEEN
REBRFE-

BERARBEREFELEEB LY

ShNE P 2 Wk TR E SRR E
F ARG 2 HEEZ S

AEE R R E D 2 8 m &R i

services by geographical location is detailed below: B EFRAT
2020 2019
p et —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Restated
K E5
PRC H 195,344 101,607
Hong Kong B 43,174 3,481
238,518 105,088

The Group's non-current assets excluding goodwill
and other financial asset by geographical location of

AEBREEMEME D 2 IERE
BE (MR EEMESREE)

the assets are detailed below: 3R (I
2020 2019
—E-FHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
PRC o] 142,505 209,265
Hong Kong BE 58,523 3,860
201,028 213,125
-z 191
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEEHRE)
(c) Revenue from continuing operations () REFELLERWRIIRE
are derived from the following major THEEEF:
customers:
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FTAT
Customer A* HERx* 64,460 42,083
Customer B* BEL* 60,454 8,398~
Customer C* EER* 20,968% -
Customer D@ xETe 11,4522 -
Customer E#* B 10,3082 -
Customer F* EPO* - 15,015
Customer G* xRt - 4,765
Ccustomer H# Bt - 4,336
* Customers of trading business * BHEBEP
# Customer of finance leasing business # MEREXBER
e Customer of financial services business e CRREEBER
s The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% B Z AR I R B R R E10% A
of the total revenue of the Group. Lo
7 OTHER INCOME FROM CONTINUING 7 XREEBELKEER2HMBKA
OPERATIONS
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Restated
KE
Bank interest income RITHBULA 878 670
Other interest income H b A B UL A 251 19
Exchange gain, net PE 5 W e - 5 RR 1,581 1,716
Rental income He A 1,233 1,421
Others HA 336 94
4,279 3,920
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EXPENSES BY NATURE FROM 8

REFBECERBRUEEE D 2

CONTINUING OPERATIONS * i
2020 2019
—E-ZF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Restated
K E5
Cost of inventories sold GFEIEEKA 157,337 66,645
Cost of services PR 7% B AN 900 -
Storage fees BB 127 146

Staff costs, including directors’ BIKRAK BREZFHE

emoluments 17,782 17,081
contribution to defined contribution FERFCRKEFFEIHE

retirement benefit scheme (BIEES)

(including directors) 695 818
Auditor’'s remuneration ZEEM BN & 1,010 819
Advertising EE8 187 -
Depreciation e
— property, plant and equipment — W% R E R EEM 3,371 5,369
— right-of-use assets —FRAEEE 5,935 -
Loss on disposal of property, plantand &Y E - & & N2 BB

equipment - 18
Property rental expenses in respect of REIFAEZEFHEMA T

short term lease 303 -
Operating lease charges in respect of &LE&HEEZEFHEESMAX

property rental - 3,685
Professional fees BEER 4,852 1,981
Repair and maintenance HERRE 47 S
Others Hb 12,333 6,340
Total cost of sales and administrative — $5&RA R 1T E 4858

expenses 204,879 102,907
FINANCE COSTS 9 BERAK

2020 2019

—E-EF —ZE-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Interest on bond payable FERHESFE 300 -

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEHNE 689 -
Interest on retained FERREBRERNE

consideration payable 446 -
Others Hb 16 -

1,451 -
—z—ziegy 193
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10 TAXATION 10 1\
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Current income tax BVHAFR1S B

- Hong Kong profits tax —BABMNER 4,846 36
- PRC corporation income tax —HBEMER 8,221 7,844
13,067 7,880
Deferred tax EIERIE (532) 29
12,535 7,909

Tax expenses are attributed to: 7ot 18 B <2 A
Loss from continuing operations REREEBFER 12,535 7,909
Profit from discontinued operation B4R IE 48 & 2 T50m 7 - -
12,535 7,909

Hong Kong profits tax

Under the two-tier profits tax rates regime effective from
March 2018, Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at
the rate of 8.25% on the first HK$2,000,000 of the estimated
assessable profits of the qualifying entity of the Group
and 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above
HK$2,000,000.

PRC corporate income tax

The PRC corporate income tax in respect of operations
in the PRC is calculated at the applicable tax rates on the
estimated assessable profits for the year based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
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10 TAXATION (continuea) 10 BB (&)
The amount of taxation charge for the year can be RNEEHIEF X R AT E B 2 B AR
reconciled to the loss before tax as follows: T
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Loss)/Profit before taxation: BrEAT (EB) = F
— from continuing operations —REFELEEE (9,910) (21,912)
-fromdiscontinued operation  —RABMILARRHE 1682 (6,207)
(8,228) (28,119)
Tax at the applicable tax rates RERABETE 2 BIA (716) (5,685)
Tax effect of: BT
Income not subject to tax AR WA (1,223) (1,682)
Expenses not deductible TAHNBi 2B
for tax purposes 11,559 12,513
Utilisation of tax loss previously A LRI ARMER
not recognised MIAEE — (16)
Underprovision in prior year BEFERETRE 10 6
Tax losses for which no deferred W EERELEMSEH <
income tax was recognised s EE 2,925 2,793
Tax concession MBEER (20) (20)
Taxation charge RIS 12,535 7,909
Taxation charge: MIE M
— from continuing operations —REFELEES 12,535 7,909
— from discontinued operation —REERIEREET - -
11 DIVIDEND 11 RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of any EETREAMBE_Z_ZEF=HA=+—
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil). BIEFERNEMBRE(ZE—F:
/).
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12 DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has
ceased and discontinued its vessel chartering business
operated by JLFETH{ImAR AR 27 ("NC Shipping”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, through
the disposal of this subsidiary. Details of the disposal are set
out in Note 36(jii) to the consolidated financial statements.
The disposal of NC Shipping was completed on 20 March
2020 and the vessel chartering business was classified as
a discontinued operation during the year. With the vessel
chartering business being classified as a discontinued
operation, it is no longer included in the note for operating

segment information for the year.

12 BERLEREXRK

RBE-T-_TF=A=1+—HFERN"
AEBEZBLERARRAZHELENE
REDUEMm CHRMBARQE (MM
BERIERERIEHELE 2MAEER
B EZHFBERN G AW BHRRME
36(iii) EIRMBHHEE N T _FF
ZA=tHZEK  MAEEEBRFERR
DRERERILEEE - AN AEE?
BOBRRERIEEERR RAFEZX
EBTBIABBAREDEEN 2T
o

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FAT
Revenue Wz 2,649 3,152
Cost of sales & AR (2,996) (3,168)
Gross loss Ei8 (347) (16)
Other income E A 17 27
Impairment loss on deposits, e FEIFHIER
prepayments and other receivable Hth fE W IR BB B 18 = (150)
Impairment loss on property, Y BB MEMRESE
plant and equipment - (5,170)
Administrative expenses THERA (467) (898)
Loss before tax from discontinued REERIEEEE 2
operation PR AT E 1R (797) (6,207)
Taxation TiIE = -
Loss after tax from discontinued REDKRIEEEE 2
operation BRIz E1E (797) (6,207)
Gain on disposal of equity interest in S B RIEEE EBRERE
discontinued operation before (BRELBERENR
release of foreign currency MNBRATERE)
translation reserve, net of income tax 1,149 -
Release of foreign currency translation 7 H & B 4% [ & & S 1505
reserve on discontinued operation BINME N IR
upon disposal 1,330 -
Profit/(Loss) for the year from RESRIEREEBL
discontinued operation KEZHH,/ (FBE) 1,682 (6,207)
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12 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 12 BRUEREER &)
The net cash flows incurred by the vessel chartering MMEEERESCReREFENT

business are as follows:

2020 2019
—E-EF ZT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Operating activities RS (11) (27)
Investing activities HEEE 16 27
Financing activities BEEH (5,732) (4,509)
Net cash outflow WEFRL (5,727) (4,509)
13 EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13 EREBA(FHFE)
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Restated
KET
Profit/(Loss) attributable to shareholders B% B 15 % 7, (E548)
— from continuing operations —REFELEET (21,151) (25,960)
— from discontinued operation —RECKIEEEE 1,682 (6,207)
(19,469) (32,167)
Weighted average number of ordinary  stE&RELRAF] (EE)
shares, for the purposes of ZEBRMEFEHE (FR)
calculating basic earning/(loss) per
share (shares in thousands) 3,796,010 3,680,600
Basic and diluted earning/ BREAREERF, (EE)
(loss) per share
— from continuing operations —REFBEKEEES HK(0.55) cents#fll  HK(0.71) centsi L
— from discontinued operation —REERIEEEER HKO0.04 cents®fll  HK(0.16) centsi 1l
HK(0.51) centsi&fli  HK(0.87) cents/ &1l
As there is no dilutive potential ordinary share outstanding RZBEZEFER - NF=ZA=+—
as at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the diluted earning/(loss) per H - #SEABEEHELE Tk W
share is equal to the basic earning/(loss) per share. BR#ERT (BB BERERAET
/ (E518) AR -
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14 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) Directors’ and senior management'’s
emoluments
Year ended 31 March 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 EERERSHFALTHES
() EERSHEEASFHMH

BE—_Z-_EE=-A=+—HLHF

E
Employer's
Fees, contribution
salaries and to pension
Name of director other benefits scheme Total
EEHE BR-HEM EBARFEIZ
HAanER EEMHK et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Zheng Juhua BT LT 2,321 18 2,339
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PR R £ 3,568 18 3,586
Independent non- BYFHITES
executive directors
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BERBREE 150 - 150
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIBCEE 150 - 150
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth =554+ 150 - 150
6,339 36 6,375

Year ended 31 March 2019

BE-E—-hFE=A=1+—HL*EF

E
Employer’s
Fees, contribution
salaries and to pension
Name of director other benefits scheme Total
EEMA EBR - -#HeM RIREHEILZ
HEH fEEHR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
Executive directors HTES
Ms. Zheng Juhua BRIt 2,410 18 2,428
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PREE S AE 3,707 18 3,725
Ms. Wang Yingaian FRETLL
(Resigned on (RZZE—h%E
8 March 2019) = ANB#FE) 880 - 880
Independent non- BAFHITES
executive directors
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BEREE 150 - 150
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIACEE 150 - 150
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth =& 4+ 150 - 150
7,447 36 7,483
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14 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND 14 EEREEFALTHE &)

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(@) Directors’ and senior management’s (@) EERESREBAEHM &)
emoluments (Continuea)
No directors waived or agreed to waive any REERN ESHMEREXFREN
emoluments during the year (2019: Nil). Fees paid to EFAMe(ZE—NF &)
independent non-executive directors during the year AFEERNINBIFEBTESZ
amounted to HK$450,000 (2019: HK$450,000). & /450,000 7T (ZF—NF:

450,000/ 7T ) °

No emoluments have been paid to the individual or REE-ZZE-_ZF=-A=+—HL
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining FEA WEREAESENEM
the Group or as compensation for loss of office during BE  fEAKEMB BN MMER
the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil). SR BRSIHMBHE (ZE—N1
Fom)o
Emolument bands Number of individuals
&N F AE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$NIl — HK$ 1,000,000 =% 782 1,000,0007% 7T 8 4
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7t Z2,000,0007% 7T = -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,0017% 7T 23,000,000/ 7T
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,000,0017% 7T 24,000,000/ 7T 1 1
5 6
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Bk 1 BB e M

14 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND 14 EBRBEHATIHE 2)

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The Directors’ emoluments presented above include
the emoluments of the two (2019: three) highest
paid individuals in the Group. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2019: two) highest paid individual
during the year ended 31 March 2020 were:

(b)

AEEREHAL

EXEVNEEHFHERERE (=
T-NF:ZR)FEBEEFHFA
Trze REEZE_ZE-_FTF=A1
—t—HLEFERBRT =% (ZF
—NF WB)EEFATZHE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Salaries, bonus, other allowances & ~ JE4L ~ E b E84
and benefits in kind EYF= 2,411 1,706

Employer’s contributions to RIRGETEIZ B F R

retirement scheme 100 36
2,511 1,742

Emolument bands

Number of individuals

& F AE
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NF
HK$Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 T 7T 21,000,000 7T 3 2
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE-XERBMREAEEE
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(@) Property, plant and equipment (@) Y= RERSJM
Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
Property improvement fixtures vehicles Vessel Total
L/ HE#E HKAREE "B MM @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHT FHT T T FHT
At 31 March 2018 R-Z-\E=A=1+—H
Cost BRA 84,710 5,607 4,865 8,698 23,750 127,630
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (4,026) (3962) (3,325) 2,419) (2,206) (15,938)
Net book amount REFE 80,684 1,645 1,540 6,279 21,544 111,692
Year ended 31 March 2019 HE-Z-NE=ZR=1+-H
HFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 80,684 1,645 1,540 6,279 21,544 111,692
Currency translation differences I 5 A% (6,145) (86) (10) (271 (1,379) (7,891)
Additions NE - 175 187 - 362
Depreciation nE (1,465) (1,584) (995) (1,325) (954) (6,323)
Disposal e - - - (28) (28)
Disposal of a subsidiary HENEAR - - 1 - - (1)
Transfer to investment property BRERENE (37,309) - - - - (37,309)
Impairment loss AERE - - - - (5,170) (5,170)
Closing net book amount FEREEFE 35,765 150 m 4,655 14,041 55,322
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=+—H
Cost B A 38,410 5,502 5017 8,388 22,230 79,547
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (2,645) (5,352) (4,306) (3,733) (3,019 (19,055)
Impairment loss AEEE - - - - (5,170) (5,170)
Net book amount REFE 35,765 150 mnm 4,655 14,041 55,322
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-Z-TF=-fA=1-H
HFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 35,765 150 711 4,655 14,011 55,322
Currency translation differences IEH A" (2,425) ®) (10 79 (934) (3,456)
Additions wE - - 1,267 3R - 1,305
Acquisition of subsidiaries B R 28 A - 8,086 3,124 - - 11,210
Depreciation nE (776) (589) (794) (1,212) (914) (4,285)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHERR - - - - (12,193) (12,193)
Closing net book amount FREAZE 32,564 7,639 4,298 3,402 - 47,903
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZZE=A=1+—H
Cost A 35,784 13,296 9,375 8,306 - 66,761
Accumulated depreciation 25ME (3,220) (5,657) (5,077) (4,904) - (18,858)
Net book amount fRmEE 32,564 7,639 4,298 3,402 - 47,903
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continuea)

(@) Prop
Notes:

0]

(b) Leas

erty, plant and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has not obtained the
property ownership certificate for the property with
carrying values of approximately RMB29.9 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$32.6 million) from the
relevant PRC government authorities. In the opinion of
the Directors, the absence of formal title to the property
does not impair its values to the Group, as the Group has
paid in full purchase consideration and the probability of
being evicted on the ground of an absence of formal title
is remote.

As at 31 March 2019, the Directors estimated the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit of the
vessel chartering business (the “Vessel Chartering CGU").
As the carrying amount of the Vessel Chartering CGU
exceeded its recoverable amount, impairment loss of
HK$5,170,000 was recognized on the vessel. In estimating
the recoverable amount, which is based on its fair value
less costs of disposal, the Directors referenced to a
valuation of the vessel carried out by an independent
and professionally qualified valuer and based on
management’s review of the latest market conditions of
the vessel and the Vessel Chartering CGU.

As at 31 March 2019, the registration of the vessel under
the name of the Group has yet been completed. In the
opinion of the Directors, the absence of formal title to
the vessel does not impair its value to the Group as the
vendor has agreed the vessels’ risk and benefits has been
passed to the Group and the probability of being evicted
on the ground of an absence of formal title is remote.

As at 31 March 2019, the vessel was pledged to
secure an other payable of RMB12 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$14 million), both of which were
disposed through disposal of a subsidiary during the
year, details of which are set out in Note 36(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

es

This note provide information for lease where the
Group is a lessee.

The Group has lease contracts for office premises,
residences and motor vehicle used in its operations
with a lease terms between 20 months to 36 months.
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B4 A A R#29,900,0007T (HBE R
#932,600,0007%8 7T ) ¥ 3£ BUS 5 L EE
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AEEHENEERE-

iy WKR-ZT—hAE=ZF=+—H8 EF
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE-XERBMREAEEE
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) (%)
(b) Leases (Continued) (b) #HE (&)
(i) Right-of-use assets () FERAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of- TEBFREAEEERE
use assets and the movements during the year B AREELDT
are as follows:
Office Motor
premises Residences vehicle Total
WAE = "E Foy

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TER TET

As at 31 March 2019 RZT—NF
=A=+—H - - - -
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RZE-NFHA—A
as at 1 April 2019 REABBHBREER
(Note 2.1) F1657 (FH5E2.1) 9,386 - - 9,386
Acquisition of subsidiaries I BB M B2 A
(Note 35) (P 5E35) 18,879 941 167 19,987
Depreciation (Note 8) & (M3E8) (5,618) (296) (21) (5,935)
As at 31 March 2020 RZTZTF
=A=+—8H 22,647 645 146 23,438
(i) Leases liabilities (i) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FRHEEEEREHNT :
movements during the year are as follows:
Note HK$'000
ihg=2 FHET
As at 31 March 2019 WZZE-hEF=A=+—8 -
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RZE—-HhFWMA—AH
as at 1 April 2019 HRAES ﬁﬁ‘#&%ﬁ,ﬁu 1655 2.1 9,073
Acquisition of subsidiaries L QELENEEIN 35 20,416
Accretion of interest recognised  F R MR %IJ BN
during the year 9 689
Payments B (6,395)
As at 31 March 2020 R_ZE_ZEF=A=+—H 23,783
Analysed into: DT
Current portion mENE 13,450
Non-current portion EREE D 10,333
23,783
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is HEBEMIBIMTRES
disclosed in Note 3.1(a) to the consolidated B HRARM 31 HE

financial statements.
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
(b) Leases (Continued)
(iii) The amounts recognised in profit or loss

(iv)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok B U5 A Wi

15 MX RERBEVMREAREREE
(%)
(b) HE (#)
(i) R\FEFRERHEEEEH

in relation to leases are as follows: HEEMT:
2020
—E-EHF
Note HK$'000
B 5 FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEME 9 689
Depreciation for right-of-use FREEENE 8
assets 5,935
Expense relating to short-term B33 B370 & & FIerTH R 8
leases and other leases with —E-TF=R=+—H
remaining lease terms ended on s Z B R EMHE
or before 31 March 2020 BHENAY 303
Total amount recognised in RIBRPERAFKIALETE
profit or loss 6,927
The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed (ivy HERSREBENGEY

in Note 38(b) to the consolidated financial
statements. The lease payments not included
in measurement of lease liabilities was
HK$303,000.
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16 REWH
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Balance at the beginning of the year  F ¥4 & 48,321 13,000
Transfer from property, plant and ME - BERBVEA
equipment (Note (ii)) CBR R ) - 46,968
Change in fair value N EZE (2,128) 297
Disposal during the year (Note (i) REEALE (HEEI) - (13,180)
Currency translation difference i R (3,247) 1,236
Balance at the end of the year FREH 42,946 48,321
Unrealised (loss)/gain on property REBYESE (BE), W
revaluation (2,128) 297
Particulars of the investment property REVMEEHR
Location Use Tenure
ith B JizkeS bizR:t
Room 1707-1713, 17th Floor, Block B, Commercial building Medium-term leases
Xintian Century Business Center, for rental

Shixia North Street,

Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC

FREERER)IMEHERAEILS HHEEENE HhERAE A
A 40 B A L BRR17481707-1713 %

(@) Valuation processes of the Group (@) xEBZHERF
The Group measures its investment property at REEEBRANBEFEERENE -
fair value. The fair value of the Group's investment REEREVENRAETIIRESE
property has been determined on the basis of Y EELERGEMRETEER
valuation carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals NEETZHEMERE -
Limited, an independent and professionally qualified
valuer.
The management of the Group has discussions with RFEEFREE BETHER A&
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation EEREDENSMT REERE
results when the valuation is performed at annual RiGEER-
reporting date.
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16 REWE (&)
(b) fHEFE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continueaq)
(b) Valuation techniques

206

The investment property was revalued on the
investment method.

The investment method

Under the investment method, fair value is
estimated on the basis of capitalisation of existing
rent receivable from the existing tenancies and the
potential reversionary market rent of the properties.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of
the investment property, which included the location,
size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion and
other factors collectively, to arrive at the estimated
rental value and reversionary yield, while it takes into
account the rental value generated from the existing
lease term to arrive at the term vyield.

The key input was the estimated rental value, term
yield and reversionary yield, which a significant
increase/(decrease) in these inputs would result in a
significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investment property.

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest
and best use of the property is their current use.

Annual Report 2020
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continueq)

(c)

Information about fair value

measurements using significant

ERHREEBRAA]
(BRI R EERBRAF])

16 REWE (&)
(c) EEFERAEATAEEGAY
B2AREFTE(EF=ZHRH)2E

unobservable inputs (Level 3) #
Range of
Fair Value at Valuation  Unobservable unobservable
31 March 2020 techniques inputs inputs
R-B-EF
=A=+-H A BEZ LIRS
ZARE HER % WAHE WABEEE
Investment property
in the PRC
RABEZREYHE
- Commercial office RMB39,400,000 Investment  Term yield; 3%
(equivalent to method Reversionary yield; 4%
approximately Estimated net market RMB162
HK$42,946,000) unit rent per saleable area
(month (RMB/sg.m.)
—“HERRE AR®39,400000  ®EX FHRRE 3%
(FHERL ERlaE 4%
42,946,000 7T.) BEMAHERE ARM1627T
It mis EHEE
(A(ARBRT/BFHK))
Range of
Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable unobservable
31 March 2019 techniques inputs inputs
R=ZE-NLF
=A=+—H FAERZ LR R
ZARE HER % \WABE WABEZEE
Investment property
in the PRC
RABEZRENE
- Commercial office RMBA41,300,000 Investment  Term yield, 3%
(equivalent to method Reversionary yield; 4%
approximately Estimated net market RMB170
HK$48,321,000) unit rent per saleable area
(month (RMB/sg.m.)
—“HERRE AR 41,300,000 BEE FHMEE 3%
(FHERAL Il G 4%
48,321,000 1) FEMAHERRE ARM1707T

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

ZfhEt s FEE
(B(ARBT/8F75K))

HE_T_TFR-_FT-HNF=A

=t+—BLEEE REFE %
TEREZEELRZENER-
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continueq) 16 REWE (&)

(d) The following amounts have been recognised in the (d)
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income:

TR REeRE R EMERE
Uit 2 5% R ERR -

2020 2019

—EF —ZE-hEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Rental income HeWA 1,233 465
Direct operating expenses arising BESRERAZEEME

from investment property that EEZEELERY
generated rental income = (43)

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, no investment property was RZBZTERZF-NF=A=1+—

pledged as collateral for the Group's borrowings. B SEEEMEC RS EETE T
ABEHme

Notes: B 5

0] On 31 August 2018, the Group disposed its investment property 0] RZZE—NFNA=1T—H KEEFEH

located in Hong Kong under medium term lease through
disposal of a subsidiary, at a consideration of approximately
HK$12,500,000. Details of which are set out in Note 36() to the
consolidated financial statements.

(ii) During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group leased out (ii)

a formerly self-occupied commercial office unit located in the
PRC and reclassified such unit as an investment property (the
“Investment Property”). The carrying value of the property
on the date of reclassification amounted to RMB32,727,000
and the Group recognised a fair value gain of RMBS8,473,000
and the resulting tax effect of RMB2,118,000 on the date of
reclassification. The fair value gain net of tax amounting to
RMB6,355,000 was recognised in property revaluation reserve in
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has not obtained the property
ownership certificate for the Investment Property with fair value
of approximately RMB39.4 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$42.9 million) from the relevant PRC government authorities.
In the opinion of the Directors, the absence of formal title to
the Investment Property does not impair its value to the Group,
as the Group has paid in full purchase consideration and the
probability of being evicted on the ground of an absence of
formal title is remote.

Annual Report 2020

& — B AR - LAK B 4912,500,000
BITHEHMREBSUPHEEREZ
BEME EFBHRERETBERERN
FE36() °

HEZZT-NWF=ZA=+—HLFE
- ZKEIHﬁE MR FBRRE RN
PEBRAEMESELN WEZBEMNEHN
DERREME (RIBREME]) R
EFHER s%@%mﬂﬁﬁﬁf%/\EM
32,727,0007t - T AN B R EH o 48
WE/A/L{ELI&W%AE%SABOOOE&
AEEENTETE A AR2118,000
TeARBERZNHRBEEEARE
6,355,000 B4R G = BB R P Y
XEGHERERER-

RZBZZF=Z[A=+—H FAKEH
AMFPEEFABFRIIAREORA
IR ¥£39,400,0007T (8 & 7 4942, 900000
BIL) IR EMERGEIERE

=R HHEAZKEIE*%I%#EZ&Q%
EMBEREBEEARERARRGERE
R B R R M B MUREEUE IE
AXETESAERHENEEFE-



BB EEBRA A

(B I IR BB IR 2 7)) ‘
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok B U5 A Wi

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BREE
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Trading right R 5 HE 500 -
Licences hEER 21,000 -
21,500 -
Trading right represent the right allows the Group to trade RGERBATAEERBRIMEBRRES
securities in the Stock Exchanges. ZHER
Licences comprise the licences of Type 1, 2, 4 and 9 MREENEXFEFLBAEGIBRE 2
regulated activities licences under Securities and Futures F1-2 ARBEEE 2B -
Ordinance.
The intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are BEEERAIEAFH AMBILEESR
tested for impairment at least annually or when there is DEFRR L IRFE DR EETRE R
impairment indicator. Details of impairment testing are set o BEREBERAR  FHIEENERE B 5
out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. KT8 ©
18 GOODWILL 18 BHE
HK$'000
FHExT
cosT R
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—-NFHA—A 2,074
Written off of Ningbo Noble Century M= R CHE (3)
Written off of Shenzhen Fortune M RYIEE (1,071)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZE-—NAF=ZA=+—HK
—E-NFWMNA—H 1,000
Acquisition of ChaoShang Financial (Note 35) W e 2wt (B 7E35) 75,695
At 31 March 2020 R-E-_ZTF=F=+—H 76,695
IMPAIRMENT RIE
At 1 April 2018 R-ZE—N\FMWA—H 1,074
Written off 58 (1,074)
At 31 March 2019 and 2020 RZE-—NER_E-_ZTF=A=+—H -
CARRYING AMOUNTS RESH
At 31 March 2020 R-E-_ETF=F=+—H 76,695
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE—AE=A=+—H 1,000
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18 GOODWILL (continued) 18 BE (%)
Goodwill arose from acquisition of (i) 100% equity interest EERNIN _ZT—EmF L ANBUWEC
in Comercializadora Ven 2010 C.A Limited and its subsidiary mBEBERAGRHEMBAR ([CkE
(“Comercializadora Ven 2010") on 9 July 2014; (i) 70% 1) 2 100% M AR (DR =T —RF
equity interest in Shenzhen Fortune Import & Export Co., MA—BREERYImEEER D EBRA
Ltd (“Shenzhen Fortune”) on 1 April 2016; (iii) 100% equity A (RYBE]) 70%R A %= (iR =
interest in Ningbo Noble Century Industrial International E-ANFNAZTRAAKBE R CHE
Trading Co., Ltd (“Ningbo Noble Century”) on 25 August BRESERAR ([ERICIHE])100%
2016; and (iv) 100% equity interest in ChaoShang Financial Az RIWVRZE—NF+TZA=
on 31 December 2019. +— B4R S Bl100% A A aR P E
$ °
Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing FmEEMRAENFRENMAEEN TR
purposes to the following cash-generating units (“CGUs"): eEFEM ([ReEEEML]) -
-  the operating activities of Comercializadora Ven 2010 — CIHhEBZEEES DEEmE
which is engaged in finance leasing business; HEER:
- the operating activities of Shenzhen Fortune which is — FRIEERZEETE ARERR
engaged in frozen foodstuff trading business; EmESER:
- the operating activities of Ningbo Noble Century - BERCHELLFRD ANER
which is engaged in methanol trading business; and EBS%E%: &
- the operating activities of ChaoShang Financial which — HmemoLeEE B ERE
is engaged in provision of financial services business. SR ARTE TS o
The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets NEREReELEENC HEREREE
allocated to the CGUs as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 are as RZEZEFER - NEF=ZA=+—
follows: AZEREEBEMT :
2020 2019
It St 23 —E2-NE
Intangible Intangible
Goodwill assets Total Goodwill assets Total
BE BREE @it HE BVEE B
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
TERT TR TR THET T FET
Comercializadora Ven 2010 ChEE 1,000 - 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Shenzhen Fortune FEZE = - - _ _ _
Ningbo Noble Century ERECRE - - - - - -
ChaoShang Financial (Note 35) B2 (MHFE35) 75,695 21,500 97,195 - - -
76,695 21,500 98,195 1,000 - 1,000

210  annwal Report 2020



18 GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill and intangible
assets

Goodwill and intangible assets acquired through business
combination is allocated to the Comercializadora Ven 2010
CGU, Shenzhen Fortune CGU, Ningbo Noble Century CGU
and ChaoShang Financial CGU for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections was 10.4% (2019:
8%), and the cash flows beyond the five-year period were
extrapolated using a growth rate of 3.0% (2019: 1%). Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted revenue and gross margin, such estimation is
based on the CGU’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

The goodwill of the Shenzhen Fortune CGU and the
Ningbo Noble Century CGU with aggregate amount of
approximately HK$1,074,000 had been fully impaired in prior
years.

Ningbo Noble Century had been deregistered in the
PRC on 10 April 2018. Furthermore, in the opinion of the
directors, the goodwill of Shenzhen Fortune CGU cannot
be recoverable. As such both the cost and impairment of
goodwill of these CGUs have been written off during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

The directors believe that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is
based would not cause the carrying amount of the group of
units to exceed the aggregate its recoverable amount, and
hence no impairment loss on goodwill was required for the
Comercializadora Ven 2010 CGU and ChaoShang Financial
CGU for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).
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19 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 19 HtEmEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Balance at the beginning of the year ~ F ¥4 % - 5,287
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) W BB BT B8 2 B (P 3E35) 944 -
Change in fair value RNiEEE) (588) -
Currency translation difference ME 5, - (465)
Derecognition through disposal of FEiR S B A R AL LR
a subsidiary (Note 36(ii) ( B 5E36(i) ) - (4,822)
Balance at the end of the year FRERR 356 -
Non-current portion of other Hivem&EEIFNREH
financial asset 356 -
Current portion of other financial asset E & 5t & ZBNEAZ o - -
356 -
(@) Qianhai Jiulongfu (a) BAIBHIER

The other financial asset of the Group as at 1 April RZE—N\EFNA—B KAEEHN

2018 represented the profit guarantee (the “QJ
Profit Guarantee”) provided by the vendor (the “QJ
Vendor”) to the Group arising from the acquisition
of Shenzhen Qianhai Jiulongfu Industrial Company
Limited (“Qianhai Jiulongfu”). Pursuant to the Capital
Increase Agreement, the QJ Profit Guarantee provided
that for the period of five-years commencing from the
date of completion of capital injection by the Group
to Qianhai Jiulongfu, the audited profit after tax of
Qianhai Jiulongfu for each guaranteed period with
365 days shall not be less than RMB10 million. Any
shortfall between the guaranteed profits and actual
profits for the relevant guaranteed period will be
compensated by the QJ Vendor.

Annual Report 2020

HibemEENMRES ([F18NEE
BEH D BRRERYIANENERE
¥BR AR ([AENER]) WA
EEIREREFIRE ([ATENLEER
mARED BB EWE A
NERREFRERT B ANERMA]
ELBERILE A B B AT A E
MR RS AE365H ~ R HAM
LRZBH RN ETORARE
10,000,000t » A B FERHARANE
Bom AR MR B R T =58
HANENEERS HE-



19 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Qianhai Jiulongfu (Continuea)

The QJ Profit Guarantee represents a right to the
return of previously transferred consideration for the
acquisition of Qianhai Jiulongfu when the specified
conditions are met and hence constitutes a kind
of contingent consideration arrangement to be
accounted for as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 3 and HKAS
39. The QJ Profit Guarantee was initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the acquisition-date at a fair value determined
by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer.

On 27 September 2018, the Group derecognised the
other financial asset through disposal of Qianhai
Jiulongfu, details of which are set out in Note 36(ii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

ChaoShang Financial

The other financial asset of the Group as at 31 March
2020 represented the profit guarantee (the “CS
Profit Guarantee”) provided by the vendors (the “CS
Vendors”) to the Group arising from the acquisition of
ChaoShang Financial, details of which are set out in
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

The CS Profit Guarantee provided that for the
period of three-years commencing from the date
of completion (i.e. years ending 31 December 2020,
2021 and 2022 respectively), the audited profit after
tax of ChaoShang Financial shall not be less than
HK$20,000,000, HK$25,000,000 and HK$30,000,000
respectively. Any shortfall between the guaranteed
profit and the actual profit for the relevant guaranteed
period shall be compensated by the CS Vendors. On
the contrary, if the actual profit is higher than the
guaranteed profit, 50% of the difference between the
guaranteed profit and the actual profit for the relevant
guaranteed period shall be shared by the CS Vendors.
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19 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 19 HhEMEE &)
(b) chaoShang Financial (Continued) (b) HrEsEm (&)

The CS Profit Guarantee represents a right to the
return of previously transferred consideration for
the acquisition of ChaoShang Financial when the
specified conditions are met and hence constitutes a
kind of contingent consideration arrangement to be
accounted for as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 3 and HKFRS
9. The CS Profit Guarantee was initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the acquisition date at a fair value determined
by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent
professional qualified valuer.

The fair value of the CS Profit Guarantee was
determined to be approximately HK$944,000 and
approximately HK356,000 by Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited at the acquisition-date and as at 31 March
2020, respectively, using a discount rate of 5.57% and
9.95% per annum, respectively, under Monte Carlo
simulation and taking into consideration of whether
the CS Profit Guarantee is probable to meet. A fair
value loss on other financial asset of HK$588,000 was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
March 2020.
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20 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

ERHREEBRAA]
(BRI R EERBRAF])

INANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 EUBERENIR

2020 2019
—E-BF T AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiL
Current portion of finance lease FE Ik Bt & 78 & ZE BN HE 2R o

receivables 111,437 113,013

Non-current portion of finance lease  pelk & 18 & 2 IE IEANEA 2R 45
receivables 65,341 109,798
176,778 222,811
Less: Impairment loss A OREEE (900) (534)
175,878 222,277
* Current portion of the finance lease receivables included an * EUMEMERATRS TREMERE

amount of HK$436,000 (2019: Non-current HK$468,000 and
Current HK$468,000), being handling fee receivable in respect of

Wy F 48 & BDHA S0 5436,0008 7T (—Z—h
4 3E B H3468,0007% 7T & B #8468,0007%

the finance leases. ) e
Minimum finance lease Present value of minimum
receivables finance lease receivables
REEKMEHRERE BREENREHERERE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-RF T ZBS®F 0 TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERx FET FTAER FHET
Within one year —FR 123,164 130,588 110,867 112,795
In the second to fifth years, £ _-&F R
inclusive (BEEEME) 72,092 125,360 65,011 109,482
195,256 255,948 175,878 222277
Less: Unearned finance B ARERBERA
income (19,378) (33,671)  N/A FEH N/A T iE
Present value of minimum  HIKEKRERE
finance lease receivables ~ FIAIR{E 175,878 222,277 175,878 222,277
Less: Current portion of W ERREREE
finance lease FRIBENEREE
receivables (110,867) (112,795)
Non-current portion of MRV E T ERUA
finance lease receivables  JEENEREZ 65,011 109,482
ZECTEFHR
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
_ ANV STOR R

20 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continuea) 20 BUBMERENRE &)

The aged analysis of the finance lease receivables that is PR A RIE 2 BN ELE HE FUBRE
not considered to be impaired is as follows: DTN
2020 2019
—EBEF —ZT-NHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired B 480 B I8 R R (B 174,268 222,277
Past due but not impaired B ERRE
0 to 30 days 0&30H 150 -
31 to 90 days 31£90H 301 -
91 to 180 days 91=180H 451 -
more than 180 days 180H LA E 708 -
175,878 222,277
Set out below is the information about the credit risk AT ESIE AR EEREN R E
exposure on the Group's finance lease receivables using a HEFIBEERARRIOER :

provision matrix:

31 March 2020 —E-EF=A=+—H
Over 1 year
but less
0-90 91days- 181 days - than Over
days 180 days 365 days 2 years 2 years Total
BBE
Finance lease receivables due MW EEREFERH 0-90A  91-1808 181-365H BHH2E BE2EF o
Effective expected B BMREE
loss rate 0.50% 2.38% 2.48% 28.21% 53.00%
Gross carrying amount EEEE 175,590 462 726 - - 176,778
ECL provision BEeH 871 1 18 - - 900
31 March 2019 —E-nF=A=+—H
Over 1year
but less
0-90 91 days - 181 days - than Over
days 180 days 365 days 2 years 2 years Total
BB
Finance lease receivables due FEhRERETEDN 0-90H 91-1808  181-365H ERVES vk st
Effective expected loss rate it EMBER 0.24% 1.47% 2.38% 26.75% 50.50%
Gross carrying amount EEEE 222,811 - - - - 222,811
ECL provision BEeH 534 - - - - 534
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20 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continveq) 20 FEWEEMEERIER (4)

The movement in the provision for impairment of finance
lease receivables is as follows:

fEd B B E SRR ER EEEH T

HK$'000
T
At 31 March 2018 RZZE—-N\F=HA=+—H -
Amounts re-measured under ECL through BB RS EENTENEE
opening accumulated losses 522
Currency translation difference ERMEZESR 26
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—-N\FHEA—AH 548
Provision for impairment BB 21
Currency translation difference EHREZER (35)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R-ZE—AFE=ZA=+—H8BXK
—E-NFWMHA—H 534
Provision for impairment NERIERELe] 414
Currency translation difference EHREZER (48)
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZEF=A=+—H 900

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the finance lease
receivables, except for the handling fee receivable, were
secured over the leased assets mainly by machineries and
equipments.

The finance lease receivables are denominated in RMB. The
maturity date for each finance lease contract is normally
not more than 5 years. The interest rate inherent in the
leases is fixed at the contract date for the entire lease
term. The effective interest rate is approximately 9% to 15%
(2019: 10% to 23%) per annum. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at each of the end of the reporting period is the
carrying value of the finance lease receivables.

There was no unguaranteed residual values of assets leased
under finance leases as at 31 March 2020 and 2019. Since
the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the Group applies
the simplified approach to provide lifetime ECL prescribed
by HKFRS 9 for finance lease receivables. The management
assessed the expected loss on all finance lease receivables
individually and the credit quality of finance lease
receivables has been assessed by reference to historical
information about counterparty default rates.

R-B_BFR_ZF-NF=A=+—
B -BREKTFEEN BUEREEEREA
Bz HMEEES R RRE-

Rl R EHEREAARKEIIE A&
MEHEARIY B —RTEBBSF -
EEREHA - AEN RS R B HFAE
EERE - BRFNERLH/INER (=
T—NF10%E23%) - REREHAR
EAXRREERR T EERERIEZ
FRmE(E

RIB_BFR_ZF-NF=A=+—
A-UEpEHER T CHBEEEZ RE
REEREE - B T — \FHA—HEHK
ERM R E LR EF AR - REBK
REIE  HEKBEHEFEREE
PR EERIFOR AR EFHRE R FHE
HEEER EREHMARKMAEEE
FRERIFEFEREER MEKRERE
RENEEEARD2ZERRETFHEN
REBEERETRIE
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21 TRADE RECEIVABLES 21 FEWERR
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Receivables arising from securities NEBH LR
broking business: B2 EWERRK
— Cash clients accounts receivable — YRS B F RN 267 -
— Loans to margin clients —ARBSEFER 112,638 -
- Clearing houses —EE T 444 -
113,349 -
Less: Impairment loss B OREEE (164) -
_________________________________________________________ ns48s | ______:
Receivables arising from asset NEEEEREBEEL
management business JE U BR 3R 43 -
Receivables arising from trading NEEHEBREE BRI
business 241,198 216,639
241,241 216,639
Less: Impairment loss R EE B (60,252) (61,990)
_________________________________________________________ UBOSEoN 154649
Total trade receivables FEM R R B8R 294,174 154,649
Receivable arising from trading business BESEBELENERWIRMR

The Group's trade receivables are generally with credit
periods of 60 to 120 days (2019: 30 to 120 days).

Receivables arising from securities broking

With regard to receivables arising from securities broking,
the Group seeks to maintain tight control over its
outstanding trade receivables and has procedures and
policies to assess its clients’ credit quality and define credit
limits for each client. All client acceptances and credit limits
are approved by designated approvers according to the

clients’ credit quality.
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21 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continueq)

Receivables arising from securities broking
(Continued)

The normal settlement term of cash clients and clearing
houses trade receivables arising from the ordinary course of
business of securities broking is two trading days after the
trade date.

Loans to margin clients are secured by the underlying
pledged securities, repayable on demand and bear interest
at commercial rates. As at 31 March 2020, the total market
value of securities pledged as collateral in respect of the
loans to margin clients was amounted to approximately
HK$471,436,000 (2019: Nil). Securities are assigned with
specific margin ratios for calculating their margin values.

Receivables arising from asset management
business

There are no credit terms granted to clients for its asset
management business.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the end
of the reporting period is the carrying amount value of the
trade receivables. Except for the receivables arising from
securities broking, the Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated
in following currencies:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PR BRK (47)
RERLEEE 2RBWIRR (#)

REFRLCARRGBIETEL 2RI
ReRPREEMRRHN—REENR
RHAKMERSA -

MREBEEEFERIAEBIRFESE
WA HAEZESREE  WiRmEN XN
B-MRZEBE-TF=A=+—H" BAR
BERFEFEIMERERZESFZE
AL B471,436,0008 7T (ZE—NF:
/) BEEE TR T ZRES L EUG
HHRZFLEE-

EEEEXBEENEBYRN

MEREEEREBRNEPRTEEM-
REREHR  BEAZSEANEERBTE
Wik R < AR B - R B A A E A 2 FEUR

BRFON  AEEYN B A R EIRRIER
PEfR -

MR 2 BREE A T3 B IE -

2020 2019
—ECEE —T-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
HK$ T 113,228 -
RMB AR 180,946 154,649
294,174 154,649

—rorrrg 219

N\



HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED

(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4

220

Bk 1 BB e M

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
An aged analysis of receivables arising from trading and
asset management, net of allowance for impairment, at the
end of the reporting period, based on the date of invoice (or
date of revenue recognition, if earlier), is as follows:

21

PR BRK (47)

Wﬁiﬁﬁ HERBH (RERWER
N HER)ZESNEEERELZE

W%%EW%W%%&Z%%%WWT:

2020 2019

—E-BF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

0 to 30 days 0£30H 23,277 49,593

31 to 60 days 31£60H 5,941 2,702

61 to 90 days 61E90H 33,345 904
91 to 180 days 912180H 3,399

More than 180 days 1808 KA £ 115,027 101,450

180,989 154,649

The aged analysis of receivables arising from trading and
asset management business that are not considered to be
impaired is as follows:

TEABEREBEZESNEEEEBERE
A2 EBERFRERER DT -

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Neither past due nor impaired BE R @ BRI R R (B 62,534 53,199
Past due but not impaired B e RRE

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 15 -

3110 90 days 31£90H 3,413 -

91 to 180 days 912180H 20,229 -

more than 180 days 180H MA £ 94,798 101,450

180,989 154,649

No ageing analysis of cash clients trade receivable and
loans to margin clients is disclosed as in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the ageing analysis is not
meaningful in view of the nature of the cash clients trade
receivable arising from securities broking and the revolving
margin loans.

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the
Group applies the simplified approach to provide lifetime
ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9 for all trade receivables.
The management assessed the expected loss on trade
receivables individually.
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21 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21 FEWBRFX (4
The individually impaired trade receivables are recognised IEERE ﬂfﬁfﬂ& RRDERERP
based on the credit history of its customers, such as ME B PIUNEF RS RIB SRS R
financial difficulties or default in payments, and current RIBRITMiG BRI ERRLIRBRLE B
market conditions and are adjusted for forward-looking LSRR D AT ES RIS AR AR -
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk LA #0515 B s 48 17 B e ) g s AR X
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision ERRRIEOEE:
matrix:
31 March 2020 —E-ZEF=HA=+-—H
Over 1 year
but less
0-90 91days- 181 days - than Over
days 180 days 365 days 2 years 2 years Total
BAI1F
Trade receivables due B R S8 0-90H  91-1808 181-365H BHH2E BE2E @t
Effective expected B ENEEER
loss rate 0.11% 1.68% 2.63% 8.19% 92.61%
Gross carrying amount FEEE 179,346 20,574 61,232 33,488 59,950 354,590
Provision Afaisat 199 345 1,611 2,744 55,517 60,416
31 March 2019 —E-nF=-A=+—H
Over 1year
but less
0-90 91 days - 181 days - than Over
days 180 days 365 days 2 years 2 years Total
e clkes
Trade receivables due JEUCR T 0-90H 91-1808  181-365H ERVES BB @it
Effective expected loss rate ~ BitEMBER 0.05% 1.47% 2.38% 30.91% 100.00%
Gross carrying amount EAEEE 53,227 - 63,545 57,057 42,810 216,639
Provision BEat 8 - 1513 17,639 42810 61,990
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21 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continueq)

The movement in the provision for impairment of trade

22

receivables is as follows:

21 FEBEWERF (&)

FEMRSUREREBEEB T

HK$'000

FHT

At 31 March 2018 RZZE—-N\F=ZA=+—H 12,383
Amounts re-measured under ECL through BRI R BBRENITIENEE

opening accumulated losses 18,055

Currency translation difference ERBEER 910

At 1 April 2018 RZE—-N\FHEA—H 31,348

Provision for impairment DERIER L 32,648

Currency translation difference ERBMEER (2,006)

At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZE—NF=A=+—8H

KZZE—NFHA—H 61,990

Acquisition of subsidiaries W &R 8 A &) 780

Provision for impairment VERIEEE ] 1,953

Currency translation difference EHREER (4,307)

At 31 March 2020 RZZEZEF=A=+—H 60,416
FACTORING RECEIVABLES 22 BWRIEBRIA

2020 2019

—EB-BHF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Factoring receivables JFEWAREE FRIR 27,032 8,178

Less: Impairment loss B REEE (270) -

26,762 8,178
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23

FACTORING RECEIVABLES (continued) 22 FEWRIBFIE (&)
The movement in the provision for impairment of factoring FEUUREFIEREREZE SN T

receivables is as follows:

HK$'000
FAET

At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 RZZE—NFMHA—AB"

and 1 April 2019 —E-hF=ZA=1+—H

F=—F—-hFHA—H -
Provision for impairment AR 278
Currency translation difference ERBmEER 8)
At 31 March 2020 RZEZZEF=H=+—H 270

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23 RE BAAREBERHEMGEKRRE
RECEIVABLES

2020 2019

—E-FF —FNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEx FHET

Trade deposits paid BENESES 949 1,019
Other deposits paid, prepayments and  Ef B iz & « FB A

other receivables R Eo b e W SR IE 27,021 39,773

27,970 40,792

Less: Impairment loss B OREBE (3,025) (22,465)

24,945 18,327
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23 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23 ®BEe FEASREREMERRE
RECEIVABLES (continuea) (%)

The movement in the provision for impairment of deposits e RAMBWFIERERES ST
and other receivables is as follows:

HK$'000
FHET
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-—NF=A=+—8H 20,225
Amounts re-measured under ECL through BRI RGTEEENTENER
opening accumulated losses 1,953
Currency translation difference ERBmEER 38
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—NFW™A—AH 22,216
Provision for impairment VEREREA 989
Currency translation difference EHBEER (740)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZE—NF=A=+—H
EKZE—NAFWMA—H 22,465
Written off 58 (9,729)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEH B A F (9,541)
Provision for impairment BB 581
Currency translation difference EHREER (757)
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZTF=RA=+—H 3,025
24 HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 24 BFEEERE
2020 2019
—ECEH —ZT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Equity securities held-for-trading: BIEEBERAE S
— Listed in Hong Kong —REBL™ 17,100 70,599

The held-for-trading investments are stated at fair value FEEERENBRENREZAAERY -

at the end of the reporting period. The fair values of listed
equity securities are determined by reference to the bid
prices on the stock exchange except for one of the listed
securities in Hong Kong which has been suspended for
trading whereby, a full impairment of HK$3,500,000 has
been provided in prior year. The securities have been
delisted during the year and were written off as at 31 March
2020.
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25 LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 25 BRERKAER

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Loan receivables FEWE R 67,571 87,275
Interest receivables FEULFI B 6,665 1,084
Loan and interest receivables FEUE R F) B 74,236 88,359
Less: Impairment 10ss W REESE (1,285) (874)
72,951 87,485
Current portion of loan and FEW E R R B RVHR &l 19
interest receivables 72,951 87,485
Non-current portion of loan and FEM E TR R B IE RN BB 1D
interest receivables - -
72,951 87,485
Analysed as: AT
Within one year —F R 72,951 87,485
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~FE_ZFERF (BEEEMSF) - -
72,951 87,485

The aged analysis of the loan and interest receivables that is THREDREZEREFR LT BERS

not considered to be impaired is as follows: T
2020 2019
—BE-BH —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired B AR # BRI R R (B 31,215 87,485

Past due but not impaired B ERRE

0 to 30 days 0&30H 942 -
31 to 90 days 31290H 11,461 -
91 to 180 days 912180H 21,542 -
more than 180 days 1808 A £ 7.791 -
72,951 87,485
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25 LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 25 EWERKFE (&)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of the loan and interest receivables FEWEREFE ZEREEL T3 &%
are denominated in the following currencies: B
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FET
HK$ BTT 43,764 30,309
RMB AR 29,187 57,176
72,951 87,485
The movement in the provision for impairment of loan and EWEREF EREREESHNT
interest receivables are as follows:
HK$'000
FHET
At 31 March 2018 WZZE-NF=A=+—H 489
Amounts re-measured under ECL through BRBYIRFTERENTENS T
opening accumulated losses 891
Currency translation difference ERBEESR 37
At 1 April 2018 RZE—N\FMOH—H 1,417
Reversal of impairment loss REREE (493)
Currency translation difference ERBEER (50)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZZE—AF=ZA=+—A8xX
—E-NAFHA—H 874
Provision for impairment AR 929
Written off 58 (489)
Currency translation difference EHBMEZSR (29)
At 31 March 2020 RZEZEF=A=+—H 1,285
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25

26

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Loan receivables are interest-bearing at approximately 8%
to 24% (2019: approximately 8% to 18%) and are repayable
with fixed terms agreed with the Group's customers. The
maturity date for each loan contract is normally not more
than 3 years (2019: 3 years) and were unsecured. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the end of
the reporting period is the carrying value of the loan and
interest receivables.

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the Group
applies the general approach to provide for ECL prescribed
by HKFRS 9 for loan and interest receivables, which permits
the use of the 12 months ECL provision for these loan and
interest receivables, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, which the
Group then recognises lifetime ECL. The management
assessed the expected loss on all loan and interest
receivables individually and the credit quality of loan and
interest receivables has been assessed by reference to
historical information about counterparty default rates.

CASH HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
licensed banks to hold securities clients’ monies arising
from its normal course of business. The Group has
classified the clients’ monies as “Cash held on behalf
of clients” under the current assets section of the
consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
the corresponding trade payables to respective clients
on the grounds that the Group is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of the clients” monies. The Group is
not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own
obligations.

25

26
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27 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27 BERBITERE
2020 2019
—E-FF —FNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 183,430 140,293
The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are ReRBTHEFCEERBENUTIEES|
denominated in the following currencies: &:

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
HK$ BTT 49,607 9,938
uss ETT 1,239 1,240
EUR BT 4 4
RMB AR 132,580 129,111
183,430 140,293
The conversion of RMB-denominated balances into foreign 1A B 4 8 5L MR R SIS 0 1t S AN
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies RITHEMR R eEL PR AEFPEIK

denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are JiT Tk SN B ) 98 45 2 AR AR R ROE AR o

subject to relevant rules and regulation of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.
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28 SHARE CAPITAL
(@) Authorised capital

ERHREEBRAA]
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28 KA
(@) ZEERZE

Number of Nominal
shares value
R#oEE HE
HK$'000
FTAT
As at 31 March 2019 and 2020, RIE—NEFER_ZE_FF
ordinary shares of —RA=+—8"
HK$0.02 each FREEC.2E L EMAT  5,000,000,000 100,000
(b) Issued and fully paid capital (b) ERITRHBREZRE
Number of Nominal
shares value
BB EE HE
HK$'000
TAT
As at 31 March 2019 and M:%*ﬁﬁﬁiﬂz+*5
1 April 2019, ordinary shares T-NhEFMWA—H"
of HK$0.02 each tﬂxﬁfﬁo 028 T2 L@k 3,680,600,000 73,612
Placing of new shares (Note) Fe & (B k) 440,000,000 8,800
As at 31 March 2020, of ordinary RZEBZEF=A=+— E!
shares of HK$0.02 each FRREEC.02B T T 4,120,600,000 82,412
Note: PR 5

On 2 December 2019, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to place (the “Placing”) up
to 440,000,000 shares of the Company of HK$0.02 each at a
placing price of HK$0.50 per placing share. The closing market
price of the shares of the Company on that date was HK$0.54.
The Placing was completed on 27 December 2019 and a total of
440,000,000 ordinary shares with nominal value of HK$8,800,000
were issued to not less than six independent placees. Details
of the Placing were set out in announcements of the Company
dated 2 December 2019 and 27 December 2019. Net proceeds
of the Placing was approximately HK$214.1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$0.49 per share), of which HK$204.0 million
has been applied for the settlement of part of the consideration
payable by the Company in respect of the acquisition of
ChaoShang Financial, details of which are set out in the Note 35
to the consolidated financial statements. The remaining proceeds
of approximately HK$10.1 million was applied as general working
capital of the Group.

T-hE+_A-H AQFHEF
& R I ET 37 B & 15 A LA BC & {8 B %0.50
75 7T g & 5 %440,000,0000% 4 % @ {50.02
BT L RBRD - ANARBRORERZ T
BROSAET - BRER - AFE+_A
—+-tE AR & KA {E A8,800,000/% 7T
2 440,000,0008% & @A B BLEE TR DR
NEEN AR AT BLEBIE 2 FEEEHR
AARBHAZT—NAE+_AZAKR=
T-—NF+-AZ+EAZRAER -BE
2 BT FRIEF 5B 49214,100,0008 7T (HHE
REARA70.497 7T) + & F2204,000,00074 7T
EHREENERRRKE SRS 3D
EARE EFBHRRE M BREME
35 ° N 4910,100,000/8 7L 2 FAEA £ E &
HED-

ZECTEFHR
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28 SHARE CAPITAL continued)

(c)

Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 2 September 2013, the shareholders of
the Company approved the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from 2 September 2013,
unless otherwise terminated. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible and effective means of incentivizing,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or
providing benefits to the directors, employees and
other participants of the Company and the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
shares in issue on 2 September 2013 (i.e. 72,400,000
shares) unless the Company seeks the approval of
the shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the
10% limit under the Share Option Scheme. Pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting
on 2 September 2014, the 10% limit under the
Share Option Scheme was refreshed to 33,760,000
consolidated shares (after the consolidation of every
ten shares of HK$0.01 each into one share of HK$0.10
each which was effective in January 2015). Further,
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting on 26 August 2016, the 10% limit under
the Share Option Scheme was further refreshed to
73,612,000 shares.

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable
period and the number of shares subject to each
option will be determined by the Board at the time of
grant. No option has been granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption to
the date of this report.
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29 TRADE PAYABLES
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29 FENERR

2020 2019

—2-FF —T-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Payables arising from trading business W =% 5 ¥ EES 2 BHEREXR - 2
Payables arising from securities NEBFRLEBEEZ

broking business: FEATRR RN :

— Cash clients trade payables —ENESEFPER 16,292 -

— Margin clients trade payables —-EHREFSEFPER 18,931 -

__________________________________________________________ 452234 -

Total trade payables FETER R 35,223 2

The aged analysis of the payables arising from trading
business is as follows:

RELBEBEE Y BNERERD T
wmF

2020 2019

—EB-EF —ET-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEx FET

0 to 90 days 0&290H - 2
91 to 180 days 91&2180H - -
181 to 365 days 181&2365H - -
More than 365 days 3658 LA E - -
- 2

The normal settlement terms of payables arising from
securities broking are two trading days after the trade date.

HREFRLEEZERNERN—REE
HRRZBEMERZH -
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30

31

32

33

BOND PAYABLE

The bond payable was issued on 15 April 2019, pursuant
to a placing agreement dated 12 April 2019 entered into
between the placing agent and the Company, with a
maturity period of 2 years from the date of issuance and
bears interest at 4% per annum.

30

&S

ENEFR T —NFRNATRART
REREREERAAFTAHA-Z
—AFMAT=RZERERE 2HHE
REEIT AR 2F RIAFRIRI%IT & -

RETAINED CONSIDERATION PAYABLES 31 EFREBRE
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
As at 1 April RO HA—H - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) L B B B8 2 =) (B 7E35) 32,855 -

Accretion of interest recognised FRNEERF SN

during the year 446 -
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 33,301 -

The retained consideration of the Group as at 31 March
2020 represented the consideration payables to the
CS Vendors in relation to the acquisition of ChaoShang
Financial, detail of which are set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

Amount due to a director is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the balance
is denominated in HK$.

AMOUNT DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Amount due to non-controlling interests is unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand. The carrying
amount of balance is denominated in RMB.
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34 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 34 EEHRIEEE

The major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group
are as follows:

AEBEHERAELEREEEZEEIE
BT

Fair value

Revaluation adjustment on

of investment intangible
property assets Total

RENE BVEE
EfiE DAERE @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-N\FHA—A - - -
Charge to equity SRl 2,414) - (2,414)
Charge to profit or loss (Note 10) gERETFME (FFE10) 29) - 29
Currency translation difference ERGEES (64) - (64)

At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZE-hNE=RA=+—H

RZZ-nEWA-H (2,507) - (2,507)
Credit to profit or loss (Note 10) gEaFEE (F710) 532 - 532
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) WeBE B 2 Al (F3E35) - (3,465) (3,465)
Currency translation difference ELREES 157 - 157
At 31 March 2020 RZE-ZTF=A=+—H (1,818) (3,465) (5,283)

At 31 March 2020, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$142,787,000 (2019: HK$168,178,000)
available for offset against future profits. The Hong Kong
tax losses of approximately HK$101,468,000 (2019:
HK$86,118,000) can be carried forward indefinitely and the
remaining tax losses will expire from 2021 to 2024 (2019:
2020 to 2023). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the unrecognised tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

In cases where there are future profits generated to utilise
the tax losses, a material deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
period in which the estimated future profits are expected.

The PRC tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10%, unless
reduced by a tax treaty, for dividends distributed by PRC
subsidiaries to its immediate holding company outside the
PRC for earnings generated beginning on 1 January 2008.

RZE-_TFE=ZRA=+—H AEFE
RENBMIBEIEL142,787,0008 7T (=&
— JLEF 168,178,000/ 7T ) LA F1EIK 85 &
g o BB IEETE49101,468,00078 7T

ZEF— N4 : 86,118,000/ 7T ) 7] £ R HA
FELEGNBEBERN -2 =_—%F
EZTEMF(ZT-NF: ZTFTF
ETT=F) BB ARARBETERIRK
EAMA - SRR FER T IBE RS B ERHE
EERIEEE ©

fie B & B A m M AR PR AR TEES 18 - AU RT B8
SIMBEBRELERBAEE MZxFELER
THEE R TR AT HER S R R A0 ) 2 8
BAERE B LM 2B A RKE

37
u?mJ\ °©

—ZT)\F—HA—B%H BRIFRER
THGRA) T LAR D - R BIBOE R E B 8
REIREERNMREF BRI ERE
P X B 0 IR BB R B AR 10% TR AN AR ©
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34

35

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group’'s management determines the dividend
distribution plan of the subsidiaries in the PRC. Based on the
dividend distribution plan, retained profits as at 31 March
2020 amounting to HK$52,570,000 (2019: HK$41,022,000)
will not be distributed by the subsidiaries as dividend in
the foreseeable future. Deferred taxation has not been
provided in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the temporary difference attributable to retained profits
of the PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not release in
the foreseeable future.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 7 January 2019, the Company entered into a sales
and purchase agreement (the “S&P”) with the CS Vendors
in relation to the acquisition of 100% equity interest in
ChaoShang Financial (the “CS Acquisition”), which holds
licences to carry on Type 1, 2, 4 and 9 regulated activities
under the SFO, at a consideration of HK$250 million (the
“Consideration”). Pursuant to the S&P, the Consideration
shall be satisfied in the following manner:

()  as to HK$30,000,000 paid by the Company to the CS
Vendors by cash as a refundable deposit within sixty
days from the date of the S&P;

(i) as to HK$182,500,000 shall be paid by the Company to
the CS Vendors at completion; and

(i) the remaining balance in the amount of HK$37,500,000
(the “Retained Consideration Payable”) shall be
retained by the Company at completion as security,
and subject to the fulfillment of the relevant CS Profit
Guarantee (Note 19(b)), the Retained Consideration
Payable shall be released and payable by the Company
to the CS Vendors.
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AEBEEEETHREMBARZKRE
DRET &l ARIENE B IRET ] S B
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35 ACAQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

(iii)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the S&P each of the CS Vendors further
warrants and guarantees to the Company that the
audited consolidated tangible net asset value of
ChaoShang Financial (the “CS Consolidated NAV")
as at the completion date shall not be less than
HK$150,000,000 (the “Guaranteed NAV”). The CS
Vendors shall compensate the Company the amount
of any shortfall.

Details of the CS Acquisition were set out in
announcement and circular of the Company dated 7
January 2019 and 8 May 2019 respectively.

The CS Acquisition was completed on 31 December
2019 and the CS Acquisition was considered as a
business combination for accounting purpose. As
at the completion date, the CS Consolidated NAV is
greater than the Guaranteed NAV, as such no amount
is payable by the CS Vendors.

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer, Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, to perform
valuations at the date of completion for the purpose
of accounting for the acquisition of ChaoShang
Financial according to HKFRS 3 (Revised). The fair
value of the Licences (Note 17) of HK$21,000,000 is
determined by market approach and the fair value
of the CS Guaranteed Profit of HK$944,000 are
determined by Monte Carlo simulation.
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35 WEMEAR ()

(iii)

(%)

REEEHZ SPRETE—F
AARRBRERER BES RN
TR AR RERRABEER
B(HHeREEEEFE]D R
A~ 4> 54150,000,0007% 7T ([HERE
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BEAT RS
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35 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuve) 35 WEBHIE 2R (4)

Details of the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities RUEBHRAIEREENBEZANER
acquired at the date of acquisition are as follows: A
Note HK$'000
ihg=a FHET
Plant and equipment BT 15 11,210
Other non-current assets HiEREBEE 230
Intangible assets B EE 17 21,500
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 15 19,987
Trade receivables FEUER 3R 119,126
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Be TEMRER
e GRIE 13,951
Cash held on behalf of clients BEPEFER 47,044
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITET 13,080
Trade payables FERTER SR (47,876)
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 (20,416)
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R EMENFRIE (1,202)
Taxation payable JERTL & (4,453)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 34 (3,465)
168,716
Goodwill arising from acquisition WHEEE 2 B2 18 75,695
244,411
Satisfied by : BAT A ER
Cash bk 212,500
Present value of the Retained Consideration JERREBREZRE
Payable 32,855
Fair value of the Profit Guarantee HAMREBEZ A A 19 (944)
244,411
Net cash outflow arising on the acquisition RUIERTEA 2
is as follows : REmBwT:
Purchase consideration settled by cash LR e WERE (212,500)
Cash and bank balances acquired Wi 23R & RIRTTE % 13,080
(199,420)
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35 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The goodwill of HK$75,695,000 arising from the CS
Acquisition is attributable to the synergies expected to
arise from the business combination and future growth of
ChaoShang Financial. None of the goodwill recognised was
expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

ChaoShang Financial contributed approximately
HK$37,372,000 to the Group's revenue and a profit after
tax of approximately HK$22,514,000 to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the period from the completion date to 31
March 2020.

Had the business combination taken place at the beginning
of the year ended 31 March 2020, the revenue of the Group
and the loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020 would increase by HK$40,213,000 and decrease by
HK$4,012,000, respectively. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purpose only.

At 31 March 2020, with reference to the valuation report
prepared by the independent professionally qualified
valuer, Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, the Directors of
the Company were of the opinion that the fair value of
the CS Profit Guarantee was approximately HK$356,000.
A loss on fair value changes on the CS Profit Guarantee
of approximately HK$588,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

35
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90 I S T E 4 2 75,695,000/ T
BEREREHHSRMZEBE MK
IR 2 W RRE - At DR 2
BT AT (EAT S B B 2 HR -

NEKBHPE T -_TF=-A=+—8
A e EsMmEGA BRI REM
2EW KT AAREEFE437,372,000
P8 TR S DA R BR B 18 0 1 4922,514,00078
ST e

WEBEHREBE—T_TF=H=4—
BIEFEZFVEE REEREEZ
EoEF =A==+ —RHIEFEZHEM
Ei18# o Bl = F+40,213,0007 7T K2 T B&
AOQmMﬁE%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ@hﬂ%%

R-Z-TF=A=+t—H 2FBFIUH
EMEMSEFHAERARZHERS
% ARAEERRPHENRELIARL
1B 49 73356,0007%8 7T ° 8 7 % AR & A o
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4

36 GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

(i)

On 20 July 2018, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement (the “EK Disposal”) with an independent
third party, pursuant to which, the Group (i) disposed
of its 100% equity interest in Empower King Limited
("Empower King"), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company; and (i) assigned the
shareholder’s loan of approximately HK$11.4 million in
full owing from Empower King to the Group for a cash
consideration of HK$12.5 million.

The EK Disposal was completed on 31 August 2018.
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Empower
King as at the completion date of the EK Disposal
were as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36 HEMBEARERR (BER)

0]

RZE—NEFE+LAZ+H K&E
H—FUE=FFIY—HEE®
# (THESREEK]) < Bt AEE
LAZR & A {212,500,0007% 7o (i) &
Empower King Limited ([Empower
Kingl) ' AAdlzHEE2ENRBA
A2 100% M A 4 7 R (i) 7 B o
Empower KingfE (I A& B 2 R R &
FX#911,400,0007% 7T

HEZBEEKERZ-ZZ—\FNA
=+—H 58k ° Empower King
EZHEKEKBZEIEEEREE
RIS

Note HK$'000
hr=2 T
Plant and equipment B 15 11
Investment property "EME 16 13,180
Amount due to the Group R ARE B RIA (11,405)
1,786
Assignment of amount due to the Group HERENARSBRIA 11,405
13,191
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary e —HE B AREE (697)
12,500
Satisfied by: WIAT A ER -
Cash B 12,500
Net cash inflow arising on the disposal HEEMEEZRSFRA
is as follows: o
Consideration settled in cash NI &EM2RE 12,500
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36 GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(i) On 24 September 2018, the Group entered into (if)
a disposal agreement (the “QJ Disposal”) with a
director and shareholder (the “QJ Shareholder”) of
25% equity interest in Shenzhen Qianhai Jiulongfu
Industrial Company Limited (“Qianhai Jiulongfu”),
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, pursuant to which, the Group disposed of
its 75% equity interest in Qianhai Jiulongfu to the QJ
Shareholder for a cash consideration of approximately

RMB31.1 million.

The QJ Disposal was completed on 27 September
2018. The major classes of assets and liabilities of
Qianhai Jiulongfu as at the completion date of the QJ

ERHREEBRAA]
(BRI R EERBRAF])
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36 HEMBATREHN,(EE)
(%)

R-ZE—NENA-+MHE K&
EERFENABNEREXEARA
Al ([ATENERE]) (KRAFZM
BIFE2EWB AR ZE S KR25%
B ARERS 2 AR ([QIIRER )RS
—mHEHE(THEEEQL) -
Bt AEENRESAREARBELY
31,100,000 T H & BT E LEER 2 75%
BEARERS FQIRER -

HEEHQUER=ZZ—/\FNA
“tEREX-BIBNEERREE
FHEQEKAZIZEENBER

Disposal were as follows: BIEAT :
HK$'000
FAT
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e B FRIE R H AU GRIE 55,334
Inventories rE 2,225
Cash and bank balance Re RRITHET 341
Accruals, other payables and deposit received  FExH &~ E R ZIE M EWiIR S (6)
Tax payable ERE (206)
Amount due to a non-controlling interests FEAS eI B i 2 R TE (664)
57,024
Less: Non-controlling interest B IETE R M (21,622)
35,402
Other financial asset arising MBI NEREE Y
from the acquisition of Qianhai Jiulongfu HterEE 4,822
Release of cumulative exchange differences on B EINER 2 RHIE X Z5EE IR
translation of foreign operations 31
Release of surplus reserve BHBRNE 2 # (15)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HERBATEE 4,767)
35,473
Satisfied by: AT A ER:
Cash Re 35,473
Net cash inflow arising on the disposal MEEMEECRESFRALT
is as follows:
Consideration settled in cash NReZH2RE 35,473
Cash and bank balances disposed HEZRe RIRTTES (347)
35,132
ZE_FFFR
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36 GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

(iii)

On 20 February 2020, the Group entered into a
disposal agreement (the “NC Shipping Disposal”) with
an independent third party, pursuant to which, the
Group (i) disposed of its 100% equity interest in Jili
EMIIEMEAR AT ('NC Shipping”), an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and (ii)
assigned the shareholder’s loan of approximately
RMB3.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,300,000) in full owing from NC Shipping to the
Group for a cash consideration of RMB1.

The NC Shipping Disposal was completed on 20
March 2020. The major classes of assets and liabilities
of NC Shipping as at the completion date of the NC
Shipping Disposal were as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36 HEMBEARERR (BER)

(%)

(iii)

RZEZZEF-_A=+H KKE
M- E =R HEWR
#F([ChmmBEEEIE]) Bt
REBLRSREAREITOH
ENBEHCHEMBEERAR ([
W) AREcEEEENEB
RNAE]Z100%A AR E R (DB
LM ENAEB 2 BRRE
AR #3,900,0007T (FHE R L
4,300,000 7T ) °

CHRMmBEEERER T _FTF
ZAZTHER - CRMER IR
WSHEFETKBEZTIEEEN
BEEMNT

Note HK$'000
hr=2 T
Plant and equipment B 15 12,193
Deposits, prepayments and e FBARER
other receivables H b WRIE 206
Inventories =BE 21
Accruals and other payables FERH B A N E M E < 50 IE (13,520)
Taxation payable ERT & (49)
Amount due to the Group T ARE B FIE (4,296)
(5,445)
Assignment of amount due to the Group HERENANEEFIE 4,296
(1,149)
Release of cumulative exchange differences B RINEFE >
on translation of foreign operations BRHEREREER (1,330)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —HE A E)EF 2,479
Satisfied by: BATHNEN:
Cash Re —*
Net cash inflow arising on the disposal MEEMELZ
is as follows: WEFRALT
Consideration settled in cash UREIT R RE —*
* The negligible consideration has not be shown due to * BRRIEE R A BRERAI BT

rounding. RENRE-
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37 COMMITMENTS 37 EiE
(@) The Group as lessee (@) EREEHREAHEA
At the end of the reporting period, the lease R¥ERR RAESENOHEERE
commitments for short-term leases (2019: total (ZE2E—NF - AEEBRET T
future minimum lease payments payable by the HEEHERN 2 RRKEEEE
Group under non-cancellable operating leases) are as BT :
follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Not later than 1 year TIBE 21 3,796
Later than 1 year but not later BRF BT ENSE
than 5 years - 6,278
21 10,074
None of the leases include contingent rentals. BEAEEs I AEE-
(b) The Group as lessor (b) AEBEEHBEBAA
The Group leases its property to independent third AEBRBEEEHEZHHEET
parties under operating lease arrangement with lease EMETBLE=H BERLHS
negotiated for terms of 1 year (2019: 1 year). ER—F(ZE—NF:—F)-
The Group had total future minimum lease receivable NEERBEEMEFEI L2 T
under non-cancellable operating lease with its tenant A E R AT EREIE 2 R
falling due as follows: KRR FEWAE ERIAAREANT -
2020 2019
—E-TF ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not later than 1 year TEBMF 981 1,053
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38 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 38 mEBEERER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of loss before taxation to (@) BRBIATEEELSEER ()
cash (used in)/generated from operations SFBRE YR
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
(Loss)/Profit before taxation: B 7 AT B 18 -
- From continuing operations - 5K BB E %7 (9,910) (21,912)
— From discontinued - REERIEEEER
operation 1,682 (6,207)
(8,228) (28,119)
Loss on deregistration of TN B AR EE
a subsidiary 47 -
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and — W BEREM
equipment 15 4,285 6,323
— Right-of-use assets —FREEE 15 5,935 -
Finance costs B & R AR 9 1,451 -
Impairment loss on trade FEW AR FURE S 18
receivables 21 1,953 32,648
Impairment loss/(Reversal of FEW B TR AN BRI E
impairment loss) on loan B8, (#m)
and interest receivables 25 929 (493)
Impairment loss on deposits, Be FENHRER
prepayments and H b B GRIRREEE
other receivables 23 581 990
Impairment loss on finance FEN B E T EFIR
lease receivables BEEE 20 414 21
Impairment loss on factoring /& I (R 38 FRIE B (B /55 18
receivables 22 278 -
Impairment loss on property, — #1% « RE N =V IREERE
plant and equipment 15 - 5,170
Loss on disposal of property, — HEWE R EREMEE
plant and equipment 8 - 18
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of HEMBAR (), B8
subsidiaries 36 (2,479) 5,458
Bank interest income |ITFIBHA 7 (878) (697)
Unrealised loss on changes ﬁi fﬁﬁﬁﬂirﬂé?
in fair value of other N EEREIE
financial assets 588 -
Unrealised loss/(gain) on FIEEBIREREIR
held-for-trading investments &8, (M) 38,438 (5,935)
Realised loss/(gain) on BIEBEEKRECDER
held-for-trading investments &8, (M) 1,068 (4,229)
Unrealised loss/(gain) on %xétr%%ﬁfm BRI
changes in fair value of EiE (e
investment property 16 2,128 (297)
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38 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 38 HmEBEERER (H)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to (@) BRBAIEHEELE XL (FTA)
cash (used in)/generated from operations SHBREZHER (£)
(Continued)

2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FExT FHIT
Cash generated from operations & &1 &8 & & & B) gl 48 &
before working capital XBHEEe
changes 46,510 10,858
(Increase)/Decrease intrade  FEURBEFR (12 n) R 4>
receivables (18,113) 31,673
Decrease in bills receivable R EE R A - 16,383
Increase in factoring receivables & W (R 32 3k I8 1€ N (18,862) (8,178)
Decrease in deposits, e FENFRER
prepayments and other LA IR R
receivables 6,212 22,436
Decrease/(Increase) in FEM RYE TE & IR
finance lease receivables B (1) 46,033 (63,216)
Decrease/(Increase) REREFERD
in loan and interest (32h0)
receivables 13,634 (11,396)
Increase in inventories FE N - (554)
Decrease in cash held on BREFRFIRD
behalf of clients 11,257 -
Decrease in trade payables FE BRSO 4 (12,655) (51,854)
(Decrease)/Increase in AHBEECRD) /1B
contract liabilities (766) 1,696
Decrease in bills payables B EER A - (5,387)
Increase/(Decrease) in accruals, FETE - E b & I8 &
other payables and BUEEEmMm, Cd)
deposit received 3,783 (25,668)

Cash generated from/(used in) & & ¥5FT15, (FTA) B &
operations 77,033 (83,207)
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38 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 38 HmEBEERER (H)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) ERFELHIE
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the REHNBEEZ T _EFR-F
movements in net debt for the year ended 31 March —hWE=ZA=1T—HIEFEMES
2020 and 2019 presented. B FRREEFEEEN DN -
2020 2019
—BE-BH —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Cash and cash equivalents RekIREEEY 183,430 140,293
Borrowing (R
- Amount due to a director — BN —RESHIE (2,286) (4,556)
- Bond payable —ERES (7,800) -
— Lease liabilities —HEaRE (23,783) -
Net cash BeF8 149,561 135,737
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
AtEE HETHEEZER
Amount
Cashand  Restricted duetoa
cash bank director
equivalents deposit  Structured &R~ Bond Lease
AR R deposit Ef-% payable liabilities Total
REEEY BAFR  GRERR E=HE EfES HEaE @

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§ 000
TiER ThER TR TR TR TEL TR

Net cash as at RZE-/\FRA-BH

1 April 2018 ReFE 172,778 5,622 18,750 (5,389) - - 191,761
Cash flows changes: ~ R&HE%E:
Cashinflows BERA 10609 - - - - - 10,609
Cash outflows Beimi - (5622 (18750) 833 - - (235%9)
Foreign exchange HEFE

adjustments (43,094) - - - - - (43,094)
Net cash as at RZE-NE

31 March 2019 and ZA=+-ARk

1 April 2019 “E-NERA-A

WRLER 140,293 - - (4,556) - - 135,737

Cash flows changes: ~ BE&HEZH:
Cashinflows BERA 86,930 - - - (7,800 - 79130
Cash outflows BeH - - - 2270 - 6395 8665
Other changes: AtheE:
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RRBAHBREENZ0S - - - - - (9,073 9,073
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB A - - - - - (20416) (2041)
Interest expense HexH - - - - - (689) (689)
Foreign exchange HERE

adjustments 43,793) - - - - - (43,793)
Net cash as at RZZ-%

31 March 2020 A=t-HNELFE 183,430 - - (2,286) (7,800) (23783) 149,561

244  annual Report 2020



39

40

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Key management compensation

The remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group during the year was as follows:

39

ERHREEBRAA]
(BRI R EERBRAF])
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EREAERS
FTEEEASRM
REEANAEETEERBASNME M
T

2020 2019

—E-FF —T-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 - 284 & A 38 5 8,792 9,533
Contributions to retirement benefits BRI T 2R

scheme 134 118

8,926 9,651

Apart from the above, the Group disposed of its 75% equity
interest in Shenzhen Qianhai Jiulongfu Industrial Company
Limited (“Qianhai Jiulongfu®), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, to a director and shareholder
of Qianhai Jiulongfu at a consideration of RMB31.1 million
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors of the Company regard Superb Smart Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as
being the ultimate holding company of the Company.

40

LA R-F—-NF=ZA=1t—H
FEAAREBEARE AR X31,100,000
THEERRIFIEBNEREXZBRA
A ([AgNER]) (RRRZEEIER
BHBRTE)) 275% AN T A8 SLEE
WZEENBER-

BAEZERATR
AAREEENRBELZHES MK
ZSuperb Smart Limited & 28 A 7] & 4535
BAT

ZECTEFHR
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41 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41 FRFAHBMRRARRFEEE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY
(@ Information about the statement of financial position @ ARERBMERARCHBRRAERE
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is BT
as follows:
2020 2019
—E-BF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Plant and equipment B 103 484
Right-of-use assets EREEE 5,867 -
Interests in subsidiaries R B ARz 250,000 -
255,970 484
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and e FBERER
other receivables H b WRIE 2,682 10,734
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBRE 17,100 70,599
Amount due from subsidiaries FE YR B A B FRIE 658,990 675,355
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHER 6,946 7,408
685,718 764,096
Total assets EE#E 941,688 764,580
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves BEARK#E
Share capital & s 82,412 73,612
Reserves & 806,721 685,274
Total equity A 889,133 758,886
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41 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(@ Information about the statement of financial position
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is
as follows: (Continued)

ERHREEBRAA]
(BRI R EERBRAF])

\,

RRATMBRAERRHEEED

(%)

(@ ARBRBERRZBBMARE
Fanr: (48)

2020 2019
—E-EHF —EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bond payable B EH 7,800 -
Retained consideration payable EHREBRE 33,301 -
Lease liabilities HEasE 2,160 -
______________________________________________________ 43261 -
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals, other payables and JEFHER  EfER
deposit received FIEREWIES 3,378 1,138
Amount due to a director I —RESZFIA 2,286 4,556
Lease liabilities HEaE 3,552 -
Bond interest payable R ESFFE 78 -
_______________________________________________________ 9.294 5694
Total liabilities wEE 52,555 5,694
Total equity and liabilities ERkEEHEHE 941,688 764,580
Net current assets RBEEFE 676,424 758,402
Total assets less EEHABERABAE
current liabilities 932,394 758,886

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June
2020 and was signed on its behalf.

Zheng Juhua
BRI TE
Director
EFE

ARBZHBERAKRENR T -F
FRAZTNARKREESHELH
RERE-

Chan Chi Yuen
Director
EFE
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41 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41 RRAMBEMRRRRBEES
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE (#&)
COMPANY (continued)
() Information about the reserve movement of the b)) ARERHmEARCHEESZESHER
Company at the end of the reporting period is as s
follows:
Share  Contributed  Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
43 R {E B4z ZiER k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
At 1 April 2018 RZT-N\F
mAH—H 795,408 34,178 (84,837) 744,749
Loss for the year rEEER - - (59,475) (59,475)
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NEF
“A=f+—H 795,408 34,178 (144,312 685,274
At 1 April 2019 RZZ-NEF
mA—H 795,408 34,178 (144,312) 685,274
Loss for the year AEEBA - - (83,890) (83,890)
Placing of new shares BREHRH 211,200 - - 211,200
Transaction cost attributable to %175 i {n fE 1
issue of new shares RGMA (5,863) - - (5,863)
At 31 March 2020 RZZZZEF
=A=1+—H 1,000,745 34,178 (228,202) 806,721
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42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42 FEHNBAF
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 THABRRRRE_EF=A=+—
March 2020: HzEXEZEMBAF:
Particulars of issued/ Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ registered and fully paid Principal activities and shares held by
Name Note registration share capital place of operation the Company
N
A% Bt £ B 8T ERARMEEBERE TEERREEHE ROBDH
Shares held directly:
EREE
Noble Century Investment British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each Investment holdings 100%
Group Limited EREBRED IRERERIETIRG REZR
Shares held indirectly:
BEEE:
Noble Century Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Money lending operated in Hong Kong 100%
CIREBERAR B0 10,0007 7T RERREEEER
Ch ORI BEREBR AR @b People’s Republic of China  US$43,000,000 Finance leasing operated in the PRC 100%
H 43,000,000% 7T RPBEREHERERES
Noble Century KS Group Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 Investment holdings and mould trading 100%
ChHREASEERAR Bk 100,000/ T in Hong Kong and the PRC
RERRERRBERTEALEEAES
Chn (R BSERRA (@)  People’s Republic of China  RMB200,000,000 Electronic products trading in the PRC 100%
FE AR 200,000,000 RPBREEEFERE S
HRUREE ORI BB RF) @) People’s Republic of China HK$40,000,000 Seafood trading in the PRC 100%
F 40,000,0007 7T RAELLEHE S
Hidili Pacific Industrial Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Methanol trading in the PRC 100%
ERFEEXERAT & 1,000,0007% 7 REBEETRRESEL
WET AR EERAR () (©) People’s Republic of China - RMB10,000,000 Vessel Chartering operated mainly in the 100%
hE AE#10,000,0007T PRC and Southeast Asia region
FERREREREIRCEMNAE
£%
AImERELAERAA (b) People’s Republic of China  RMB2,000,000 Frozen food trading in the PRC 70%
FE AR #2,000,0007T REELELRRAES
CHERE OMINERAT @@ People’s Republic of China  RMBS50,000,000 Provision of entrusted loan in the PRC 100%
HF AR #50,000,0007C RPBREEZRTER
Upwell Miracle Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each Investment holdings 100%
EREBRED REREEIZT RN REER
ERENCIHREEEREZLH (b) (@) People’s Republic of China  RMB100,000 Provision of consultancy service 100%
BRDAE H AR H100,0007T inthe PRC
T e B £ 4 7 A PR 7
o (R EREBRAR @ People’s Republic of China  US$150,000 Provision of consultancy and 100%
F 150,000 T factoring services in the PRC
Rrp B R 5 A RIRIE IR
ChaoShang Asset Management )] Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 Provision of asset management services 100%
Limited &% 10,000,0007% 7T in Hong Kong
HHEEERBRAA REBREEEEERE
ChaoShang Securities Limited ©) Hong Kong HK$102,780,000 Provision of securities brokerage, 100%
HEESFERAF & 102,780,00078 7 underwriting, placing, margin

financing services in Hong Kong
REBREESEL 28 BE-
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43

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

Notes:

(a) The subsidiary is registered as wholly-foreign owned enterprises
under the PRC law.

(b) The subsidiary is registered as a limited liability enterprise under
the PRC law.

(©) The subsidiary was disposed during the year ended 31 March
2020.

(d) The subsidiary was deregistered during the year ended 31 March
2020.

(e) The subsidiary was acquired during the year ended 31 March
2020.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the reporting period or at anytime during both
years.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank balance of approximately HK$133,780,000
(2019: approximately HK$130,318,000) are held in the PRC
and are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These exchange control regulations provide for restrictions
on exporting capital from the country, other than through
normal dividends.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Five-Year Financial Summary
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HONG KONG CHAOSHANG GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T AE W05 4

4

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EZ8f —T-hE 2\ —E—+tHF —T—5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET FET FET FTET
Restated Restated Restated Restated
el KE K= EE
Results E
Revenue from continuing REFELE
operations ES vl e 238,518 105,088 460,093 2,133,232 1,372,552
Loss before taxation from REBELLEERL
continuing operations BRERIEE (9,910) (21,912) (37,319) (11,853) (16,112)
Taxation charge MIBZ M (12,535) (7,909 6,729 (6,880) (2,625)
Loss for the year from continuing REFEREEE 2
operations AERER (22,445) (29,821) (44,048) (18,733) (18,737)
Profit/(Loss) for the year froma  REBRIHEL %
discontinued operation ZAREERH,/
(B8) 1,682 (6,207) (10,510 (325) 165
Loss for the year AEEBE (20,763) (36,028) (54,558) (19,058) (18,572)
Loss attributable to AAAIEHE ARG
owners of the Company B8 (19,469) (32,167) (48,407) (17,693) (18,754)
(Loss)/Profit attributable to FEE R I
non-controlling interests (B8),/ &H (1,294) (3,861) (6,151) (1,365) 182
Loss for the year REEER (20,763) (36,028) (54,558) (19,058) (18,572)
Dividends & - - - - -
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BAERE 1,044,105 806,474 1,007,905 1,153,763 1,155,855
Total liabilities aERE 148,880 58,176 138,730 308,716 278,083
Net assets ZEFE 895,225 748,298 869,175 845,047 877,772
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